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GROUP OPERAtIONAl HIGHlIGHtS

£0.5turnover in excess of  
£0.5 billion for the  
first time ever
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Ecclesiastical needs to focus on its key aim of being a specialist that is 
first choice for customers and business partners in its target markets.  
We are determined it should do this in a manner that not only preserves 
its distinctive values but that also makes an increasing contribution to the 
communities we serve. By so doing, we will ensure that we can continue 
making an appropriate commercial return enabling us to increase our 
giving to, and meet the aspirations of, our owner Allchurches trust.

Ecclesiastical has an unusual history and ownership structure which 
drives its values, and together with our determination to keep governance 
at the forefront of modern day best practice, influences our deliberations 
and provides a yardstick against which we measure our decisions.

We believe Ecclesiastical’s values and approach to doing business allow 
it to stand out as a provider of financial services. We are an ethical 
organisation, genuinely committed to helping and caring for all our 
customers and business partners. We act with integrity in all our dealings 
with them, with each other, with our suppliers, with our regulators and 
with the communities we seek to serve. We approach each challenge 
with enthusiasm and the determination to do the right thing – not the 
easy or the self-serving thing. this approach has stood us in good stead 
and forms a sound basis for the future success of the Company. 

2010 saw us deliver on a wide range of strategic initiatives. In particular, 
changes to our life business, our london Market business, our Broking 
businesses and our Investment business have proved successful and 
given clarity of focus to our strategic direction. Alongside this we 
completed a review of Board and governance effectiveness which led  

CHAIRMAN’S 
StAtEMENt

Over the last few years we have been 
reshaping Ecclesiastical Insurance to 
face the ever-changing world in which 
we live and I am pleased that significant 
progress has been made. 

W. M. Samuel

 Resilience 
despite incurring 
our largest gross 
claims loss ever
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to defined committee structures and addressed new UK regulatory 
requirements. In particular we introduced a Group Risk Committee,  
and refocused our Remuneration and Nominations Committees. 

Our underwriting results for 2010 were adversely affected by several 
large natural events and significant individual claims. In particular we 
faced our largest ever gross loss in New Zealand from the 2010 
Christchurch earthquake, as well as losses from earthquakes in Chile and 
Haiti within our london Market business. the UK suffered major bouts of 
severe winter weather both at the start and the end of the year and we 
experienced the start of major floods in Queensland, Australia, as well as 
hailstorms in Melbourne and Perth. I am pleased to report that throughout 
we gave continued excellent service – this is after all what we are in 
business for – our customers.

Since the year end we experienced further flooding in Queensland, 
Australia, and a second earthquake loss in Christchurch. the tragic 
consequences of the earthquake were highlighted by the worldwide 
media and we have been actively involved in supporting many churches 
and offering support to affected people – in particular, at both the 
Anglican Cathedral where the collapsed spire has become a symbol of 
the tragedy and the Catholic Cathedral. through our london Market 
business we insure some risks in Japan, which experienced a large 
earthquake in March 2011. Our financial exposure for all the above 
catastrophes is well covered by our reinsurance programmes.

Our investment portfolios have in general out-performed their 
benchmarks and benefited from the second half rally in equity markets. 

Our Group Combined Operating Ratio (COR) was 102% and pre-tax 
profit in the end a respectable £50 million. We also completed a 
successful campaign that saw our irredeemable preference share capital 
increase by £40 million to £106 million. 

there were a number of Board changes during 2010. Bishop Nick 
Baines retired after eight years of greatly appreciated service, and we 
were delighted to learn that he is due to become Bishop of Bradford in 
April. In February, Sir Philip Mawer became the Deputy Chairman and in 
November, he was also appointed our Senior Independent Director. 
During the year, Denise Wilson was appointed to the Ecclesiastical Board 
as a Non-Executive Director and both she and Sir Philip Mawer became 
trustees and joined the Board of Allchurches trust. Denise’s background 
in insurance and customer operations brings a valuable independent  
view on our business and we look forward to her contribution in the  
years ahead. 

So reflecting on the year, I am pleased with the way in which 
Ecclesiastical has progressed, sharpening its strategy and rising to so 
many external challenges. I want to give my thanks to everyone for all 
their hard work and their passion for the business. It is a privilege to be 
associated with a fine organisation intent on making a real and lasting 
difference to the world it serves.

Will Samuel 
Chairman, Ecclesiastical 

Strengthened 
governance
framework
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We feel pleased with progress and the growing sense of confidence 
within our business. Overall profitability was good but our underlying 
underwriting result (measured by the COR) reflected a number of large 
claims events and a return to a more normal number of larger claims 
after a more fortunate 2009. 

Insurance premium rates remained at, or even below, 2009 levels.  
We are learning to live with this competitive pressure and are 
determined to maintain underwriting disciplines. Gross Written 
Premium for our underwriting businesses grew by 11% to  
£474 million, although excluding the effect of exchange rate 
movements and the one-off increase from our new relationship  
with Cornish Mutual, the underlying figure was nearer 4%. Adding in 
brokerage, life business and other fee income, Group turnover 
increased to over £500 million for the first time in our history.

the environment served up more than its normal number of challenges 
with several earthquakes, storms and other events. For us, the 
Queensland floods are expected to cost £2.5 million (including 
reinstatement premium) in 2010, and in combination the two UK freezes 
and the hailstorms in Melbourne and Perth cost in excess of £10 million. 
On top of this the Christchurch (New Zealand) earthquake in September 
was our largest ever gross loss at some £61 million and at the net (after 
reinsurance) level it, together with the Chilean and Haiti earthquakes and 

REVIEW OF GROUP 
OPERAtIONS

2010 has been a year of significant 
change, with the completion of several 
major initiatives designed to place 
Ecclesiastical in a stronger position  
for the years ahead. 

Shareholders’  
funds reach  
new high

M. H. tripp
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associated reinsurance reinstatements, cost £10.8 million. Australia and 
New Zealand continue to suffer in 2011 with severe natural disasters 
including the Brisbane floods in January, Cyclone Yasi hitting Queensland 
and another tragic earthquake in Christchurch in February. these claims 
are still developing and our current estimate of cost is £3.5 million. through 
our london Market business we insure some risks in Japan. Aside from 
possible reinsurance reinstatement costs, it is currently expected that the 
Group’s reinsurance programme will limit any financial exposure in excess 
of current retention limits.

Claims were not only affected by natural catastrophes, but the litigious 
world in which we live also produced ongoing challenges. liability claims 
escalated as both frequency and cost increased, making UK motor and 
other liability insurance difficult. Even though our motor portfolio is small, 
it saw a £3.4 million underwriting loss. the recent EU ruling removing 
gender as a rating factor will impact a small number of our customers. 
We do not expect this to have a material impact on results.

the Group owns South Essex Insurance Brokers (SEIB) and our parent, 
Ecclesiastical Insurance Group, has a 49% stake in lycetts (up from 
40% at the end of 2009). Economic conditions and continued low 
premium rates challenged many brokers but we were pleased that both 
businesses exceeded their targets. SEIB commission grew by some  
3% and made a pre-tax profit contribution of £2 million. lycetts grew 
similarly. First and foremost our brokers are independent high quality 

advisory businesses and our aim is that they are successful in their  
own right.  
We were pleased with the continued growth of the mutually strong 
relationship between SEIB, Ecclesiastical and the National Association of 
Funeral Directors (NAFD). Also encouraging was the acquisition, jointly 
with lycetts, of some larger new clients including Alnwick Castle. Both 
brokers represent opportunities for the Group in the years ahead. 

the economic climate remained uncertain. the recovery in UK Gross 
Domestic Product was fragile and our customer base remained 
concerned about their income sources. On the other hand, accepting 
some volatility, the investment world has been more confident with stock 
markets recovering despite a dip at the half-year. this, coupled with 
continued excellent investment performance, produced returns on our 
financial investments of over 9%. Our credit ratings – from both Standard 
& Poor’s and A. M. Best – remain strong at A- and A respectively.

Our pre-tax profit was £50 million – very much in line with our financial 
targets. On the basis of this and our strong 2009 results, we were 
delighted to have made £19.25 million of grants to our charitable owners 
Allchurches trust in 2010. Of this we regard £9.25 million as the 
underlying sustainable grant on which we plan to build in the years 
ahead. this helps them undertake more good work and their own giving 
has nearly doubled in the last seven years.

by permission of  
Chatsworth House Trust
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Areas of major progress
Over the years it has been challenging to make a success of our life 
business – especially manufacturing our own with-profit and non-profit 
products. Increased regulatory requirements, ever more detailed and 
complex technical actuarial standards and the relatively fragmented 
nature of our business, led us reluctantly to conclude we could not 
continue without change. two years ago we reviewed the strategic 
position. While we saw the need to continue giving our core customer 
group (the Church) excellent, genuine and empathetic advice, we also 
saw that we did not need to manufacture our own products; indeed we 
saw that the advice element could be improved by offering choice across 
the whole market. the aim was and still is to build a first class advice 
business – initially serving our core market but ultimately developing into 
other affinity links emulating the excellent relationship we have with the 
NAFD. We were therefore delighted to find in Homeowners Friendly 
Society (trading as Engage Mutual) a partner with whom we could 
identify and one which would benefit from an increased scale with the 
addition of our funds. We were also concerned to do the best we could 
for staff affected by the changes. the deal concluded with Court 
Approval on 26 November and saw 16 people being transferred to 
Engage Mutual. Our newly focused advisory service and full IFA, 
Ecclesiastical Financial Advisory Services, has restructured its approach 
to giving advice around seminars and more targeted methods to the 
Church and associated customer groups. the future Retail Distribution 
Review will be a challenge but we believe we are well placed to deal with 
it. It was very pleasing to note record business with NAFD – over £13.5 
million written premium.

Another decision taken over two years ago was that as Kevin Cannon, 
who had led our very successful london Market underwriting agent, 
Ecclesiastical Underwriting Management limited, reached retirement age 
we would try to find a buyer for the business. Over the years it has 
produced over 20% return on capital employed and while volatile,  
as would be expected from the nature of the business, it has made a very 
positive contribution to our results over the longer term. In the event we 
did not find a suitable buyer and placed it into run-off. this was 
announced in September and the transition has started very smoothly. 
We applaud Kevin and all the staff for their contribution over the years 
and professional approach to this change.

In addition, the decision was taken to simplify our corporate structure and 
streamline aspects of administration. this led to the closing of several 

smaller companies and in particular the conversion of Ansvar UK to 
become a business division of Ecclesiastical with effect from 1 January 
2011. Having two brands stands us in good stead – Ansvar has a 
different business focus and strong relationships with different brokers 
and customers. It makes business sense to retain an independent brand 
and we need to keep it separate to make sure we do not inhibit its ability 
to prosper. Nevertheless maintaining a full corporate structure is costly 
and an increasing regulatory challenge as governance needs become 
more and more resource-intensive. Changing Ansvar to a business 
division helps on these fronts as well as it benefiting from a higher credit 
rating. Court Approval was granted on 9 December 2010. 

the fourth major initiative was our raising of an extra £40 million of capital 
by extending our non-cumulative irredeemable preference issue from £66 
million to £106 million. Our capital base was strong – at year end 2009 
net assets stood at £392.8 million equating to 3.3 times the Enhanced 
Capital Requirement. that said, we see many business opportunities and 
we thought it sensible to take advantage of market conditions to raise 
additional capital to help us fund those opportunities and to strengthen 
our capital base. It was very encouraging to hear the positive reaction of 
investors as we talked about Ecclesiastical. the issue was oversubscribed 
with us having to scale it back. At the end of 2010 our capital base 
reached £456.9 million reflecting this new money and retained earnings.

Key operations
turning now to comment on each of our major businesses not  
yet mentioned:

Our UK and Ireland underwriting businesses, including Ansvar, made 
excellent progress. Gross written premiums grew from £314.7 million to 
£341.7 million. this reflected increased professionalism and confidence 
in the sales activity while maintaining and strengthening underwriting 
disciplines. We were delighted with the number of new customers and in 
particular with our relationship with Cornish Mutual, which commenced in 
October 2009. the relationship with Cornish Mutual sees us reinsuring 
100% of their insurance business, undertaking underwriting 
management and providing technical support, leaving them able to 
concentrate their resources on their customer relationships. the Cornish 
Mutual gross written premium for 2010 was £16.5 million.

Across the portfolio, retention remained high – well over 90%, and our 
regular customer feedback remains highly supportive and positive.  
In particular, we are pleased at the new confidence in our business in 
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Ireland, where we have recently agreed an accelerated investment 
programme to build on the solid foundations now in place. the market 
clearly now sees us as much more than a company serving the needs of 
the Church of Ireland alone. Key appointments to the main representative 
bodies within our core niches in Ireland has raised our business profile 
with customers increasingly seeing us as first choice. 

Our international underwriting businesses in Canada, Australia and New 
Zealand all progressed well. In Canada our reputation is now fully 
secured as a focused specialist with a clear set of values. the Canadian 
business continues to grow profitably at a respectable 12% in 2010, 
building on the growth we have seen since the operation was 

repositioned in 2004/2006. Having established a solid market reputation 
through hiring skilled professionals and a refocus on core segments;  
we have now become first choice for faith and independent schools, with 
other segments following fast. targeting the best risks and working 
closely with the customer and broker, has given us a 96% business 
retention and profitable new business growth. 

Ansvar Australia has been subject to more change. In particular we 
appointed a new CEO, Andrew Moon, on 1 August. We send our grateful 
thanks to his predecessor John Peberdy for all he achieved with Ansvar 
over 37 years. the businesses remained profitable despite the impact of 
weather events previously mentioned. the Australian operation is now 
moving to reduce its dependency on personal lines and increase the 
growth in its core commercial segments of faith, heritage, care, education 
and not-for-profit. A number of personnel changes and the increased 
clarity around these specialist activities have established a strong 
foundation for the next stage of business development. 

Finally, although we have already described our broking businesses,  
it would be remiss not to report with sadness the untimely death of  
Bob Pluck at SEIB. We wish his family our heartfelt condolences.

Bailing out the Eden Project 
One of the properties hit by the Cornwall floods in November 
was the world-famous Eden Project. Floodwaters gushed into 
several buildings and cut the visitor attraction off from public 
access. As soon as the floodwaters had subsided the race was 
on to get everything ready to re-open the doors. Every delay 
meant lost revenue and an increased claim. the emergency 
clean-up operation was complete in less than one week which 
helped the Eden Project and contained the claims cost.

Making online simple for charities 
We launched the first online insurance 
service tailored just for charities. Some 
thought that it would not be easy to put 
specialist commercial policies online, 
but we did it. Over 500 of our insurance 
brokers are signed up for the service 
and we are now doing more than half 
of our new charity business through the 
portal. this means that more of our 
customers are getting the right cover 
more quickly, and at the right price. We 
were shortlisted for several awards for 
this innovative way of doing business. 
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Further progress on other fronts
During the year we continued to take steps to improve our expense 
ratio and manage our expense base down. this is vital in order to 
remain competitive. A combination of process improvement, 
performance management and simplification have helped move us 
forward. the general business expense ratio progressed from 19% in 
2007 to a high point of 20% in 2008, reducing to 19% for 2009 and 
17% for 2010. We live in a highly competitive world and our current 
aim is that this moves rapidly downwards.

Alongside process improvement has to be a more focused use of 
modern technology, and we were pleased in 2010 to see increased use 
of the Web – particularly in the UK, to help brokers transact more 
effectively with us. We were delighted that some 65% of UK Charity 
and Care Home new business was written this way. At the same time 
we have completed the roll-out of our Customer Relationship 
Management system and transferred this to Australia as well. 

two key disciplines for us are our underwriting and claims. We 
continued to improve our capabilities in both during 2010. In particular, 
for underwriting, we completed a pricing best practice review, we 
restructured the UK team to align better with our strategy, we launched 
an underwriting academy and we improved our risk appetite policy 
requirements. We believe we are relatively strong in this area but the 
need for continuous improvement is high. For claims, our customer 
feedback everywhere remained highly positive and the attitude of our 
claims specialists is excellent. 

Another major area illustrating the professional manner in which 
Ecclesiastical is run is our approach to risk, capital and solvency 
management. We strengthened our approach to Enterprise Risk 
Management with the appointment of a new Risk Manager, and 
embedded our system of local Risk Champions. As mentioned under 
the Governance section, we inaugurated a Group Risk Committee, 
which includes a combination of Non-Executive and Executive 
Directors. We were pleased to be invited into the Financial Services 
Authority’s Internal Model Approval Process and feel well placed to deal 
with Solvency II. However, the change involved with Solvency II cannot 
be underestimated. We have a strong team working on this who 
continually stay abreast of developments and assess the impact on  
our governance, reporting and capital position. 

Investments
We have already discussed our life business so this is the moment to 
comment on another great success, that of our investment management 
business, Ecclesiastical Investment Management (EIM). Again two years 
ago we took a number of decisions; we changed its name to 
Ecclesiastical Investment Management (from Allchurches Investment 
Management), we put ourselves on a number of fund sales platforms and 
we started to market it more confidently. We have had superb investment 
performance with our key fund managers being recognised by the City.  
In 2010, net new funds topped £110 million (up from £34 million last 
year). We were delighted with awards from lipper and others. We made 

Making sales successful 
We launched a sales academy to make our sales people even 
more proactive and professional. We linked up with the 
University of Gloucestershire to accredit the training so 
everyone on the course gets a formal recognised postgraduate 
qualification. the Academy has given us much more confidence 
in selling, so much so that the sales people who have 
successfully completed it are bringing in an average of 13% 
more business. the scheme also won an award at the 
Manchester Insurance Institute. 

Award winning 
investment 
performance
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substantial progress with preparations to launch a special charity 
investment vehicle, as we see the market for ethical third party fund 
management is well aligned to our target customer base.

turning to the performance of our own funds, as mentioned in the 
introduction, market conditions remained turbulent and uncertain.  
Our policy has always been to take a long-term view based on assessing 
the fundamentals, and this again stood us in good stead. Performance 
was good and our funds showed a total return in excess of 9% (2009: 
9.9%). Our equity portfolio (including holdings of Ecclesiastical OEICs) 
returned close to 14%, compared with a rise in the FtSE 100 of 9%.

Our people and what we stand for
We firmly believe that people are at the heart of our business – if our 
people are energetic and focused we can deliver an exceptional 
customer experience and excellent relationships; these coupled with 
deep-seated expertise lead to a truly successful business. In 2010 we 
improved our collective vision, giving the whole organisation impetus 
around clear objectives focused on customers, business partners, staff 
and of course our charitable owners, Allchurches trust. We were keen to 
make sure that our purpose was recognised – and is as much about how 
we conduct business as what we aim to achieve. A sense of integrity, 
honesty and always being on our customers’ side is at the heart of what 
we are all about.

We continued building our open culture and encouraged everyone to 
take a greater interest in how the business was progressing through 
regular webcasts and open meetings. We responded to the findings of 
our first entry into the Sunday times Best Place to Work programme with 
new training initiatives, leadership development and reviewing our 
approach to wellbeing. In particular we implemented a new set of 
leadership competencies and assessed our top 50 people against this 
new framework. this has led to a more active approach to talent 
management and personal development.

A further major training development was the bringing to fruition of our 
sales academy. this started in 2009 and the first ‘graduates’ were 
honoured in May 2010. this is a systematic appraisal of sales skills and a 
clear development programme. At the end of this, candidates are 
externally assessed. We have seen substantial improvements in sales 
results for those who have been through the academy. this academy was 

our second – after the risk survey one was launched a few years ago –  
and close on its heels have been similar programmes in underwriting  
and claims. 

Given the values that underpin Ecclesiastical, it is not surprising that we 
can also report substantial progress with our community programme and 
our environmental policies. these are reported in more depth in the 
Corporate Responsibility Report, but we should note here the substantial 
efforts of our people in raising nearly £200,000, and giving over 2,000 
hours of volunteer time to charities across the Group.

Governance
As the Chairman has already reported, we have continued to make  
sure our governance approach matches rapidly changing best practice.  
In particular, although we were not legally required to apply the new UK 
Corporate Governance Code, we have voluntarily agreed to meet it both 
in spirit and in deed. this report and accounts is testament to this.

As well as this, we set up a new Board committee – the Group Risk 
Committee and we re-focused and increased the remit of the 
Remuneration Committee. We would like to acknowledge the support 
and effort of all our Non-Executive Directors in this regard.

Digging deep for Sue Ryder Care 
Our people have been lending a hand at Sue Ryder Care in 
many ways. A team of women from Ecclesiastical took part in 
the Midnight Walk fundraiser. Over 100 members of staff took 
on the ‘Big Wigs’ challenge to take £50 and turn it into much 
more. We enjoyed cake sales,  
shoe-shining and a bi-plane  
flight amongst other things.  
We also dug holes, cut back  
bushes, redecorated  
rooms and redesigned  
marketing materials. 
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Major staff changes
We would again pay tribute to John Peberdy, who retired mid-year after 
37 years’ service with Ansvar in Australia and New Zealand. John worked 
untiringly for the business and the local community. Closer to home, 
Graham Shearn retired in April, having made a major contribution to the 
senior leadership of the Group; we will miss his deep expertise and 
thoughtful approach to our business. Another major change saw Richard 
Mander move on. Richard made substantial contributions as Director of 
HR over some years. We wish these and all who have retired or left our 
business well.

Awards
In 2010 we won awards across all areas of our business. We have 
already mentioned the investment awards from lipper, but we also won 
Best Ethical Investment Provider at the 2010 Investment life & Pensions 
Moneyfacts Awards for the second year running. Robin Hepworth was 
also named Fund Manager of the Year. We were named Voluntary, Care 
& Education Underwriting team of the Year in the Underwriting Services 
Awards organised by Post Magazine. We also won Most Effective B2B 
Campaign from the Financial Services Forum for investment marketing. 
In addition we were shortlisted for runner-up in a long list of awards, 
including the British Insurance Awards, Risk Management Awards and 
Marketing Effectiveness Awards. 

Outlook and conclusion
So, we have come through 2010 stronger than ever before. It has not 
been a straightforward year, but one in which we have handled many 
natural catastrophes, helped many customers through difficult personal 
challenges and made a real difference through our attitude to the 
communities we serve. In addition, we have come through stronger in 
terms of the shape of our business, our people and our finances. We 
have had a challenging start to 2011 that has included more natural 
disasters overseas, continued bad weather in the UK, and no upward 
trend within the rating environment. However, we are confident that we 
can continue to build on the foundations and recognise with deep 
appreciation the vital efforts all our staff make. We look forward to 
reporting further substantial progress next year as we move into 
celebrating our 125th Anniversary.

Michael Tripp 
Group Chief Executive, Ecclesiastical
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We will achieve growth by becoming the number one choice for 
customers and business partners in specific markets that fit with our 
values and where we can leverage our experience and expertise to 
deliver the required financial return. We also aim to become the 
employer of choice for current and prospective staff, as we believe that 
this is the best way to ensure we deliver a sustainable, growing 
earnings stream.

Our goals:

• Top Company Donor 
•  First Choice for Customers and  

Business Partners
• Best Place to Work

StRAtEGIC 
OVERVIEW

More streamlined 
company, focusing 

on our core 
business

Our purpose is to deliver a sustainable 
and growing financial return in the  
form of charitable grants and capital 
growth to our ultimate shareholder, 
Allchurches trust.
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Our Strategy

Strategic intent Operating as a specialist 
insurer and managing our 
business portfolio to maximise 
shareholder value

Delivering an exceptional 
experience to customers and 
business partners, focusing on 
customer intimacy as our key 
differentiator

Improving profitability 
through disciplined claims and 
underwriting

Areas of focus We will continue to operate as a 
specialist insurance and financial 
services group focused on a small 
number of target markets including 
Faith, Charity, Heritage, Education 
and Care. We will continue to manage 
the business portfolio in a proactive 
manner, investing in those areas 
where there are profitable growth 
opportunities that can be exploited, 
and taking corrective action where 
businesses are not delivering the 
required return. 

We will deliver product and service 
excellence by employing great people 
who provide an outstanding personal 
service to customers and business 
partners, differentiating us from the 
competition and thereby becoming 
their number one choice  
for insurance, financial services  
and risk management.

We will continually review our pricing, 
exposure and risk appetite to ensure 
underwriting profitability adheres 
to our long-term Group combined 
operating ratio target of 98%. 
We will maintain underwriting 
discipline in soft market conditions by 
closely managing the  
underwriting cycle. 
We will continue to take a proactive 
approach to managing claims.

How we  
measure success

•  Growth in Gross Written Premiums
•  Profit before tax 
•  Return on shareholders’ equity

• Net Promoter Scores
• Customer satisfaction surveys 
• Ranking achieved in industry-wide 

benchmarking surveys

• Combined operating ratio
• Underwriting and claims leakage 

targets

Progress in 2010 • Withdrew from operating in the 
london Market 

• Disposed of the majority of our  
non-core life insurance operations

• Grew Gross Written Premiums  
by 12% 

• Achieved profit before tax of  
£50 million 

• Achieved a 13% return on 
shareholders’ equity employed 
exceeding our target of 12%

• Launched our Charity and Care 
online commercial products

• Continued rollout of our customer 
relationship management tools to our 
UK commercial insurance business

• Received Money Facts award  
for Best Ethical Investment  
Provider 2010

• Developed our underwriting and 
claims academies

• Implemented a claims leakage 
reduction programme in our UK 
business

Our priorities for 2011 • Achieve significant profitable 
growth in our existing UK and Irish 
commercial insurance markets

• Launch a new insurance solution for 
commercial property owners

• Continue to grow our Investment 
Management and Financial  
Services businesses

• Continue to invest in  
broker and customer  
relationship management 

• Continue to invest in  
multi-channel distribution and 
servicing model

• Further strengthening of propositions  
for our target markets

• Enhance our risk selection capability 
through training and the use of  
geo-mapping technology 

• Focus on reducing claims  
procurement costs 
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Focusing on operational excellence Managing risk and capital across 
the Group to maximum effect

Creating a culture and 
environment that enables people 
to reach their full potential

We will ensure we have a cost effective 
business model by continuing to challenge 
our existing operating and organisational 
models, investing in new technology, and 
process re-engineering.

We take a risk-based approach to 
managing capital, monitoring business unit 
performance to ensure capital is being 
deployed to optimise profitable growth 
in line with the Group risk appetite. We 
will continue to hold sufficient capital to 
maintain at least an ‘A’ rating with rating 
agencies and maintain ample liquidity to 
meet operational requirements.

In order to maintain our competitive edge, 
we will continue to invest in developing and 
managing the talent within the business, 
especially in the core disciplines of sales, 
underwriting and claims.
We will also continue to engender a 
modern, dynamic, and performance 
focused culture. 

• General insurance expense ratio
• FTE headcount

• Enhanced Capital Requirement coverage
• Rating achieved from leading credit rating 

agencies

• Quarterly staff surveys 
• Staff engagement in our ‘Best Place to 

Work’ programme
• Rank achieved in national staff 

engagement surveys 

• Achieved a 2.1% reduction in our general 
insurance expense ratio

• Continued rationalisation of our 
technology infrastructure

• Raised £40 million in preference  
share capital

• Coverage of our Enhanced Capital 
Requirement remains above 300%

• Strong progress in developing our 
Solvency II compliant model 

• A- and A rating maintained  
from Standard & Poor’s and  
A. M. Best respectively

• Developed our underwriting, claims and 
sales academies

• Good progress on our ‘Best Place to 
Work’ initiatives 

• Strengthened our management 
development and leadership programmes

• Continue to identify and deliver cost 
efficiency opportunities throughout  
the business

• Continue to use technology to improve 
operational efficiency and effectiveness, 
for example through implementing a new 
workflow system in the UK 

• Continue to invest in preparing the 
business for Solvency II

• Continue to improve the Group’s 
capabilities to monitor and manage 
market and operational risk

• Strong focus on further developing the 
sales, claims and underwriting academies 
to enhance technical skills

• Further investment in attracting and 
developing talent throughout the Group
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2010 was a year of great achievement and increased impact. We have 
a greater focus on where to channel our effort and have a plan to 
motivate everyone behind our causes. this will help us to continue to 
make a difference in future years.

Engaging and working with others 
We recognise that we do not have all the answers; engaging others in 
our corporate responsibility (CR) programmes helps us to take a broader 
view of what is important. It also helps us to develop an appropriate plan 
of action, measure our impact and communicate our performance. In 
2010 we have been in conversation with our employees, our customers, 
our local communities, our business partners and our suppliers. We have 
also strengthened relationships with partner organisations.

In the UK we participated in Business in the Community Corporate 
Responsibility Index, the UK’s leading voluntary benchmark of Corporate 
Responsibility. this is helping us to integrate and improve CR throughout 
our business by providing an assessment of the way we manage, 
measure and report CR issues and impacts.

We also work with Business in the Community to help them engage with 
and mobilise other organisations across the South West to work to a 
shared set of community aims, with this being a natural extension of 
Ecclesiastical’s CR approach. 

CORPORAtE 
RESPONSIBIlItY 
REPORt 

Ecclesiastical has always cared 
about people, communities and the 
environment. We are proud of our  
roots and are committed to building  
upon and protecting our long history  
of responsibility. 

An ethical 
approach and 

determination to  
do the right thing
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We are a proud member of ClimateWise, the insurance industry’s 
collaborative response to the risks and issues associated with climate 
change. ClimateWise provides independent assessment (through 
PricewaterhouseCoopers) of our environmental performance  
(see environment section).

Clarity over what is important
We have assessed the risks and opportunities associated with  
our social, environmental and workplace impacts and prioritised  
areas for attention. 

Community

• Organising a community investment programme focused on the key 
social issues facing the countries in which we are based

• Helping our community partners to become more sustainable, 
enabling them to concentrate more of their time and effort on the 
core services they provide to the community

• Ensuring community volunteering helps employees achieve a sense of 
satisfaction, pride and personal learning and growth

Environment

• Assessing the effectiveness of our environmental management 
system through the ISO14001 process

• Responding positively to the impacts of climate change in support of 
our customers, business partners, suppliers and communities

• Reducing our own carbon footprint

Workplace

• Promoting and supporting employee wellbeing

• Developing and supporting our people to reach their full potential

• Embedding a people charter based on transparency and  
shared expectations

Customer

• Improving our customer experience

• Improving core skills of underwriting, claims, sales and  
relationship management

• Creating deeper and closer customer relationships

Supplier

• Developing and implementing supplier standards and vetting process 

• Increasing the proportion of suppliers compliant with our standards
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Clarity over what is important Achieving more
Community

2010 has been our best ever year of giving. We have donated more 
time, raised more money and seen greater employee participation in 
support of our community partners. For an organisation of our size,  
we believe we are punching well above our weight in our community 
investment programmes.

Community objective and 
2010 target*

Result

Employee fundraising of £150,000 £165,000

Donate 1,100 hours of employee time  
(normal working hours) towards community 
partner projects

1,335 hours

25% of UK employees volunteer time for our 
charity partners during working hours  
(excluding fundraising activities)

30%

* UK only metrics

Donation of employee time

• 227 hours supporting local domestic violence project

• 200 hours given to environmental protection projects

• 422 hours donated to Sue Ryder Care

• 95 hours supporting mental health charity

• 74 hours given to charity for homeless young adults

Fundraising projects

• £20,000 to Sue Ryder Care

• £55,000 donated through payroll giving

• £10,000 through employee rowing challenge

• £13,000 through employee entrepreneurial challenge

• £40,000 raised for disaster appeals

• £2,800 raised for Children in Need

• £3,000 raised from employee charity days

Customer
Improve our customer experience

Improve core skills of underwriting,
claims, sales and leadership

Creating deeper and closer customer
relationships

Workplace
Promote and support employee wellbeing

Develop and support our people to reach
their full potential

Create an empowered, confident and decisive culture

Suppliers
Clarify a formal supplier policy and make it

publicly available

Develop and implement supplier standards
and vetting process

Increase proportion of suppliers compliant with our standards

Community
Organise a community
investment programme

focused on the key social issues
facing the counties in which

we’re based

Ensure community volunteering
helps employees achieve a
sense of satisfaction, pride
and personal learning and

growth

Environment
Effective evironmental

management

Respond positively to the
impacts of climate change in
support of our customers,
business partners, suppliers

and communities

Reduce our own
environmental impact

Clarity over what’s important...
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Environment

Climate change continues to be an important issue for the insurance 
industry. We aim to reduce our own emissions, as well as to promote 
awareness of and minimise the detrimental impacts of climate change 
for our customers, business partners and the insurance sector as a 
whole. In 2010 we undertook our first carbon footprint audit, which 
helped us identify the biggest contributors of our emissions. 

Measure % of footprint Tonnes  
of CO2e

Direct  
emissions

34% 1,211

Energy indirect 
emissions

50% 1,825

Other  
indirect emissions

16% 569

Total emissions, tonnes CO2e 3,605

Ecclesiastical carbon footprint January-December 2009

We have analysed our footprint and defined key areas for improvement. 
We held employee workshops to develop a carbon reduction plan that 
included specific actions for increasing the engagement of employees 
in addressing the issues. 

We also received our second ClimateWise assessment and 
PricewaterhouseCoopers noted Ecclesiastical as one of the most 
improved companies of all participating organisations, improving across 
all areas of the six ClimateWise principles. 

Becoming the best place to work

We want to be the employer of choice for current and prospective staff. 
this means creating an environment and culture that our employees 
consider to be the best place to work. Employee research during 2010 
has provided much insight into what we do really well but also 
highlighted areas in which greater focus and attention is required. 

We have introduced a number of employee benefits aimed at ensuring 
the wellbeing of our employees. these have included the introduction 
of a free employee assistance programme for our staff and their 
families, free flu-jabs and on-site health checks. We strengthened our 
programme of learning and development with a suite of interesting and 
effective ‘bite-sized learning’ modules. We have also continued to focus 
on leadership development, undertaking a management development 
programme for all our junior managers. 

In Ireland, we participated in the Step-up Programme, working very 
closely with St. Andrew’s Resource Centre. this programme gives 
disadvantaged young people from the Dublin docklands area the 
opportunity of work experience and a new start. We were also the 
recipient of the Business Innovation & Ethics award from Financial 
Advisor Magazine. this award recognised our achievements in 
business combined with our social conscience.

In Canada, our Business Internship graduate programme includes 
three months of CR-related work. Interns are placed in non-profit 
organisations and given the opportunity to ‘walk a mile’ in our 
customers’ shoes whilst putting their university degrees and 
business experience into practice. Organisations which have been 
helped include: the Furniture Bank (recycling used household 
furnishings to the needy); the Yonge Street Mission (one of the 
oldest missions in Canada); and the Canadian Council of 
Churches (organised the 2010 World Religions Summit in parallel 
with the G8 leaders’ Summit in June 2010). 

In Australia, we have had a long commitment to youth charities 
through Ansvar’s Community Education Programme. In 2010  
we donated $780,000 to this programme, focused on youth-based 
educational initiatives. We also established the Red Dust Role 
Models Program, whereby 16 Ansvar employees will spend  
one week volunteering in outback Australia with disadvantaged 
children from aboriginal communities.
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W. M. Samuel*  
Chairman

Appointed to the Board in January 2006 and became Chairman in 
June 2009. He is a Vice Chairman of Lazard and Co, a Director of 
Edinburgh Investment Trust, the Chairman of Howden Joinery 
Group plc (formerly Galliform plc), Director of International Alert, 
and Deputy Chairman and Senior Independent Non-Executive 
Director of Inchcape plc. Previously he was a Director of Schroder 
plc and a Vice Chairman of Investment Banking of Citigroup 
Europe. Aged 59.

Sir Philip J. C. Mawer*  
Deputy Chairman and Senior Independent Director

Re-appointed to the Board in February 2008 (having served 
previously from 1996-2002), he became Deputy Chairman in 
February 2010 and Senior Independent Director from November 
2010. Formerly Secretary General of the General Synod of the 
Church of England (1990-2002) and of the Archbishops’ Council. 
Parliamentary Commissioner for Standards from 2002-2007. He is 
currently the Prime Minister’s Independent Advisor on Ministers’ 
Interests, lay Chairman of the Professional Regulation Executive 
Committee of the UK Actuarial Profession and a patron or trustee 
of various charities. Aged 63.

D. Christie* 

Appointed to the Board in 2001. He retired as Warden of  
St Edward’s School, Oxford in 2004. Previously he taught and 
researched in economics in schools and universities in the  
United Kingdom and Europe. Aged 69.

M. D. Couve* 

Appointed to the Board in June 2006. Consultant with Speechly 
Bircham LLP and a former senior partner of that firm. He is a 
Director of Shires Income plc and a Trustee of the English National 
Opera Trust. Aged 63.

M. C. J. Hews 
Chief Financial Officer

Appointed Chief Financial Officer in April 2009 and appointed to 
the Board in June 2009. Formerly a Director of HSBC Life and 
Chief Executive of Marks and Spencer Life. Prior to this he was 
Finance Director at Norwich Union Healthcare. He started his 
financial career at Deloitte as a consultant and actuary. Aged 41.

J. F. Hylands* 

Appointed to the Board in September 2007. Until March 2007 he 
was an Executive Director of Standard Life plc. He is currently a 
Director of Alliance Trust PLC, Chairman of the trustees of the BOC 
and Standard Life pension schemes, a member of the Aviva UK 
Life With Profits Committee and a school governor. Aged 59.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

W. M. Samuel D. Christie M. C. J. Hews

Sir Philip J. C. Mawer M. D. Couve J. F. Hylands
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A. P. Latham* 

Appointed to the Board in March 2008. Until December 2007 he 
was a member of the Group Executive of RSA Group plc. He is 
Chairman of Pool Reinsurance Limited, a Director of Codan A/s 
and of Flagstone Reinsurance Limited. Aged 60.

N. Peyton*  
Archdeacon of Newark

Appointed to the Board in November 2005. He served in parochial 
ministry and as diocesan ministry development advisor and since  
1999 as Archdeacon of Newark in the diocese of Southwell and 
Nottingham. A Nottingham magistrate until 2003 and a member of  
the General Synod of the Church of England (1995-2010). He is 
an honorary teaching fellow at Lancaster University Management 
School. Aged 60.

M. H. Tripp 
Group Chief Executive

Appointed Group Chief Executive in January 2007. Previously 
Partner of Ernst & Young and Watson Wyatt, before that with 
Guardian Royal Exchange. His other directorships include 
Methodist Insurance PLC and The Baptist Insurance Company plc. 
Aged 55.

Ms. D. P. Wilson*

Appointed to the Board as a Non-Executive Director in December 
2010. Currently a Director at National Grid with responsibility for 
Customer Strategy, Commercial activities and the Gas Emergency 
support operations. Before that she worked for BG Group as Head 
of Investor Relations and Global Head of Insurance and Risk 
Management, and for Royal Sun Alliance as an underwriter. She is a 
Director of the Friend’s Board of the Royal Academy of Arts and a 
Trustee of Kids In Need of Education. She graduated in modern 
languages and is a Fellow of the Chartered Insurance Institute.
Aged 52.

S. A. Wood 
Managing Director, UK & Ireland

Joined the Group in September 2005 and is responsible for the 
General Insurance and Financial Services businesses in the UK and 
Ireland. Appointed to the Board in January 2006. Aged 50.

* Non-Executive Directors

The Group Executive Team can be found on Page 113

A. P. Latham M. H. Tripp D. P. Wilson

N. Peyton S. A. Wood
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Principal activity
The Group operates principally as a provider of general and  
long-term insurance, with offices in the UK, Ireland, Canada, Australia 
and New Zealand. A list of the Company’s main subsidiary 
undertakings is given on page 116 and details of international 
branches are shown on page 115.

Ownership
At 18 March 2011 the entire issued Ordinary share capital of the 
Company and 5.6% of the issued 8.625% Non-cumulative 
Irredeemable Preference shares were owned by Ecclesiastical 
Insurance Group plc. In turn, the entire equity capital of Ecclesiastical 
Insurance Group plc was owned by Allchurches Trust Limited. 

Board of Directors
The Directors of the Company at the date of this report are stated  
on pages 22 and 23. During the year The Rt. Revd. N. Baines retired 
as a Director on 23 June 2010 and Ms. D. P. Wilson was appointed 
as a Director on 16 December 2010. 

In line with the UK Corporate Governance Code the Board have 
voluntarily chosen to comply with annual re-election of Directors.  
All Directors that have served at the last Annual General Meeting 
(“AGM”) will be proposed for re-election, at the forthcoming AGM 
following recommendation from the Nominations Committee.  
Ms D. P. Wilson, who has not served at an AGM, will offer herself for 
election in accordance with the Company’s Articles.

The Group has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions  
for the benefit of its Directors, which were in place throughout the 
year and remain in force at the date of this report.

Neither the Directors nor their connected persons held any beneficial 
interest in any Ordinary shares of the Group during the year ended  
31 December 2010. There has been no change in these interests 
since the end of the financial year to the date of this report. 

Further to the Company’s placing of £40 million additional 
Non-cumulative Irredeemable Preference Shares on 16 December 
2010, the following Directors of the Company acquired the number 
of Shares stated below at 102 pence per Share:

Director Nature  
of Interest

Number of  
Non-cumulative 
Irredeemable 
Preference  
Shares held

D. Christie Director 11,079

M. D. Couve Director 19,000

M. C. J. Hews Connected person 75,342

The Venerable 
Dr. N. Peyton

Director 3,800

W. M. Samuel Director 151,000

No contract of significance subsisted during or at the end of the 
financial year in which a Director was or is materially interested.

Dividends 
Dividends paid on the Non-cumulative Irredeemable Preference 
Shares were £5,731,000 (2009: £5,731,000).

The Directors do not recommend a final dividend on the Ordinary 
shares (2009: £nil), and no interim dividend was made in respect of 
either the current or prior year. 

Charitable and political donations
Charitable donations paid and provided for by the Group in the year 
amounted to £20.6 million (2009: £9.8 million).

During the last ten years, a total of £85.5 million (2009: £69.2 
million) has been provided by Group companies for church and 
charitable purposes.

It is the Group’s policy not to make political donations.

Employees
The Group recognises the importance of employee communication 
and aims to keep employees informed about its affairs through the 
use of briefing groups, Group newsletters and the publication of 
financial reports. Regular meetings are held between management 
and other employees and discussion encouraged. It is the Group’s 
policy to give full consideration to applications for employment by 

The Directors submit their annual report and accounts for Ecclesiastical Insurance 
Office plc, together with the consolidated financial statements of the Group 
for the year ended 31 December 2010. The Review of Group Operations, 
Strategic Overview, Corporate Responsibility Report, Risk Report and Directors’ 
Remuneration Report are incorporated by reference into this Directors’ Report.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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disabled persons. Appropriate training is arranged for disabled persons, 
including retraining for alternative work of employees who become 
disabled, to promote their career development within the organisation.

The Group considers a number of key performance indicators in the 
assessment of its people strategy. In addition to numeric measures, 
such as staff turnover and absenteeism, the Group pays particular 
attention to the outcome of its annual staff satisfaction surveys, and 
has developed measures for assessing the success of its leadership 
and succession planning programmes.

Policy on payment of creditors
It is the Group’s policy to pay creditors promptly and fully, in accordance 
with the terms of their contracts. The Group has not adopted any 
particular external code. The number of days’ purchases represented by 
the amounts due to trade creditors of the Group at 31 December 2010 
was 30 days (2009: 23 days).

Principal risks and uncertainties
The principal risks and uncertainties, together with details of the 
financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group and 
Company, are disclosed in the Risk Report and notes 3 and 4 to the 
financial statements. 

Group restructure
As part of the Company’s strategy to streamline the Group, during the 
year a number of Group entities were dissolved and similar businesses 
were consolidated. The Group also ceased writing new business 
through its London Market underwriting agent and disposed of most of 
its life business to a third party, the Homeowners Friendly Society 
(trading as Engage Mutual). 

Internal controls
The Board is ultimately responsible for the systems of internal control 
maintained by the Group and reviews their appropriateness and 
effectiveness annually. The systems of internal control are intended to 
provide reasonable assurance, but not an absolute guarantee, against 
material errors, financial misstatements or loss. The key features of the 
control systems are as follows:

• The Board approves financial, business and investment strategies and 
plans, reviews exposure limits and then monitors the results on a 
regular basis.

• The Group operates a comprehensive annual budgetary  
control system which monitors results against business plans  
on a monthly basis. Business and investment reports are submitted 
regularly to the Board, and financial results are reported to the  
Board on a monthly basis.

• The Group has an internal audit function whose role is to review and 
monitor the various control mechanisms. The internal audit function 
has direct access to the Group Chief Executive and to the Chairman 
of the Group Audit Committee.

Going concern
A review of the Group’s business activities is provided in the Review of 
Group Operations. In addition, notes 3 and 4 to the financial statements 
disclose the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties, including 
exposures to insurance and financial risk and the Group’s objectives for 
managing capital.

The Group has considerable financial resources and, as a consequence, 
the Directors believe the Group is well-placed to manage its business 
risks successfully and continue in operational existence for the 
foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going 
concern basis in preparing the annual report and accounts.

Non-adjusting events after  
the reporting period
Events subsequent to the reporting period are detailed in note 40 to 
the financial statements.

Auditor and the disclosure  
of information to auditors
So far as each person who was a Director at the date of approving this 
report is aware, there is no relevant audit information, being information 
needed by the auditor in connection with preparing its report, of which 
the auditor is unaware. Having made enquiries of fellow Directors and 
the Company’s auditor, each Director has taken all the steps that they 
ought to have taken as a Director in order to make themselves aware 
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is 
aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

In accordance with Section 489 of the Companies Act 2006,  
a resolution proposing that Deloitte LLP be re-appointed as auditors  
of the Company will be put to the AGM.

Non-audit work
The Company does not impose an automatic ban on the auditor 
undertaking non-audit work. The Group’s aim is to identify appropriate 
service providers and ensure that any non-audit work is carried out by the 
most appropriate provider and in a manner that affords fullest value for 
money. The service provider must not be in a position of conflict in respect 
of the work in question and must have the skill, competence and integrity 
to carry out the work in the best interests of the Company and the Group.

Auditors of the Company are only permitted to perform audit-related and 
non-audit work if, in the opinion of the Group Audit Committee, it is 
appropriate for them to do so and there are no actual or perceived 
conflicts of interest.

By order of the Board

Mrs R. J. Hall
Secretary
18 March 2011
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The Company does not have any shares with a Premium Listing on the London 
Stock Exchange and is therefore not required to apply the Financial Reporting 
Council’s UK Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”). However, the Board of 
Directors is committed to applying the highest standards of corporate governance 
and believe that the affairs of the Company should be conducted in accordance 
with best business practice. Accordingly, the Company has chosen voluntarily to 
comply with the Code, and recommendations such as the Walker Report to the 
fullest extent possible.

The Board
Composition and 
Independence

The Board comprises a  
Non-Executive Chairman,  
seven other Non-Executive 
Directors (“NEDs”) and three 
Executive Directors. The 
Company believes the size  
and composition of the 
Board gives it sufficient 
independence, balance and 
wider experience to consider 
the issues of strategy, 
performance, resources  
and standards of conduct.  
The strong representation  
of NEDs on the Board 
demonstrates its independence.

The Chairman and Group 
Chief Executive

The roles of the Chairman and 
the Group Chief Executive 
are undertaken by separate 
individuals. The Chairman,  
Mr. W. M. Samuel, is responsible 
for leadership of the Board.  
The day-to-day management  
of the business is undertaken 
by the Group Chief Executive, 
Mr. M. H. Tripp, assisted by  
a Group Executive Team. 

Senior Independent Director

In November 2010, the Board 
appointed Sir Philip Mawer, 
Deputy Chairman, as the Senior 
Independent Director (“SID”). 
The SID supports and acts 
as a sounding board for the 
Chairman and is responsible 
for overseeing the governance 
practices of the Company and 
leading the Directors in their 
appraisal of the Chairman. 
Along with the Chairman,  
the SID is the primary contact 
for shareholders.

Re-election of Directors

Under the provisions of 
the Company’s Articles of 
Association all Directors are 
required to retire at every third 
AGM, or, for newly appointed 
Directors, at the  
first AGM following 
appointment. In line with the 
Corporate Governance Code 
the Board have voluntarily 
chosen to comply with  
the annual re-election of 
Directors with effect from  
the forthcoming AGM.  
In accordance with the Code, 
NEDs who have served for 
more than nine years will be 
subject to a rigorous annual 
review by the Nominations 
Committee before being put up 
for annual re-election.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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In 2011, one NED, Mr. D. Christie, following more than nine years service 
on the Board will be proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM 
following satisfaction by the Nominations Committee, in the absence of 
Mr. Christie, that his length of service has not affected his independence. 

As part of the external Board evaluation conducted in January 2010, 
it was identified that an additional NED with insurance sector and 
regulatory expertise would complement the Board’s balance. The 
appointment of a new NED was considered by the Nominations 
Committee in conjunction with Allchurches Trust and, through external 
head hunters, a suitable candidate was recommended to the Board. The 
Board appointed Ms. D. P. Wilson on 16 December 2010 following FSA 
approval. A resolution to elect Ms. D. P. Wilson will be proposed at the 
forthcoming AGM. 

A Conflicts Register is maintained by the Company Secretary to 
monitor and manage any potential conflicts of interest. Training was 
given to Directors on the new provisions of the Companies Act 2006 
and Directors are reminded of their duties regularly. Any changes are 
declared at the first Board meeting at which the Director becomes aware 
of a potential conflict and recorded in the Conflicts Register. Directors 
are required to review their interests as recorded in the Conflicts Register 
on an annual basis. 

Role of the Board

Great importance is placed on a well-informed and decisive board, and 
Board meetings are scheduled and held regularly throughout the year. 
In 2010, nine scheduled meetings and two additional meetings were 
held. In addition two off-site strategy days were held and ad hoc 
meetings and scheduled training sessions were arranged. A one-year 
rolling plan of business for discussion is reviewed and agreed by the 
Board annually to ensure that items considered are timely, relevant and 
suitable to the current business and financial environment. 

The Board sets annual objectives for each year in addition to the 
Group’s strategic direction, which it implements through approval and 
regular monitoring of the business plan and strategy. At each Board 
meeting the Directors discuss strategic and business matters, financial, 
operational and governance issues, along with other relevant business 
items that arise. The Board receives oral reports at Board meetings 
from the Chairmen of the Committees following a Committee meeting. 
All Directors receive papers and minutes for all meetings, unless 
restricted due to conflict or sensitivity. Papers are circulated a week  
in advance of all scheduled meetings.

During 2010 the Board considered and made decisions on  
the following main business issues, together with routine  
administration matters:

Routine matters – Board’s annual objectives;
– Financial performance and statements;
– Risk – management, appetite, registers, reverse stress testing, creation of Risk Committee;
– Strategy – five year plan, Vision and Mission, the Brand;
– Dividends, Charitable donations and Gift Aid; 
– Corporate responsibility and ClimateWise reporting; 
– Best place to work initiative; and
– Committee reports and recommendations.

Operational matters – Underwriting arrangements and reserves; 
– Reinsurance arrangements;
– General insurance claims reserves; 
– Sales and claims; and
– Performance and strategic and business plans for Group businesses.

Projects –  Streamlining the Group through consolidation of similar businesses and reducing the number of companies; 
– Sale of most of the life business; 
–  The placing and admission of an additional £40million Non-cumulative Irredeemable Preference Shares in 

the Company on the London Stock Exchange; 
– Ceasing to write London Market business; and 
– Head office relocation.

Governance and  
regulatory matters

– Solvency II;
– Walker Report recommendations;
– New UK Corporate Governance Report;
– Stewardship Code;
– Appointment of a Deputy Chairman and Senior Independent Director;
– Improving Board effectiveness; and
– Reviewing NEDs fees.
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Attendance at meetings
Directors are required to attend all Board meetings and strategy days as well as Committee meetings.  
Below is a record of all Directors’ attendance for those meetings:

*The Rt. Revd. N. Baines retired as a Director at the Company’s AGM on 23 June 2010 following eight years’ service on the Board and 
until his retirement attended four out of six Board meetings.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Board attendance at meetings

Board and Committee  
composition and attendance

Board  
Meetings

Nominations  
Committee

Group  
Audit  

Committee

Group Risk 
 Committee

Remuneration 
Committee

Finance & 
Investment 
Committee

Total number of meetings 13 3 5 3 3 8

Executive Directors

M. H. Tripp 13 7

M. C. J. Hews 13 3

S. A. Wood 13

Non-Executive Directors

W. M. Samuel (Chairman) 13 3  
(Chairman)

8

Sir Philip Mawer  
(Deputy Chairman and  
Senior Independent Director)

12 3

J. F. Hylands 13 5 
(Chairman)

3

A. P. Latham 12 5 3  
(Chairman)

3 8

M. D. Couve 13 5 3  
(Chairman)

The Venerable Dr. N. Peyton 12 2

D. Christie 10 3 6  
(Chairman)

The Rt. Revd. N. Baines* 4



29Ecclesiastical Insurance Office plc

G
O

V
E

R
N

A
N

C
E

Board performance and evaluation
Induction

All Directors are required to undertake a formal and comprehensive 
induction to the Group upon joining the Board. The induction is a 
three stage process and is undertaken by the Secretariat.

On accepting a position on the Board, all Directors receive an 
induction pack. The pack includes the appointment letter and terms; 
latest audited report and accounts and recent quarterly accounts; 
constitutional documents; protocols on conflicts of interests, price 
sensitive information, Directors’ duties, share dealing and Board 
procedures; the Code and the Stewardship Code; Board minutes for 
the past year; Board dates and Directors’ contact details.

After appointment a two-day induction programme is provided where 
presentations are given by Legal and Secretariat, Group Compliance, 
Finance, Risk and Actuarial, Strategy and HR and Heads of the 
businesses. The programme is also offered to other Directors as  
a refresher every two years. New Directors meet individually with  
the Chairman of Allchurches Trust and the Company Chairman,  
the Deputy Chairman and SID, and the Executive Directors.

The third stage of the induction is participation in the Board’s 
Continuing Professional Development programme (“CPD”). 

Training

Throughout the year Directors participate in the CPD programme, 
which includes internal training on topical issues relevant to the 
Company’s commercial and regulatory environment; a business 
familiarisation schedule to ensure Directors spend time within the 
business on a rolling rota; and access to relevant external CPD 
opportunities, funded by the Company. In 2010 internal training was 
given on risk management, risk appetite and tolerance, Solvency II, 
claims liability, and governance. The Directors visited Procurement and 
Contracts Management, Finance, and the Investments team.

The Company Secretary maintains annual CPD records for Directors, 
which the Chairman reviews as part of their annual appraisal.

Performance evaluation

In January 2010, Independent Audit Limited conducted a formal and 
rigorous external evaluation of the Board and Directors’ individual 
performance. Recommendations were presented to the Board in the 
March Board meeting. All recommendations were adopted and the 
Nominations Committee monitored their implementation through to 
completion. The Nominations Committee intend to keep the need for 
an external evaluation process under regular review, with the intention 
that it will be undertaken every two years. 

At the start of 2011, the Chairman instigated an internal evaluation 
of the Board, its Committees and the Directors, assisted by the 
Company Secretary. All Directors were required to complete  
self-assessments which were discussed at their annual appraisals. 
The outcome of the evaluations is currently under consideration by 
the Nominations Committee. Recommendations will be circulated  
to the Board and discussed at the next Board meeting. 

Board committees
The Company has five Board Committees, a Finance and Investment 
Committee, a Group Audit Committee, a Nominations Committee,  
a Remuneration Committee and Group Risk Committee. Details of the 
Remuneration Committee are disclosed in the Remuneration Report 
on page 32, and of the Group Risk Committee in the Risk Report  
on page 38. 

Terms of reference for all committees can be obtained from  
the Company’s registered office address or the website at  
www.ecclesiastical.com/general/investorrelations/
corporategovernance/termsofreferenceofcommittees

Finance and Investment Committee

The Committee comprises the following four members:

D. Christie (Chairman)
A. P. Latham
W. M. Samuel 
M. H. Tripp

The Committee had eight scheduled meetings throughout the year. 
The remit of the Committee, as set out in its terms of reference, is to:

•  Consider and review treasury and tax strategy and policies as well 
as capital management, taking into consideration the Individual 
Capital Adequacy (“ICA”) and risk appetite;

• Consider and review major capital projects;

•  Consider and review the Group expenditure above the limit 
delegated to the Group Chief Executive by the Board;

•  Consider and review circulars to shareholders, listing particulars, and 
contracts (not in the ordinary course of business);

•  Provide broad strategy and set specific investment parameters 
for portfolio investment matters within the context of the Board’s 
assessment of overall risk to the business;

•  Consider monthly investment reports and review investment against 
benchmark levels; and

• Oversee and review performance of delegated funds.

The principal activities of the Committee during 2010 were in-line 
with its duties (above) and included involvement in corporate projects 
concerned with raising additional capital for the Company and the 
sale of most of the life business.
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Group Audit Committee

The Group Audit Committee comprises the following NEDs, appointed 
by the Board:

J. F. Hylands (Chairman)
A. P. Latham 
M. D. Couve

The Board consider that J. F. Hylands has recent and relevant  
financial experience.

The Committee had five scheduled meetings during the year.  
In addition to the members other attendees at Committee meetings 
included the Chairman of the Board, the Company Secretary, the 
Head of Internal Audit, the Chief Risk Officer, the Compliance Officer 
and the external auditor. The Committee’s remit is to:

•  Monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the Company, 
preliminary results announcements and any other formal 
announcement relating to its financial performance and the issues 
and judgements contained therein; 

•  Review and challenge the effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
controls and risk management processes; 

•  Review the effectiveness of the Group’s systems and processes 
ensuring compliance with the FSA regulatory regime;

•  Monitor and review the Group’s internal audit function in the context 
of the Group’s overall risk management system, process and cycle. 
This includes ensuring that the internal audit function has adequate 
resources and appropriate access to information to perform its 
function effectively;

•  Report to the Board after each meeting, making appropriate 
recommendations within its duties and responsibilities; and

•  Oversee the relationship and arrangements with the external 
auditors, to meet with them regularly, monitor adherence to policies, 
review audit findings, and recommend the appointment  
or reappointment of auditors and their remuneration.

The principal activities of the Committee during 2010 included:

•  Review and consideration of the 2009 financial results and  
financial statements;

•  Review and consideration of the 2010 half-yearly financial report;

•  Review of internal controls and risk management;

•  Monitoring and consideration of legal and regulatory developments;

•  Consideration of subsidiary company audits;

•  Review of the Company’s whistle-blowing policy;

•  Consideration of breaches reported and actions to be undertaken;

•  Consideration of the effectiveness of the external audit;

•  Consideration of internal audit reports; and

•  Consideration of compliance reports.

More information on internal controls can be found in the  
Directors’ Report.

Nominations Committee

To achieve consistency with the UK Corporate Governance Code 
2010, the Company renamed the Appointments Committee as the 
Nominations Committee during the year.

The Committee comprises the following NEDs, appointed by  
the Board:

W. M. Samuel (Chairman)
Sir Philip Mawer  
D. Christie

The Committee had three meetings during the year. The remit of  
the Committee, as set out in its terms of reference, is to:

• Review the structure, size and composition of the Board;

• Assess and monitor Directors’ skills, knowledge and experience;

•  Monitor and develop an appropriate balance in the Board, which fully 
meets the Company’s leadership needs; and

• Ensure succession planning in the Group.

During the year the Committee:

• Reviewed the composition of the Board;

•  Monitored the implementation of the actions recommended 
following the external Board evaluation;

•  Undertook selection and recommended the appointment  
of a new NED;

•  Reviewed and agreed a matrix of the leadership skills and technical 
skills required in order to ensure a fully effective Board; 

• Developed a CPD programme for Directors;

• Developed a new internal Board evaluation process; and 

•  Revised and further developed the Induction Plan for new Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Executive Directors’ other commitments
External directorships are considered to be valuable in terms of 
broadening the experience and knowledge of Executive Directors, 
provided there is no conflict of interest and the commitment required 
is not excessive. Such appointments are subject to the approval of 
the Board and a conflicts register is maintained by the Company in 
accordance with its policy to monitor any interests. Any monetary 
payments received by Executive Directors from outside directorships 
are paid over to and retained by the Company. 

Non-Executive Directors’ commitment
The Board believes that the NEDs, other than Mr. M.D. Couve, are 
independent. Independence is considered through each Director’s 
annual appraisal and agreed by the Board annually. The Board has 
determined that, even though Mr. D. Christie has served as a Director 
for more than nine years, he should be regarded as an independent 
NED as he remains independent in character and judgement. Mr. M.D. 
Couve has been determined not to be independent because of his 
work as a consultant to Speechly Bircham on a significant project for 
the Group, upon which Speechly Bircham have provided legal advice 
to the Board.

The Chairman evaluates the time NEDs spend on the Company’s 
business annually and is satisfied that in 2010 the NEDs fulfilled 
their time commitment as stated in their letters of appointment and  
as recommended in the Walker Report.

By order of the Board

Mrs R. J. Hall 
Secretary 
18 March 2011
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The Company is not required to prepare a remuneration report as it does not have 
listed equity shares. However, the Company has voluntarily chosen to provide 
the information in the interests of best governance practice. As a guideline for 
remuneration disclosure, the Company has used the disclosure requirements as 
set out in Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium-Sized Companies and Groups 
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008, the UK Corporate Governance Code 
and the FSA’s Policy Statement on Effectiveness of Corporate Governance and 
their Remuneration Code.

Unaudited information
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises the following NEDs, 
appointed by the Board:

M. D. Couve (Chairman)  
A. P. Latham 
The Venerable Dr. N. Peyton

The Committee was assisted in its deliberations by the Chairman 
and Group Chief Executive.

The Committee held three scheduled meetings during the year 
and determines the conditions of employment and pay and 
benefits of the Chairman, each of the Executive Directors and 
the Group Executive Team. In light of the Walker Report and FSA 
Remuneration Code, the remit of the Committee has been reviewed 
and extended to cover the remuneration policy for the whole 
Group including the over-arching principles and parameters of 
remuneration and employment terms and conditions.

The remit of the Committee in line with its terms of reference  
is as follows:

•  Determine the framework or broad policy for the remuneration of 
the Group Chief Executive, Chairman, the Executive Directors and 
other significant influence employees, and monitor the outcome of 
such policies for such employees. No Directors or managers are 
involved in decisions regarding their own remuneration;

•  Consideration of all factors to ensure that members of the 
executive management of the Company are provided with 
appropriate incentives;

•  Set the over-arching principles and parameters of remuneration 
policy on a firm wide basis;

•  Approve the design of, and determine targets for, any 
performance related pay schemes and approve the total annual 
payments made under such schemes;

•  Review the design of all share incentive plans for approval by the 
Board and shareholders;

•  Determine the policy of pension arrangements for each Executive 
Director and other significant influence employees;

•  Ensure that contractual terms on termination, and any payments 
made, are fair to the individual, and the Company, that failure is 
not rewarded and that the duty to mitigate loss is fully recognised;

•  In consultation with the Chairman and/or Group Chief Executive 
as appropriate, determine the total individual remuneration 
package of each Executive Director and other significant 
influence employees;

•  Consider advice from the Group Risk Committee on the risk 
impact of the remuneration proposals and, in particular, any risk 
adjustment mechanisms to be applied to performance objectives 
set in the context of incentive packages;

•  Consider relevant legal requirements, the provisions and 
recommendations in the UK Corporate Governance Code,  
the FSA Remuneration Code and associated guidance;

•  Annually review the remuneration trends across the Company  
and Group;

•  Oversee any major changes in employee benefits structures 
throughout the Company and Group;

•  Agree the policy for authorising claims for expenses from the 
Group Chief Executive and Chairman;

•  Ensure disclosure of remuneration (including pensions), including 
the Remuneration Committee Report, are fulfilled; 

•  Exclusive responsibility for establishing the selection criteria, 
selecting, appointing and setting the terms of reference for 
any remuneration consultants who advise the Committee, 
ensuring that any such consultants adhere to the Remuneration 
Consultants Code of Conduct; and 

•  Obtain reliable, up-to-date information about remuneration in 
comparable companies. 

REMUNERATION REPORT
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During the year external professional advice has been sought from Hewitt New Bridge Street (“HNBS”) when determining appropriate 
remuneration packages for Executive Directors and those holding significant influence functions. HNBS is a co-founding signatory of the Code of 
Conduct applying to UK remuneration consultants and was appointed by the Committee in the year. They have no other advisory engagement with 
the Company. The Committee also has access to benchmarking reports from Towers Watson and McLagan, which provide data for determining pay 
conditions throughout the Group.

Details of Executive Directors’ contractual notice periods are contained in the following table. Executive Directors have no contractual entitlement 
to termination payments other than (i) in relation to payment in lieu of salary (excluding bonuses) and contractual benefits during the notice periods 
set out below where notice is not worked and (ii) in relation to compensation under the Group’s redundancy policy should a redundancy situation 
arise. Where an Executive Director is eligible to retire early, the pension entitlement will be calculated subject to the scheme rules and no enhanced 
early retirement terms other than those applicable in general under the scheme rules will apply.

Remuneration policy 

The Group’s objective is to provide competitive remuneration  
packages, reflective of the markets in which it operates, in order  
to attract and retain high calibre employees and to encourage and 
reward superior performance. 

The Group’s policies are aimed at meeting those objectives and 
ensuring that all employees are rewarded fairly for their individual 
contributions to its performance.

Performance graph

As Ecclesiastical Insurance Office does not have publicly traded equity 
shares, total equity shareholders’ funds growth over time  
(plus the grant to Allchurches Trust) has been used in the performance 
graph compared with the FTSE 250. Total equity excludes preference 
shareholders’ capital since this is not attributable to Allchurches Trust. 

TSR – Total Shareholder Return

Ecclesiastical Insurance Office plc 5-year to 2010 TSR performance against the FTSE 250

200

150

100

50

-
Dec-05 Dec-06 Dec-07 Dec-08 Dec-09 Dec-10

FTSE 250 Total return Ecclesiatical Total Shareholder Return

Director Effective date of Ecclesiastical contract Unexpired term & notice period

M. H. Tripp 18-Dec-06 12 months

S. A. Wood 01-Sep-05 9 months

M. C. J. Hews 01-Apr-09 6 months
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Remuneration
The Group’s objective is to provide competitive remuneration packages, 
reflective of the markets in which it operates, in order to attract and 
retain high calibre employees and to encourage and reward superior 
performance. In one of the Group’s subsidiaries, achievement of this 
objective is necessarily a longer term aspiration to be met as business 
performance allows. The Group’s policies are aimed at meeting the 
above objectives and ensuring that all employees are rewarded fairly  
for their individual contributions to its performance. 

The remuneration of the Executive Directors and Group Executive Team 
comprises basic salary, pension contributions, an annual cash incentive, 
a long-term performance related cash incentive that rolls over three 
year periods, and benefits in kind. There are no other incentive or share 
option schemes because of the Group ownership structure and current 
HMRC guidelines which do not make it possible to facilitate employee 
holdings of shares, the price of which reflect Group performance. 

Base salary

Base salaries are reviewed annually. The Remuneration Committee take 
into account market data provided by remuneration consultants HNBS, 
Towers Watson and McLagan, and the competitive position of salaries. 
Individual salaries are set taking into account the market data and 
individual performance. In 2010, Executive Directors’ salaries increased 
by 4.1% overall (2009: 4.6%).

Benefits

Benefits received by Executive Directors reflect market practice and 
benefits receivable by other employees. They include life assurance, 
health insurance, a company car or car allowance and income protection.

Pensions

The Ecclesiastical defined benefit scheme was closed to new members 
in 2006 and a defined contribution scheme was introduced. 

One Executive Director, Mr. S. A. Wood, was a member of the Group’s 
defined benefit scheme during 2010 (2009: Mr. S. A. Wood and  
Mr. G. A. Prescott). In accordance with the Scheme rules, a common 
retirement age of 63 applies to all members, and pensionable service 
accrues at a rate of one-eightieth of pensionable salary for each year of 
service up to a maximum of 40 years. No pension benefits are accrued 
on bonuses or other benefits. Pension benefits for Executive Directors 
employed after June 1989 are subject to a scheme specific earnings 
cap and a cash allowance of 17% of salary above the cap is paid in lieu 
of pension contributions.

Two Executive Directors (2009: two), Mr. M. H. Tripp and  
Mr. M. C. J. Hews were members of the Group’s defined contribution 
scheme which is operated by Engage Mutual following the life business 
part-disposal in the year detailed further in notes 16 and 18 to the 
financial statements.

Annual cash incentive

The Group operates an annual cash incentive plan for Executive 
Directors and employees, designed to align Directors’ and employees’ 
interests with those of the shareholder through variable rewards linked 
directly to Group and individual performance. Award of these incentives 
is ultimately at the discretion of the Board.

The annual cash incentive plan is subject to performance conditions 
relating to the Group’s COR and individual performance targets. 
Payments under the 2010 plan are triggered when the Group’s COR 
is below 100% in respect of the Group performance condition and to 
the extent that individual performance targets are met in respect of 
the individual performance condition. Payments in respect of Group 
performance are subject to a requirement for the Group’s pre-tax 
profit to exceed £10 million and payments in respect of individual 
performance to a requirement for the Group COR to be below 104% 
and a requirement for leadership, risk and customer satisfaction 
requirements to be met. For Executive Directors the benefit under the 
plan is up to 50% of relevant salaries. 

Leaders and employees within the Group benefit from similarly 
structured annual cash incentives. In the UK annual cash incentives 
for leaders and employees are subject to the same COR target and 
relevant individual performance conditions as above. Equivalent 
schemes operate in the Group’s other territories, and for specific 
functions such as sales and investment management, appropriate 
business specific performance conditions apply.

The Company is reviewing the structure of its annual incentive plan 
in the light of the FSA Remuneration Code requirements to ensure 
compliance. Changes were made to the annual incentive plan in 2010 
to enable claw back in situations of misstatement or misconduct.

No Directors play a part in any discussion about their own remuneration.

REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED)

Executive Directors’ cash incentives and Group COR

COR Average bonus  
as percentage of 

salary %

2009 89.6% 43.5%

2010 102.0% 10.9%
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Long-term cash incentive

The Group additionally operate a long-term incentive cash plan for 
Executive Directors and senior executives designed to align Executives’ 
interests with the long-term success of the Group and the interests of 
the shareholder. 

Performance conditions for the 2008-2010 long-term incentive plan 
are as follows:

•  10% of the award vests if the Group achieves an average COR over 
the three-year performance period of 101% and a further 10% vests 
if a cumulative profit before tax of £154.3 million is achieved over the 
three-year performance period;

•  50% of the award vests if the Group achieves an average COR over 
the three-year performance period of 92% and a further 50% vests 
if a cumulative profit before tax of £223.8 million is achieved over the 
three-year performance period;

•  vesting occurs on a straight line basis between these points.

The Remuneration Committee believes that using COR and profit 
before tax as the long-term performance conditions better aligns 
the interests of Executive Directors with the shareholder as COR 
encompasses the majority of aspects of the Group’s underwriting 
performance and profit before tax incentivises overall profitability.  
The Remuneration Committee believes that taking an average COR 
and a cumulative profit before tax over a three-year period smoothes 
out cyclical insurance and stock market variations and ensures 
that over a given period, the shareholder will receive a minimum 
underwriting return and profit before tax before awards granted to 
Executive Directors vest.

COR has been calculated as the sum of the Group’s general insurance 
incurred losses and expenses divided by earned premiums for each 
financial year, with the long-term incentive performance condition 
being the sum of the COR of the Group for each financial year in the 
performance period divided by the number of financial years in the 
performance period. Cumulative profit before tax has been calculated 
as the cumulative consolidated profit (including interest, expenses and 
operating expenses) before tax of the Group for the financial years in 
the performance period.

Executive Director reward

The Remuneration Committee considers the pay and employment 
conditions applicable to leaders and employees in the rest of the Group 
when determining incentive and base salary awards for Executive 
Directors. The same performance conditions apply to employees as to 
Executive Directors in respect of the annual cash incentive plan, and for 
both senior leaders and Executive Directors in respect of the long-term 
cash incentive plan. Base salary awards for Executive Directors are 
based upon the same salary guidelines that apply to other employees.
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Pensions

The following pension benefits were accrued in 2010 by Executive Directors participating in the Defined Benefit pension scheme:

REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED)

* Annual cash incentive represents the amounts paid in the year, which are in respect of the Group’s performance in the prior year

(1) M. C. J. Hews joined the Company in April 2009 and became a director on 2 June 2009

(2) G. A. Prescott resigned as a director of the Company on 2 June 2009

In addition, a payment of £1,200 was made to a past Executive Director in 2010 in relation to entitlements under the long-term incentive plan 
(2009: £15,300). 

Director Increase 
in accrued 
pension 
during 
2010

Increase 
in accrued 
lump sum 
during 
2010

Total  
accrued 
annual  
pension  
at 31  
Dec 10

Total  
accrued 
lump sum  
at 31  
Dec 10

Transfer 
value of 
increase 
in accrued 
pension + 
lump sum

Transfer 
value of 
accrued 
pension + 
lump sum 
at 1 Jan 10

Transfer 
value of 
accrued 
pension + 
lump sum 
at 31  
Dec 10

Increase/
(decrease) in 
transfer value 
of accrued 
benefit  
during the 
year (excl  
Directors’ own 
contributions)

£000 pa £000 £000 pa £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

S. A. Wood 1.5 4.6 8.8 26.4 20.8 93.3 120.4 27.1

Audited information
The actual total cash compensation paid to Executive Directors in 2010 is outlined in the tables below: 

REmUNERaTION OF ExECUTIvE DIRECTORS

Director  Base Salary & 
allowances

Benefits annual cash 
incentive*

 Long-term 
incentive

2010 
Total

2009  
Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

M. H. Tripp 326 1 135 20 482 386

S. A. Wood 256 12 103 14 385 321

M. C. J. Hews1 221 1 115 4 341 177

G. A. Prescott2 - - 53 15 68 269

TOTAL 803 14 406 53 1,276 1,153
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Pensions

The following pension benefits were accrued in 2010 by Executive Directors participating in the Defined Benefit pension scheme:

The following employer pension contributions were made by the 
Company in 2010 in respect of the following Executive Directors 
participating in the Defined Contribution pension scheme. 

Director Employer contribution

2010 2009

£000 £000

M. H. Tripp 47 45

M. C. J. Hews 31 18

Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors

NED fees are normally reviewed on a biennial basis and are a matter 
for the Chairman and the Executive Directors. No Directors are involved 
in any decisions regarding their own remuneration. With effect from 1 
January 2010, the structure of NED fees was amended such that NEDs 
received an annual fee in respect of their Board appointments, inclusive 
of all Committees, and where applicable additional fees for chairing 
Committees. The Chairman’s and Deputy Chairman’s fees remained 
all inclusive. NED fees were adjusted with effect from 1 January 2010 
in light of market benchmark movements since the last adjustment in 
January 2007 and the increased responsibilities of NED roles.

NEDs do not have service contracts and are not eligible for pensions or 
other benefits or for annual or long term cash incentive plans. No other 
significant awards have been made to past or present NEDs in 2010.

The fees in relation to the Company for the year were:

*  N. J. E. Sealy retired as Chairman of the Company and W. M. Samuel 
was appointed as Chairman of the Company on 24 June 2009.

**  Sir Philip Mawer was appointed as Deputy Chairman of the Company 
on 2 February 2010.

***  The Rt. Revd. N. Baines retired as a Director at the Annual General 
Meeting on 23 June 2010.

**** Ms. D. P. Wilson was appointed as a Director on 16 December 2010.

By order of the Board

M.D. Couve 
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
18 March 2011

Director Total 2010 Total 2009

£000 £000

W. M. Samuel* 68.0 57.5 

N. J. E. Sealy* - 34.0 

Sir Philip Mawer** 41.0 21.6 

The Rt. Revd. N. Baines*** 15.0 22.6 

D. Christie 36.0 28.1 

M. D. Couve 34.0 26.6 

J. F. Hylands 38.0 31.5 

A. P. Latham 38.0 30.6 

N. Peyton 35.0 26.5 

Ms. D. P. Wilson**** 2.8  - 

TOTaL 307.8 279.0 
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During 2010, following recommendations made in the Walker Report the  
Company created a Group Risk Committee and has voluntarily chosen to include  
a Risk Report in the Annual Report of the Company.

Group Risk Committee
The Group Risk Committee was created in June 2010 and 
comprises the following Directors appointed by the Board:

A. P. Latham (Chairman)
M. C. J. Hews
J. F. Hylands

The Group Risk and Actuarial Director (member of the Group 
Executive Team) is the Chief Risk Officer. He reports directly to  
the Committee and has direct access to the Chairman and NEDs. 
His remuneration is approved by the Remuneration Committee  
and by the Board.

The Committee had three scheduled meetings this year.  
In accordance with its terms of reference its responsibilities are to:

•  Determine and monitor the Group’s overall risk appetite, tolerance 
and strategy;

•  Recommend the Group’s strategy, policy and processes  
for risk management;

•  Monitor the operational effectiveness of risk policies  
and systems;

•  Receive and review risk-based management information and  
bi-monthly risk management reports and make recommendations 
for change as and when appropriate;

•  Consider the effect on the risks of the Group of material findings 
of compliance reports, as well as reported breaches and any 
proposed regulatory changes;

•  Consider the effect on the risks of the Group of the material 
findings of Internal Audit reports carried out for the Group  
Audit Committee;

•  Review annual ICA updates and recommend acceptance  
to the Board;

•  Ensure a risk management culture is embedded in the Group; 

•  Meet with the Group Risk and Actuarial Director at least once a 
year without the Executive present;

•  Advise the Remuneration Committee on the risk impact of 
remuneration proposals;

•  Ensure appropriate liaison with other Board Committees  
e.g. Remuneration Committee and Group Audit Committee.

During the year it has considered the following business:

•  Consideration of all risk matters relative to the business including 
emerging risks and risk appetite;

• Review of applicable legal and regulatory matters;

• Training of the new committee members and the Board; 

• Development of a rolling annual reporting framework; and

•  Review of risk policies in relation to general insurance, the life 
business and financial crime.

In early 2011, the Committee will review policies and consider 
implementation of any necessary changes as a result of the Bribery 
Act 2010. The anticipated requirements of Solvency II will be 
reviewed throughout the year.

RISK REPORT
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Enterprise Risk Management
Ecclesiastical has adopted the following high-level definition:

Enterprise Risk Management: “The proactive enterprise-wide strategic 
process designed to identify and manage all the individual and 
aggregated risks that could impact the organisation’s ability to deliver  
its objectives.” 

It deals with both managing downside risks (threats) and supporting 
upside risks (opportunities). Risk arises as much from missed 
opportunities as it does from possible threats. 

The Company follows the Risk Management Standard as published by 
the Institute of Risk Management. Risk Management is a central part 
of the Company’s strategic management. It is the process whereby the 
Company methodically and consistently addresses the risks attaching 
to its activities with the aim of achieving sustained benefit within 
each activity and across the portfolio of all activities. The benefits and 
opportunities should be viewed not just in the context of the Group itself 
but in relation to the many and varied stakeholders who can be affected.

The focus of good risk management is the identification and treatment of 
these risks. 

It is a continuous and evolving process which runs throughout the 
Company’s strategy and the implementation of that strategy. It addresses 
all the risks surrounding the Company’s activities past, present and in 
particular, future on an enterprise-wide basis. 

It is integrated into the culture of the Company with an effective 
policy and a programme led by the Group Executive Team. It assigns 
responsibility throughout the organisation with each manager and 
employee responsible for the management of risk as part of their job 
description. It supports accountability, performance measurement and 
reward, thus promoting operational efficiency at all levels. 

Management of key risks
Each year the Board assesses the Group risks and action plans are 
drawn up to manage these risks to the target level defined by the Board. 
The key material risks identified are summarised below.

Pricing risk

Pricing risk is described as the risk of failing to price adequately for 
claims costs, expenses, cost of capital and profit requirements; failure to 
manage portfolio risk; failure to manage the underwriting cycle; failure to 
establish appropriate underwriting disciplines.

Disciplined underwriting and pricing is central to the business and 
key to the success of Ecclesiastical. In the past year sales, claims 
and underwriting academies have been developed to support these 
activities and to ensure the correct skill set is maintained and developed. 
Benchmarking of actuarial pricing techniques together with the high 
level of underwriting expertise and market knowledge underpinned by 
technical audits allows Ecclesiastical to manage this risk.

A clear focus on being a specialist and a strategy of diversification  
within the type of business underwritten and between territories helps  
to manage the underwriting cycle and reduce the variability of the 
expected outcome.

Reinsurance risk 

Reinsurance risk is defined as the risk of failing to access and manage 
reinsurance capacity to support the overall capital management strategy.

A strong reinsurance programme is a key part of the Ecclesiastical 
business model. It has enabled Ecclesiastical to accept and grow the 
insurance business and therefore its appetite for this exposure to the 
reinsurance market has always been accepted as high, and a robust 
mitigation framework is in place to manage the risk. The reinsurance 
strategy is long-term and is based on achieving objectives through 
establishing long term relationships rather than opportunistic purchases.

The capital management strategy currently being further enhanced will 
help pull together all risks to the capital position (including reinsurance 
and investments risks) in an integrated way.

Claims reserving risk

Claims reserving risk is defined as the risk of actual claims and benefit 
payments exceeding the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities.

Ecclesiastical’s careful selection of risks starts with the strategy to 
underwrite primarily property business, with longer tail liability business 
only as part of a comprehensive package. This helps reduce the average 
time to receiving and paying out claims and hence the uncertainty 
surrounding claims reserving. 

Claims development and reserving levels are closely monitored.  
To ensure that prudent provisions are made an addition is made to the 
most likely outcome. This approach generally results in a favourable 
release of provisions in the current financial year, arising from the 
settlement of claims from previous financial years. Claims reserves are 
reviewed and signed off by an Executive Reserve Sign-Off Management 
Committee and the Board acting on the advice and recommendations of 
a suitably qualified and experienced internal actuarial team.

More information on insurance risk (pricing, reinsurance and claims 
reserving) can be found in notes 3 and 30 to the financial statements.

Financial risk

Financial risk is the risk that the proceeds from financial assets are not 
sufficient to fund the obligations arising from insurance and investment 
contracts. Key risks within financial risk are market and credit risk. 

Market risk includes uncertainty around investment performance  
(e.g. interest rate movements and falls in the values of equities), 
mismatching between liabilities and assets (both by timing and nature) 
and currency risks (exchange rate movements). 
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A robust management framework is in place to mitigate the impact to 
the Group of falls in the value of equities and changes in interest rates. 
The Investment function manages the portfolio in accordance with the 
investment strategy and guidelines agreed by the Finance & Investment 
Committee of the Board. Large equity falls have been experienced in 
recent years and, although significant for the Group, the coverage of risk-
based capital requirements has been maintained at a strong level. The 
equity portfolio typically has a beta of less than 1. This implies it is less 
volatile than the market. Currency risk is appropriately monitored  
and controlled with oversight by the Finance function.

Key elements of credit risk are exposure to counterparty risk through 
investments and the purchase of reinsurance. Investment counterparty 
risk is controlled by the investment strategy and guidelines. Reinsurer 
credit risk is controlled by the Reinsurance Security Committee through 
careful selection and monitoring of reinsurance partners with appropriate 
financial strength.

More information on financial risk can be found in note 4 to the  
financial statements.

Cost management risk 

Cost management risk is described as the risk of failing to provide 
adequate technology and processes to support the business in an 
efficient and cost effective way. 

A balance between use of skilled internal resource working in partnership 
with external specialists who are able to cross skill to Ecclesiastical own 
staff is the resourcing model being adopted. Effective use of the contract 
management/purchasing teams continues to reduce cost and ensure 
best value.

Business intelligence risk

Business intelligence risk is described as the risk of shortfalls in the 
quality or availability of management information for decision making.

Over the last year there has been greater focus on data quality and 
efficiency of producing information through the first phase of a new data 
warehouse development and local activity. The next two developments of 
the data warehouse will see further substantial progress in 2011. 

Competition and distribution risk

Competition and distribution risk is described as the risk of failing to 
recognise and address changes in a competitive market, particularly 
competitors’ actions within Ecclesiastical niches, as well as the impact  
on resources including talent management both from a local and  
global perspective. 

From a distribution and concentration risk perspective, this includes an 
imbalance of bargaining power with major distributors plus customer 
concentration with a small number of distributors.

The Group Executive Team is aware of the Group’s key competitors.  
They are monitored and their impact on our markets is managed. There 
is a strong focus on delivering excellent customer service through our 
chains of distribution. Having a number of distribution channels helps 
diversify the distribution risk as does transacting business with a broker 
panel which is well diversified to avoid concentration risk.

Risk management
The Group Executive Team is responsible for managing the above risks 
and for ensuring that a strong control framework is in place in all areas of 
the business. Each Group Executive member assesses the strategic risks 
identified by the Board in relation to the specific areas they manage on 
an annual basis or when a major change affects their area. 

In addition to this, each operational manager is responsible for identifying 
and managing the operational risks in their own area formally at least on 
a bi-annual basis, and to undertake the necessary actions to ensure the 
risks are managed to the level consistent with the Board risk limits set in 
the risk appetite.

All actions are regularly reviewed and progress is monitored and reported 
to the Group Risk Committee at strategic level and to the Enterprise Risk 
Committee at operational level through a bi-monthly report. 

The Group Audit Committee provides independent assurance of the 
strength and effectiveness of the Group’s internal systems of control 
through the activities of the Internal Audit and Compliance functions as 
well as the external auditors.

Risk appetite
Ecclesiastical has a mature risk appetite framework which sets the 
risk limits and tolerances the Board is willing to accept in the following 
categories: Strategic, Financial (Market, Credit, Liquidity), Insurance and 
Operational risks. These limits are linked directly to the level of economic 
capital the Board of Ecclesiastical requires to protect its customers and 
owners in the long and short-term.

The level of risks is monitored regularly against the appetite and strategic 
decisions are made with appropriate reference to it.

Stress testing framework
A comprehensive scenario and stress testing framework is being 
developed to expand the existing financial risks stress testing 
assessment part of the planning process, and the operational risk 
scenario testing. The aim is to integrate the two processes to deliver  
a true Enterprise Risk reporting framework. 

By order of the Board

A.P. Latham
Chairman of the Group Risk Committee
18 March 2011

RISK REPORT (CONTINUED)
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial 
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements 
for each financial year. Under that law the Directors are required 
to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by 
the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and have 
also chosen to prepare the parent company financial statements 
under IFRSs as adopted by the EU. Under company law the 
Directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied 
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. 
In preparing these financial statements, International Accounting 
Standard 1 requires that Directors:

• properly select and apply accounting policies;

•  present information, including accounting policies, in a  
manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and 
understandable information; 

•  provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific 
requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to 
understand the impact of particular transactions, other events 
and conditions on the Company’s financial position and financial 
performance; and

•  make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting 
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s 
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time 
the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure 
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention 
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of 
the corporate and financial information included on the Company’s 
website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the 
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ 
from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement 
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

•  the financial statements, prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards, give a true and 
fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit 
or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the 
consolidation taken as a whole; and

•  the Review of Group Operations and the Risk Report, which 
are incorporated into the Directors’ Report, include a fair review 
of the development and performance of the business and the 
position of the Company and the undertakings included in the 
consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of 
the principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

By order of the Board

M. H. Tripp  M. C. J. Hews
Group Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
18 March 2011 18 March 2011
 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of  
Ecclesiastical Insurance Office plc

We have audited the financial statements of Ecclesiastical Insurance 
Office plc for the year ended 31 December 2010 which comprise the 
consolidated income statement, the consolidated and parent company 
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated and parent 
company statement of changes in equity, the consolidated and parent 
company statement of financial position, the consolidated and parent 
company statement of cash flows and the related notes 1 to 41. The 
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 
is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the parent 
company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in 
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. 
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them 
in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone 
other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our 
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Respective responsibilities of Directors 
and Auditor
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, 
the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial 
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. 
Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial 
statements in accordance with applicable law and International 
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require  
us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards 
for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the  
financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an 
assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to 
the Group’s and the parent company’s circumstances and have been 
consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness 
of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors; and the 
overall presentation of the financial statements.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion:

•  the financial statements give a true and fair view of the  
state of the Group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at  
31 December 2010 and of the Group’s profit for the year  
then ended;

•  the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in 
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;

•  the parent company financial statements have been properly 
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European 
Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act 2006; and

•  the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the 
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by 
the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the 
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is 
consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to 
report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following:

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if,  
in our opinion:

•  adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent 
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received 
from branches not visited by us; or

•  the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with 
the accounting records and returns; or

•  certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are 
not made; or

•  we have not received all the information and explanations we 
require for our audit.

Other matters
In our opinion the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be 
audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act 2006 that would have applied if the company 
had listed equity shares.

Colin Rawlings 
(Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor 
London, United Kingdom
18 March 2011
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COnsOlIdatEd InCOmE statEmEnt
for the year ended 31 december 2010

  Notes 2010  2009 
   £000  £000 

Revenue   
Gross written premiums   5, 6   487,927   436,986 
Outward reinsurance premiums   6  (171,083) (159,098)
net change in provision for unearned premiums   6  (14,306) (10,557)
Net earned premiums    302,538   267,331 
   
Fee and commission income    5   51,071   48,008 
net investment return   7   86,070   89,424 
Total revenue    439,679   404,763 
   
Expenses   
Claims and change in insurance liabilities   8  (374,473) (200,364)
Reinsurance recoveries   8   163,398   51,564 
Fees, commissions and other acquisition costs   9  (95,156) (83,412)
Other operating and administrative expenses   (69,797) (74,090)
Change in net asset value attributable to unitholders   (13,080) (18,171)
Total operating expenses   (389,108) (324,473)
   
Operating profit    50,571   80,290 
Finance costs   14  (128) (224)
Profit before tax   5   50,443   80,066 
tax expense   15  (13,717) (22,525)
Profit for the year from continuing operations    36,726   57,541 
net loss attributable to discontinued operations   16  (2,281) (1,351)
Profit for the year (attributable to equity holders of the parent)  10   34,445   56,190 
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 2010 2009
 Group Parent Group Parent
 £000 £000 £000 £000

net fair value (losses)/gains on property (56) 6 (422) (123)
Gain on currency translation differences  10,124   2,597   6,670   1,161 
Net income recognised directly in equity   10,068  2,603   6,248   1,038 
    
Profit for the year  34,445   34,841   56,190   54,943 
Total comprehensive income attributable  
to equity holders of the parent  44,513  37,444   62,438   55,981 

COnsOlIdatEd and PaREnt statEmEnt OF COmPREhEnsIvE InCOmE
for the year ended 31 december 2010
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 share  share  Equalisation  Revaluation  translation  Retained  
 capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings  total 
 £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Group 
At 1 January 2010  80,477   4,632   21,674   980   18,496   266,561   392,820 

total comprehensive income 
attributable to equity holders of the parent -  -  -  (56)  10,124   34,445   44,513 
Issue of share capital  40,000  -  -  -  -  -   40,000 
dividends -  -  -  -  -  (5,731) (5,731)
net charitable grant to ultimate parent -  -  -  -  -  (13,860) (13,860)
Group tax relief in excess of standard rate -  -  -  -  -  (835) (835)
Reserve transfers -  -  (2,995) -  -   2,995  - 
At 31 December 2010  120,477   4,632   18,679   924   28,620   283,575   456,907 
       
At 1 January 2009  80,477   4,632   18,012   1,402   11,826   225,961   342,310 
total comprehensive income 
attributable to equity holders of the parent -  -  -  (422)  6,670   56,190   62,438 
dividends -  -  -  -  -  (5,731) (5,731)
net charitable grant to ultimate parent -  -  -  -  -  (6,120) (6,120)
Group tax relief in excess of standard rate -  -  -  -  -  (77) (77)
Reserve transfers -  -   3,662  -  -  (3,662) - 
At 31 December 2009  80,477   4,632   21,674   980   18,496   266,561   392,820 
       
Parent        
At 1 January 2010  80,477   4,632   20,709   447   8,223   203,132   317,620 
total comprehensive income 
attributable to equity holders -  -  -   6   2,597   34,841   37,444 
Issue of share capital  40,000  -  -  -  -  -   40,000 
dividends -  -  -  -  -  (5,731) (5,731)
net charitable grant to ultimate parent -  -  -  -  -  (13,860) (13,860)
Group tax relief in excess of standard rate -  -  -  -  -  (2,398) (2,398)
Reserve transfers -  -  (3,215) -  -   3,215  - 
At 31 December 2010  120,477   4,632   17,494   453   10,820   219,199   373,075 
       
At 1 January 2009  80,477   4,632   17,232   570   7,062   166,310   276,283 
total comprehensive income 
attributable to equity holders -  -  -  (123)  1,161   54,943   55,981 
dividends -  -  -  -  -  (5,731) (5,731)
net charitable grant to ultimate parent -  -  -  -  -  (6,120) (6,120)
Group tax relief in excess of standard rate -  -  -  -  -  (2,793) (2,793)
Reserve transfers -  -   3,477  -  -  (3,477) - 
At 31 December 2009  80,477   4,632   20,709   447   8,223   203,132   317,620

the equalisation reserve is not distributable and must be kept in compliance with the insurance companies’ reserves regulations.  
the revaluation reserve represents cumulative net fair value gains on owner occupied property. the translation reserve arises on consolidation 
of the Group and Parent’s foreign operations. 

COnsOlIdatEd and PaREnt statEmEnt OF ChanGEs In EquIty 
for the year ended 31 december 2010
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  Notes 2010 2009 
  Group   Parent  Group   Parent 
  £000   £000  £000   £000 

Assets      
Goodwill and other intangible assets 19   25,923   3,841   26,421   3,716 
deferred acquisition costs 20   41,482   30,903   38,298   26,858 
deferred tax assets 35   4,520   897   3,373   670 
Pension assets 21   30,185   28,061   27,495   25,519 
Property, plant and equipment 22   9,417   5,262   9,933   6,026 
Investment property 23   24,641   25,641   24,732   20,950 
Financial investments 24   834,163   630,341   1,054,202   533,474 
Reinsurers’ share of contract liabilities 30   286,194   159,191   193,891   137,454 
Current tax recoverable  110   110   110  - 
Other assets  26   136,661   102,560   122,402   100,942 
Cash and cash equivalents 27   164,805   125,237   193,584   134,683 
Total assets  1,558,101   1,112,044   1,694,441   990,292 
      
Equity      
share capital 28   120,477   120,477   80,477   80,477 
share premium account 29   4,632   4,632   4,632   4,632 
Retained earnings and other reserves  331,798   247,966   307,711   232,511 
Total shareholders’ equity  456,907   373,075   392,820   317,620 
      
Liabilities      
Insurance contract liabilities 30   965,309   633,669   979,318   560,283 
Investment contract liabilities 31  -  -   51,822  - 
unallocated divisible surplus 32  -   -   21,489  - 
Finance lease obligations 33   1,898   1,898   1,696   1,683 
Provisions for other liabilities 34   11,227   9,745   14,230   12,037 
Retirement benefit obligations 21   8,652   8,652   6,115   6,115 
deferred tax liabilities 35   42,321   40,912   41,127   37,103 
Current tax liabilities  2,700   713   7,458   4,696 
deferred income 36   20,562   13,842   20,637   14,021 
Other liabilities 37   48,525   29,538   52,865   36,734 
net asset value attributable to unitholders 18 -  -   104,864  - 
Total liabilities  1,101,194   738,969   1,301,621   672,672 
      
Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities  1,558,101   1,112,044   1,694,441   990,292

the financial statements of Ecclesiastical Insurance Office plc, registered number 24869, on pages 44 to 112 were approved by the Board  
of directors on 18 march 2011 and signed on their behalf by:

W. m. samuel: Chairman

m. h. tripp: Group Chief Executive 

COnsOlIdatEd and PaREnt statEmEnt OF FInanCIal POsItIOn
at 31 december 2010
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 2010 2009 
  Group   Parent  Group   Parent 
  £000   £000  £000   £000 

Profit before tax   50,443   43,196   80,066  73,787 
Adjustments for:    
loss before tax on discontinued operations  (1,858)  -  (1,084)   - 
depreciation of property, plant and equipment   2,490   1,880   2,584  1,963 
loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment   356   24   14  13 
amortisation of intangible assets   2,050   1,208   1,967  988 
loss on disposal of intangible assets    -   -   91  91 
net fair value gains on financial instruments  
& investment property  (44,048) (24,915) (69,358) (25,591)
dividend and interest income  (53,685) (28,292) (48,950) (25,904)
Finance and share issue expenses   501   477   185  220 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:    
net increase/(decrease) in insurance contract liabilities  140,245   69,854   4,037  (11,809)
net (increase)/decrease in reinsurers’ share of  
contract liabilities  (78,914) (20,836)  11,453  14,490 
net increase in investment contract liabilities   4,005   -   10,878  - 
net increase in deferred acquisition costs  (2,561) (3,737) (3,209) (2,470)
net increase in other assets  (18,787) (5,373) (12,230) (6,055)
net increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities   486  (2,214)  6,999  5,087 
net increase in other liabilities   113,968   245   55,520   1,413 
Cash generated by operations   114,691   31,517   38,963  26,223 

dividends received   17,286   10,725   12,730   8,737 
Interest received   34,196   16,366   37,763  17,896 
Interest paid  (152) (128) (185) (220)
tax paid  (9,085) (3,272) (6,902) (3,086)
Net cash from operating activities   156,936  55,208   82,369  49,550 

Cash flows from investing activities    
Purchases of property, plant and equipment  (1,536) (559) (1,638) (981)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment  42  -   55  - 
Purchases of intangible assets  (1,467) (1,297) (1,505) (1,244)
Investment in subsidiaries, net of cash acquired  -  (3,150) (200) (1,828)
disposal of businesses, net of cash transferred  (587)  3,201  -  - 
Cash derecognised on deconsolidation of OEICs  (31,554) -  -  - 
Purchases of financial investments & investment property (333,903) (112,883) (138,950) (33,101)
sale of financial instruments & investment property   168,538   39,495   122,737  63,357 
Net cash (used by)/from investing activities  (200,467) (75,193) (19,501)  26,203 

Cash flows from financing activities    
net proceeds from the issue of shares   39,827   39,827  -   - 
Payment of finance lease liabilities  (336) (339) (339) (333)
Payment of group tax relief in excess of standard rate (111) (1,471) (59) (2,059)
dividends paid to company’s shareholders  (5,731) (5,731) (5,731) (5,731)
donations paid to ultimate parent undertaking  (23,750) (23,750) (7,000) (7,000)
Net cash from/(used by) financing activities   9,899   8,536  (13,129) (15,123)

 Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (33,632) (11,449)  49,739  60,630 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year   193,584   134,683   146,009  77,465 
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and cash equivalents  4,853   2,003  (2,164) (3,412)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year   164,805   125,237   193,584  134,683

COnsOlIdatEd and PaREnt statEmEnt OF Cash FlOWs
for the year ended 31 december 2010
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1 accounting policies
Ecclesiastical Insurance Office plc (hereafter referred to as the 
“Company”, or “Parent”), a public limited company incorporated and 
domiciled in England, together with its subsidiaries (collectively, the 
“Group”) operates principally as a provider of general and long-term 
insurance, with offices in the uK, Ireland, Canada, australia and new 
Zealand. the principal accounting policies adopted in preparing the 
Group’s International Financial Reporting standards (IFRs) financial 
statements are set out below.

Basis of preparation

the Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared using 
the following accounting policies, which are in accordance with IFRs 
applicable at 31 december 2010 issued by the International accounting 
standards Board and endorsed by the European union. the financial 
statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for 
the revaluation of properties and certain financial instruments.

a review of the Group’s business activities is provided within the 
Review of Group Operations. In addition, notes 3 and 4 to the financial 
statements disclose the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties, 
including exposures to insurance and financial risk and the Group’s 
objectives for managing capital. the Group has considerable financial 
resources and, as a consequence, the directors believe the Group is 
well-placed to manage its business risks successfully and continue 
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. accordingly, they 
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual 
report and accounts.

In accordance with IFRs 4, Insurance Contracts, the Group has 
applied existing accounting practices for insurance and participating 
investment contracts, modified as appropriate to comply with the IFRs 
framework and applicable standards.

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s 
entities are measured in the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which that entity operates (the ‘functional currency’). 
the consolidated financial statements are stated in sterling, which is 
the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

In the current year the Group has adopted Ias 27 (revised), 
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and IFRs 3 (revised), 
Business Combinations, with no impact on the current or any prior 
periods.  Ias 27 (revised) requires transactions with non-controlling 
interests to be recorded in equity if there is no change in control and 
IFRs 3 (revised) requires some significant changes to accounting for 
future business combinations, for example all acquisition related costs 
should be expensed. an amendment to IFRs 8, Operating Segments 
became effective during the year and removes the requirement to 
disclose total assets by segment where this is not provided regularly 
to the chief operating decision maker. minor amendments to Ias 36, 
Impairment of Assets and Ias 38, Intangible Assets became effective 
and might impact future periods in respect of the measurement of goodwill 
and intangible assets in the event of future business combinations.

the Group has not adopted early Ias 24 (revised), Related Party 
Disclosures (effective 1 January 2011) or IFRs 9, Financial 
Instruments (effective 1 January 2013). IFRs 9 establishes principles 
for the financial reporting of financial assets, simplifying the existing 
Ias 39 classifications and measurement methods, and Ias 24 (revised) 
amends the definition of a related party. neither standard is expected to 
significantly impact the Group.

as permitted by section 408 of the Companies act 2006, a separate 
profit and loss account for the Company is not presented.

Use of estimates

the preparation of financial statements requires the use of estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements. although these estimates are based 
on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual 
results ultimately may differ from those estimates.

Operating profit or loss

Operating profit or loss is stated before finance costs and transfers to/
from the unallocated divisible surplus.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries
subsidiaries are those entities in which the Group, directly or indirectly, 
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies in order 
to gain economic benefits. the results and cash flows relating to 
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of in the year are included in the 
consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement of  
cash flows from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal.  
all inter-company transactions, balances and profits are eliminated.

In the Parent statement of financial position subsidiaries are accounted 
for within financial investments at cost, in accordance with Ias 27, 
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements.

the Group uses the purchase method of accounting to account for 
business combinations. the cost of an acquisition is measured as the 
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities 
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities 
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are 
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective 
of the extent of any non-controlling interest. the excess of the cost of 
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable 
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition 
is less than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is 
recognised directly in the income statement.

For business combinations involving entities or businesses under 
common control, the cost of the acquisition equals the value of net 
assets transferred, as recognised by the transferor at the date of the 
transaction. no goodwill arises on such transactions.

nOtEs tO thE FInanCIal statEmEnts
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Investment vehicles
Investment vehicles such as mutual funds, where the Group has  
a controlling interest, are consolidated. the non-controlling interests  
in these vehicles are classified as liabilities and appear as net asset 
value attributable to unitholders in the consolidated statement of 
financial position.

Foreign currency translation

the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated from their 
functional currencies into the Group’s presentation currency using year end 
exchange rates, and their income and expenses using average exchange 
rates for the year. Exchange differences arising from the translation of the 
net investment in foreign operations are taken to the currency translation 
reserve within equity. On disposal of a foreign operation, such exchange 
differences are transferred out of this reserve and are recognised in the 
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional  
currency using exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. 
Exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such 
transactions, and from the translation of monetary assets and  
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, are recognised in  
the income statement.

Product classification

Contracts under which the Group accepts significant insurance risk 
from another party (the policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the 
policyholder or other beneficiary if a specified uncertain future event 
(the insured event) adversely affects the policyholder, are classified as 
insurance contracts. Contracts that do not transfer significant insurance 
risk are classified as investment or service contracts.

Both insurance and investment contracts may contain a discretionary 
participating feature, which is defined as a contractual right to receive 
additional benefits as a supplement to guaranteed benefits. these 
participating contracts are referred to as with-profit contracts in the 
financial statements. Contracts that do not contain a discretionary 
participating feature are referred to as non-profit contracts in the 
financial statements.

amounts collected under investment contracts without a discretionary 
participating feature, referred to as investment contracts in the financial 
statements, are not accounted for through the income statement, 
except for the investment income attributable to those contracts,  
but are accounted for directly through the statement of financial 
position as an adjustment to the investment contract liability.

Premium income

General insurance business
Premiums are shown gross of commission paid to intermediaries  
and accounted for in the period in which the risk commences.  
Estimates are included for premiums not notified by the year end 
and provision is made for the anticipated lapse of renewals not yet 
confirmed. those proportions of premiums written in a year which relate 
to periods of risk extending beyond the end of the year are carried 
forward as unearned premiums.

Premiums written include adjustments to premiums written in prior 
periods and estimates for pipeline premiums and are shown net 
of insurance premium taxes. Outward reinsurance premiums are 
accounted for in the same accounting period as the premiums for the 
related direct insurance or inwards reinsurance business.

Long-term business 
For insurance contracts, premiums are recognised as revenue when the 
liabilities arising from them are created. all other premiums including 
annuity considerations are accounted for when due for payment.

For investment contracts, amounts collected as premiums are not 
included in the income statement but are reported as deposits to 
investment contract liabilities in the statement of financial position. 
Outward reinsurance premiums on investment contract liabilities are 
similarly reported as deposits to reinsurers share of contract liabilities  
in the statement of financial position.

Revenue from investment contracts

Fees charged for investment management services are recognised as 
revenue as the services are provided. Initial fees, which exceed the level of 
recurring fees and relate to the future provision of services are deferred 
and amortised over the anticipated period in which services will be provided. 
Fees charged for investment management services for institutional and 
retail fund management are also recognised on this basis.

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income consists primarily of reinsurance 
commissions receivable in addition to income from the Group’s 
insurance broking activities, investment fund management fees, 
distribution fees from mutual funds and commission revenue from the 
sale of mutual fund shares. Reinsurance commissions receivable and 
other commission income are recognised on the trade date. Income 
generated from insurance placements are recognised at the inception 
date of the cover. Revenue from investment management fees and 
distribution fees is recognised when earned.

Net investment return

net investment return consists of dividends, interest and rents 
receivable for the year, realised gains and losses, and unrealised 
gains and losses on financial instruments and investment properties. 
dividends on equity securities are recorded as revenue on the  
ex-dividend date. Interest and rental income is recognised as it accrues.

unrealised gains and losses are calculated as the difference between 
carrying value and original cost, and the movement during the year is 
recognised in the income statement. the value of realised gains and 
losses includes an adjustment for previously recognised unrealised 
gains or losses on investments disposed of in the accounting period.

Claims

long-term insurance business maturity claims and annuities are 
charged against revenue when they become payable. surrenders are 
accounted for when paid or, if earlier, on the date when the policy 
ceases to be included within the calculation of the long-term business 
provision or the technical provision for linked liabilities. death claims 

nOtEs tO thE FInanCIal statEmEnts
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and all other claims are accounted for when notified. Reinsurance 
recoveries are accounted for in the same period as the related claim. 
For investment contracts, claims are not included in the income 
statement but are instead deducted from investment contract liabilities.

General insurance claims incurred include all losses occurring during 
the year, whether reported or not, related handling costs, a reduction 
for the value of salvage and other recoveries, and any adjustments to 
claims outstanding from previous years.

Claims handling costs include all internal and external costs incurred in 
connection with the negotiation and settlement of claims.

Insurance contract liabilities

General insurance provisions

(i) Outstanding claims provisions
General insurance outstanding claims provisions are based on the 
estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at the 
year end date, whether reported or not, together with related claims 
handling costs. significant delays are experienced in the notification 
and settlement of certain types of general insurance claims, particularly 
in respect of liability business, the ultimate cost of which cannot be 
known with certainty at the year end date. any estimate represents a 
determination within a range of possible outcomes. Claims provisions 
are not discounted.

(ii) Provision for unearned premiums
the proportion of written premiums, gross of commission payable to 
intermediaries, attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a 
provision for unearned premiums. the change in this provision is taken 
to the income statement in order that revenue is recognised over the 
period of risk.

(iii) Liability adequacy
at each reporting date, the Group reviews its unexpired risks and 
carries out a liability adequacy test for any overall excess of expected 
claims and deferred acquisition costs over unearned premiums, 
using the current estimates of future cash flows under its contracts. 
unexpired risks are assessed separately for each class of business. 
surpluses and deficits are offset where business classes are 
considered to be managed together.

Long-term business provisions
under current IFRs requirements, insurance contract liabilities are 
measured using accounting policies consistent with those adopted 
previously. accounting for such contracts is determined in accordance 
with the statement of Recommended Practice issued by the 
association of British Insurers in december 2005.

the long-term business provision is determined using methods  
and assumptions approved by the directors based on advice from the 
actuarial Function holder. Initially it is calculated to comply with the 
reporting requirements under the Prudential sourcebook for Insurers. 
this statutory solvency basis of valuation is then adjusted by eliminating 
or adjusting certain reserves advised under insurance companies 
regulations and general contingency reserves. this adjusted basis  
is referred to as the modified statutory solvency basis. 

the consequent long-term business provision is grossed up for  
the impact of reinsurance.

Unallocated divisible surplus
surpluses arising on the long-term business funds are determined 
by an actuarial valuation of the assets and liabilities relating to each 
fund. a proportion of the surplus on the participating fund, referred to 
as the with-profit fund in the financial statements, is appropriated by 
the directors to with-profit policyholders by way of bonuses, with the 
unallocated balance carried forward in the unallocated divisible surplus.

Investment contract liabilities

Investment contracts consist primarily of unit-linked contracts. 
unit-linked liabilities are measured by reference to the value of the 
underlying net asset value of the selected unitised investment funds 
at the year end date. the holdings in these funds are designated at 
fair value through profit or loss. In order to prevent a measurement 
inconsistency investment contract liabilities have also been designated 
at fair value through profit or loss.

Reinsurance

the Group assumes and cedes reinsurance in the normal course of 
business, with retention limits varying by line of business. Premiums on 
reinsurance assumed are recognised as revenue in the same manner 
as direct business. Outwards reinsurance premiums are accounted 
for in the same accounting period as the related premiums for the 
direct or inwards reinsurance business being reinsured, except for the 
reinsurance of existing long-term business contracts for which the 
written premiums have been accounted for in previous periods. 

Reinsurance assets primarily include balances due from both insurance 
and reinsurance companies for ceded insurance liabilities. amounts 
recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent  
with the outstanding claims provisions or settled claims associated  
with the reinsured policies and in accordance with the relevant 
reinsurance contract.

Intangible assets

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the 
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets and liabilities 
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on 
acquisitions prior to 1 January 2004 (the date of transition to IFRs) is 
carried at book value (original cost less amortisation) on that date, less 
any subsequent impairment.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an 
entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Computer software
Computer software is carried at historical cost less accumulated 
amortisation, and amortised over a useful life of between 3 to 5 
years, using the straight-line method. the amortisation charge for the 
period is included in the income statement within other operating and 
administrative expenses.
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Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets consist of acquired customer and distribution 
relationships, and are carried at cost at acquisition less accumulated 
amortisation after acquisition. amortisation is on a straight-line basis 
over the weighted average estimated useful life of intangible assets 
acquired. the amortisation charge for the period is included in the 
income statement within other operating and administrative expenses.

Property, plant and equipment

Owner occupied properties are stated at open market value and 
movements are taken to a separate reserve within equity. When 
such properties are sold, the accumulated revaluation surpluses are 
transferred from this reserve to retained earnings. valuations are  
carried out at least every three years by external qualified surveyors. 
all other items classed as property, plant and equipment within the 
statement of financial position are carried at historical cost less 
accumulated depreciation.

land is not depreciated. no depreciation is provided on owner occupied 
properties since such depreciation would be immaterial. depreciation is 
calculated on the straight-line method to write down the cost of other 
assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives  
as follows:

Computer equipment 3 - 5 years

Motor vehicles  27% reducing balance or 
length of lease

Fixtures, fittings and   
office equipment 3 - 15 years

Where the carrying amount of an item carried at historical cost less 
accumulated depreciation is greater than its estimated recoverable 
amount, it is written down to its recoverable amount by way of an 
impairment charge to the income statement.

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during 
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Investment property

Investment property comprises land and buildings which are held for 
long-term rental yields. It is carried at fair value with changes in fair 
value recognised in the income statement within net investment return. 
Investment property is valued annually by external qualified surveyors at 
open market value.

Financial instruments 

Ias 39 requires the classification of certain financial assets 
and liabilities into separate categories for which the accounting 
requirements differ. 

the classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial 
assets and liabilities, and is determined at the time of initial recognition. 
Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value. their 
subsequent measurement depends on their classification:

•  financial instruments designated as at fair value through profit or  
 loss and those held for trading are subsequently carried at fair value.  
 Changes in fair value are included in the income statement in the  
 period in which they arise

•  all other financial assets and liabilities are held at amortised cost,  
 using the effective interest method (except for short-term  
 receivables and payables when the recognition of interest would  
 be immaterial).

the directors consider that the carrying value of those financial assets 
and liabilities not carried at fair value in the financial statements 
approximates to their fair value.

Offset of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount 
reported in the statement of financial position, when there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously.

Financial investments

the Group classifies its financial investments as either financial assets 
at fair value through profit or loss (designated as such or held for 
trading) or loans and receivables. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial investments are classified into this category if they are 
managed, and their performance evaluated, on a fair value basis. 
Purchases and sales of these investments are recognised on the trade 
date, which is the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell 
the assets, at their fair value adjusted for transaction costs. Financial 
investments within this category are classified as held for trading if they 
are derivatives or acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the 
near term.

the fair values of investments are based on quoted bid prices. Where 
there is no active market, fair value is established using a valuation 
technique based on observable market data where available. there is 
no current intention to dispose of these investments.

Loans and receivables
loans and receivables, comprising mortgages and other loans, are 
recognised when cash is advanced to borrowers. these are carried at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. to the extent that a 
loan is uncollectable, it is written off as impaired. subsequent recoveries 
are credited to the income statement.
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Derivative financial instruments

derivative financial instruments include financial instruments that derive 
their value from underlying equity instruments. For a variety of reasons, 
Group derivative transactions, while providing effective economic 
hedges under the Group’s risk management positions, do not qualify 
for hedge accounting under the specific IFRs rules and are therefore 
treated as derivatives held for trading. all derivatives are initially 
recognised in the statement of financial position at their fair value, 
which usually represents their cost, including any premium paid. they 
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value with changes in the 
fair value recognised immediately in net investment return.  
all derivatives are carried as assets when the fair values are positive 
and as liabilities when the fair values are negative.

the notional or contractual amounts associated with derivative financial 
instruments are not recorded as assets or liabilities on the statement 
of financial position as they do not represent the fair value of these 
transactions. Collateral pledged by way of cash margins on futures 
contracts is recognised as an asset on the statement of financial 
position within cash and cash equivalents.

Deferred acquisition costs

General insurance business
For general insurance business, a proportion of commission and other 
acquisition costs relating to unearned premiums is carried forward  
as deferred acquisition costs or, with regard to reinsurance outwards, 
as deferred income. deferred acquisition costs are amortised over the 
period in which the related revenues are earned. the reinsurers’ share 
of deferred acquisition costs is amortised in the same manner as the 
underlying asset.

Long-term business
For insurance contracts, acquisition costs comprise direct costs such 
as initial commission and the indirect costs of obtaining and processing 
new business. acquisition costs which are incurred during a financial 
year are deferred and amortised over the period during which the costs 
are expected to be recoverable.

For investment contracts, only directly related acquisition costs, which 
vary with and are related to securing new contracts and renewing 
existing contracts, are deferred to the extent that they are recoverable 
out of future revenue. all other costs are recognised as expenses when 
incurred. deferrable acquisition costs for investment contracts are 
amortised over the period in which the service is provided.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call 
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts.

Insurance broking debtors and creditors

Where the Group acts as agent in placing the insurable risks of clients 
with insurers, debtors arising from such transactions are not included 
within the Group’s assets. When the Group receives cash in respect of 
resultant premiums or claims, a corresponding liability is established 
in other creditors in favour of the insurer or client. Where the Group 
provides premium finance facilities to clients, amounts due are included 
within other debtors, with the amount owing for onward transmission 
included in other creditors.

Leases

leases, where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of 
ownership is retained by the lessor, are classified as operating leases. 
Payments made as lessees under operating leases are charged to the 
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. 
Rental income received as lessor under operating leases is credited to 
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of  
the lease.

leases, where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of 
ownership is transferred to the Group, are classified as finance leases. 
assets obtained under finance lease contracts are capitalised as 
property, plant and equipment and are depreciated over the period 
of the lease. Obligations under such agreements are included within 
liabilities net of finance charges allocated to future periods. the interest 
element of the lease payments is charged to the income statement 
over the period of the lease.
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Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or 
constructive obligation, as a result of past events, and it is probable that 
an outflow of resources, embodying economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the 
obligation can be made. Where the Group expects a provision to be 
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset,  
but only when the reimbursement is more probable than not.

the Group recognises a provision for onerous contracts when the 
expected benefits to be derived from a contract are less than the 
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed if the future obligation is probable 
but the amount cannot be reliably estimated.

Employee benefits

Pension obligations
the Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined 
contribution plans, the assets of which are held in separate trustee 
administered funds.

For defined benefit plans, the pension costs are assessed using the 
projected unit credit method. under this method, the cost of providing 
pensions is charged to the income statement so as to spread the 
regular cost over the service lives of employees, in accordance with 
the advice of qualified actuaries. the pension obligation is measured 
as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows using a 
discount rate based on market yields for high quality corporate bonds. 
the resulting pension scheme surplus or deficit appears as an asset 
or obligation in the consolidated and parent statements of financial 
position. any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past 
service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions 
in future employer contributions to the scheme.

In accordance with Ias 19, Employee Benefits, actuarial gains or 
losses are accounted for using the “corridor method”. actuarial gains 
and losses are recognised in the income statement to the extent that 
they exceed 10 per cent of the greater of the fair value of the scheme 
assets or the present value of the gross defined benefit obligations 
in the scheme. actuarial gains and losses exceeding 10 per cent are 
spread over the expected average remaining working lives of the 
employees participating in the scheme.

Contributions in respect of defined contribution schemes are 
recognised as an expense in the income statement as incurred.

Other post-employment obligations
some Group companies provide post-employment healthcare 
benefits to their retirees. the entitlement to these benefits is usually 
conditional on the employee remaining in service up to retirement 
age and the completion of a minimum service period. the expected 
costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment 
using an accounting methodology similar to that for defined benefit 
pension plans. actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately 
in the income statement. Independent qualified actuaries value these 
obligations annually.

Other benefits
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are 
recognised when they accrue to employees. a provision is made for the 
estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave as a result of 
services rendered by employees up to the year end date.

Taxation

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is 
recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it relates 
to items taken directly to equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable result for the 
period and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of  
previous periods.

deferred tax is provided in full on temporary differences between 
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. deferred tax is 
measured using tax rates expected to apply when the related deferred 
tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled based on tax 
rates and laws which have been enacted or substantively enacted at 
the year end date.

deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary 
differences can be utilised.

deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Appropriations

Dividends 
dividends on Ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the  
period in which they are declared and, for the final dividend,  
approved by shareholders. dividends on Irredeemable Preference 
shares are recognised in the period in which they are declared and 
appropriately approved.

Charitable grant to ultimate parent undertaking
Payments are made via gift aid to the ultimate parent company, 
allchurches trust limited, a registered charity. the Group does not 
regard these payments as being expenses of the business and, as 
such, recognises them net of tax in equity in the period in which they 
are approved.
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2 Critical accounting estimates, and 
judgements in applying accounting policies
the Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates 
and judgements are regularly reviewed and based on historical 
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events 
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a) The ultimate liability arising from claims made under general 
business insurance contracts

the estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims made under 
general business insurance contracts is a critical accounting estimate. 
there are various sources of uncertainty as to how much the Group  
will ultimately pay with respect to such contracts. there is uncertainty 
as to the total number of claims made on each class of business,  
the amounts that such claims will be settled for and the timings of  
any payments.

the uncertainties surrounding the estimates of claims payments for the 
various classes of business are discussed further in note 3.

(b) Estimate of future benefit payments and premiums arising 
from long-term insurance contracts

the determination of the liabilities under long-term insurance contracts 
is dependent on estimates made by the Group. 

Estimates are made as to the expected number of deaths for  
each of the years in which the Group is exposed to risk. the Group 
bases these estimates on standard industry and national mortality 
tables that reflect recent historical mortality experience. For contracts 
that insure the risk of longevity, appropriate allowance is made for 
expected mortality improvements. the estimated number of deaths 
determines the provisions for forecast benefit payments net of forecast 
premium receipts.

Estimates are also made as to future investment income arising from 
the assets backing long-term insurance contracts. these estimates are 
based on current market returns as well as expectations about future 
economic and financial developments.

Estimates of future deaths, investment returns and administration 
expenses form the assumptions used for calculating the liabilities of 
long-term insurance contracts. a margin for risk and uncertainty is 
added to these assumptions.

(c) Pension and other post-employment benefits

the cost of these benefits and the present value of the pension and 
other post-employment benefit liabilities depend on factors that are 
determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. the 
assumptions used in determining the charge in the income statement 
for these benefits include the expected long-term rate of return on the 
relevant plan assets, the discount rate and, in the case of the post-
employment medical benefits, expected medical costs inflation. any 
changes in these assumptions will impact the income statement charge 
and may affect planned funding of the pension plans. the expected 
return on plan assets assumption is determined by considering long-
term historical returns, asset allocation and future estimates of long-
term investment returns. the Group determines an appropriate discount 
rate at the end of each year, to be used to determine the present value 
of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the 
pension and post-employment benefit obligations. 

In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group considered 
interest rates of high quality corporate bonds that are denominated 
in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms 
to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension liability. 
the expected rate of medical cost inflation has been determined 
by comparing the historical relationship of the actual medical cost 
increases with the rate of inflation. Other key assumptions for the 
pension and post-employment benefit costs and credits are based in 
part on current market conditions. additional information is disclosed  
in note 21.
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3 Insurance risk
the risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the 
insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount of the resulting 
claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk  
is unpredictable and difficult to quantify with certainty.

the principal risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts 
is that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying 
amount of the insurance liabilities, which may occur if the frequency or 
severity of claims and benefits are greater than estimated. Insurance 
events are unpredictable and the actual level of claims and benefits 
may vary from year to year from the estimates established using 
statistical techniques.

Factors that typically aggravate insurance risk include lack of risk 
diversification in terms of type and amount of risk, geographical spread 
and type of customer covered.

Experience shows that the larger and more diversified the portfolio of 
similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability about the 
expected outcome will be. the Group’s insurance underwriting strategy 
aims to diversify the type of insurance risks accepted in order to reduce 
the variability of the expected outcome.

(a) General business risks

General insurance business classes written include property and 
liability. Property cover mainly compensates the policyholder for damage 
suffered to their properties or for the value of property lost. Property 
may also include cover for pecuniary loss through the inability to use 
damaged insured commercial properties. liability insurance contracts 
protect policyholders from the liability to compensate injured employees 
(employers’ liability) and third parties (public liability). motor policies 
provide both property and liability cover for the insured. Injury, death or 
incapacity as a result of an unforeseen event is covered by the accident 
class of business.

In all operations pricing controls are in place, underpinned by sound 
statistical analysis and market expertise and appropriate external 
consultant advice. the Group manages risks to limit severity through 
its underwriting strategy, a comprehensive reinsurance programme 
and proactive claims handling. net retention limits are in place and 
the Group arranges catastrophe reinsurance cover to protect against 
aggregations of losses.

Frequency and severity of claims

Property classes
For property insurance contracts, including the property element 
of motor contracts, the number of claims made can be affected by 
weather events, changes in climate and crime rates. Individual claims 
can vary in amount since the property insured is diverse in both size 
and nature. the cost of repairing property varies according to the extent 
of damage, cost of materials and labour charges.

Climate change may give rise to more frequent and severe extreme 
weather events, such as river flooding, hurricanes and drought, and 
their consequences, for example, subsidence claims.

the maximum claim payable is limited to the sum insured. the Group 
has the right to re-price the risk on renewal. It also has the ability to 
impose deductibles, reject fraudulent claims and pursue third parties 
for payment of some or all costs. these contracts are underwritten on 
a reinstatement basis or repair and renovation basis as appropriate. 
Costs of rebuilding properties, of replacement or indemnity for contents 
and time taken to restart operations for business interruption are the 
key factors that influence the level of claims. Individual large claims 
are more likely to arise from fire, storm or flood damage. the greatest 
likelihood of an aggregation of claims arises from weather or recession 
related events.

Liability classes
For liability insurance contracts, including the liability element of motor 
contracts, the frequency and severity of claims can be affected by 
several factors. the most significant are the increasing level of awards 
for damages suffered, the courts move to periodic payments awards 
and the increase in the number of cases that were latent for a long 
period of time. Inflation, from these and other sources, is a significant 
factor due to the long period typically required to settle these claims. 

the Group has the right to re-price the risk on renewal. It also has the 
ability to impose deductibles, reject fraudulent claims and pursue third 
parties for payment of some or all costs. the severity of bodily injury 
claims is highly influenced by the value of loss of earnings and the 
future cost of care.

nOtEs tO thE FInanCIal statEmEnts
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Concentrations of risk

the underwriting strategy is designed to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of type and amount of risk and geographical 
spread. the Group protects its gross underwriting exposure through the use of a comprehensive programme of reinsurance. the concentration of 
insurance risk for the financial year before and after reinsurance by territory in relation to the type of risk accepted is summarised below,  
with reference to written premiums:

2010     Type of risk  
   Property  Liability  Motor  Accident  Total 
Group   £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Territory        
united Kingdom  Gross  216,635   72,891   33,788   13,226   336,540 
  net  115,614   65,583   31,962   12,187   225,346 
australia and new Zealand   Gross  67,603   19,402   8,509   817   96,331 
  net  22,645   16,508   8,015   690   47,858 
Canada  Gross  21,307   7,838  -  -   29,145 
  net  13,529   7,284  -  -   20,813 
Ireland  Gross  7,252   4,986   4   148   12,390 
  net  4,586   4,580   4   136   9,306 
total  Gross  312,797   105,117   42,301   14,191   474,406 
  net  156,374   93,955   39,981   13,013   303,323

Parent 

Territory        
united Kingdom  Gross  207,552   64,592   31,081   12,988   316,213 
  net  107,847   59,374   29,916   12,006   209,143 
Canada  Gross  21,307   7,838  -  -   29,145 
  net  13,529   7,284  -  -   20,813 
Ireland  Gross  7,252   4,986   4   148   12,390 
  net  4,586   4,580   4   136   9,306 
total  Gross  236,111   77,416   31,085   13,136   357,748 
  net  125,962   71,238   29,920   12,142   239,262
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2009     Type of risk   
   Property  Liability  Motor  Accident  Total 
Group   £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Territory        
united Kingdom  Gross  220,595   64,346   20,407   6,833   312,181 
  net  119,047   57,103   18,987   6,551   201,688 
australia and new Zealand   Gross  56,271   15,182   8,545   541   80,539 
  net  19,706   12,897   8,239   456   41,298 
Canada  Gross  17,599   6,016  -  -   23,615 
  net  11,482   5,509  -  -   16,991 
Ireland  Gross  7,034   4,275   8   46   11,363 
  net  4,630   3,942   7   44   8,623 
total  Gross  301,499   89,819   28,960   7,420   427,698
  net  154,865   79,451   27,233   7,051   268,600 
       
Parent       

Territory        
united Kingdom  Gross  212,471   56,464   18,166   6,623   293,724 
  net  112,887   51,496   17,348   6,395   188,126 
Canada  Gross  17,599   6,016  -  -   23,615 
  net  11,482   5,509  -  -   16,991 
Ireland  Gross  7,034   4,275   8   46   11,363 
  net  4,630   3,942   7   44   8,623 
total  Gross  237,104   66,755   18,174   6,669   328,702 
  net  128,999   60,947   17,355   6,439   213,740 

nOtEs tO thE FInanCIal statEmEnts
3 Insurance risk (continued)

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future  
claim payments

Property classes
the property classes, including property damage under motor contracts, 
give rise to a variety of different types of claims including fire, business 
interruption, weather damage, subsidence, accidental damage to 
insured vehicles and theft. there can be variability in both the number 
of claims in each period and the size of those claims. If a weather event 
happens near the end of the financial year, then the uncertainty about 
ultimate claims cost in the financial statements is much higher because 
there is insufficient time for adequate data to be received to assess the 
final cost of claims.

Claims payment, on average, occurs within a year of the event that 
gives rise to the claim. however, there is variability around this average 
with larger claims typically taking longer to settle.

subsidence claims are difficult to predict because the damage is 
often not apparent for some time. Changes in soil moisture conditions 
can give rise to changes in claim volumes over time. the ultimate 
settlements can be small or large with a greater risk of a settled claim 
being re-opened at a later date.

Liability classes
the settlement value of claims arising under public and employers’ 
liability and the liability element of motor contracts is particularly difficult 
to predict. there is uncertainty as to whether any payments will be 
made and, if they are, the amount and timing of the payments. Key 
factors driving the high levels of uncertainty include the late notification 
of possible claim events and the legal process.

late notification of possible claims necessitates the holding of 
provisions for incurred claims that may only emerge some years into the 
future. In particular the effect of inflation over such a long period can 
be considerable and is uncertain. a lack of comparable past experience 
makes it difficult to quantify the number of claims and, for certain types 
of claims, the amounts for which they will ultimately settle. the legal 
and legislative framework continues to develop which has a consequent 
impact on the uncertainty as to the length of the claims settlement 
process and the ultimate settlement amounts.

Claims that may arise from the liability portfolios include damage 
to property, physical injury, disease and psychological trauma. the 
Group has a different exposure profile to most other commercial lines 
insurance companies as it has lower exposure to industrial risks, where 
uncertainty is higher. therefore, claims for industrial diseases are less 
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common for the Group than injury claims such as slips, trips and  
back injuries. 

Claims payment, on average, occurs about three years after the event 
that gives rise to the claim. however, there is significant variability 
around this average.

note 30 presents the development of the estimate of ultimate claim 
cost for public and employers’ liability claims occurring in a given year. 
this gives an indication of the accuracy of the estimation technique for 
incurred claims.

Sources of uncertainty
the ultimate settlement cost of incurred general insurance claims is 
inherently uncertain. such uncertainty includes:

•  whether a claim event has occurred or not and how much it will 
ultimately settle for;

•  variability in the speed with which claims are notified and in the time 
taken to settle them, especially complex cases resolved through  
the courts;

• changes in the business portfolio affecting factors such as the 
number of claims and their typical settlement costs, which may differ 
significantly from past patterns;

• new types of claim, including latent claims, which arise from time  
to time;

•  changes in legislation and court attitudes to compensation, which may 
apply retrospectively;

• the way in which certain reinsurance contracts (principally liability) will 
be interpreted in relation to unusual/latent claims where aggregation 
of claimants and exposure over time are issues; and

• whether all such reinsurances will remain in force over the long-term.

Prudence in the provisions for outstanding claims
the Group has taken into account the uncertain nature of claims 
reporting and settlement when provisioning for outstanding claims.

Provisions for latent claims 
the public and employers’ liability classes can give rise to very late 
reported claims, which are often referred to as latent claims. these can 
vary in nature and are difficult to predict. they typically emerge slowly 
over many years. the Group has reflected this uncertainty and believes 
that it holds adequate reserves for latent claims that may result from 
exposure periods up to the reporting date.

(b) Long-term business fund

the Group disposed of all of the products of the With-profit fund and 
the non-funeral plan products of the non-profit fund during the current 
year (hereafter referred to as “the disposed business”). the Group’s 
long-term business activity is now focussed on providing Whole of 
life products to support the funeral planning products that are made 
available by business partners such as the national association of 
Funeral directors (naFd).   

     With-profit  Non-profit  
     fund  fund  Total 
     £000  £000  £000 
 
 Long-term business provision at 31 December 2010       
life assurance     -   60,663   60,663 

Total technical provisions excluding outstanding claims, net of reinsurance  -   60,663   60,663 
       
Long-term business provision at 31 December 2009      
 
life assurance      61,938   54,403   116,341 
Pensions assurance      37,104  -   37,104 
Pensions annuities in payment     -   77,080   77,080 
life annuities in payment     -   8,827   8,827 
Permanent health insurance     -   309   309 
Total      99,042   140,619   239,661 
       
Investment products     -   51,822   51,822 
Total technical provisions excluding outstanding claims, net of reinsurance  99,042   192,441   291,483

Frequency and severity of claims

the Group’s life insurance products are summarised in the table below:
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nOtEs tO thE FInanCIal statEmEnts
3 Insurance risk (continued)

the retained funeral plan business is subject to variability in the 
frequency and severity of claims, however this does not provide 
significant insurance risk to the Group as the reserves held at any point 
in time for each policy are very close to the benefit that would be paid 
at that point in time.

 Long-term business insurance risks in the prior year,  
 relating to the disposed business

 The remainder of this note relates to prior year disclosure  
 of insurance risks of that part of the long-term business that 
 has been disposed of during the current year.

Long-term insurance contracts 
For contracts where death is the insured risk, the most significant 
factors that could increase the overall frequency of claims are 
epidemics or widespread changes in lifestyle resulting in more or fewer 
claims than expected. For contracts where survival is the insured risk, 
the most significant factor is continued improvement in medical science 
and social conditions that would increase longevity.

For non-profit contracts with fixed and guaranteed benefits and fixed 
future premiums, there are no mitigating terms and conditions that 
reduce the insurance risk accepted.

the Group manages these risks through its underwriting strategy and 
reinsurance arrangements. Industry standard tables are used to price 
products. no allowance is made for the Group’s own claims experience 
as it is not statistically significant. the Group’s exposure is limited by 
reinsurance arrangements that restrict exposure on a single risk. Both 
yearly renewable term and original terms reinsurance arrangements  
are used.

Both pension and life annuities in payment provide a defined income 
stream to the policyholder which is commonly contingent on survival. 
the primary risks on these contracts are the level of future investment 
returns on the assets backing the liability and the longevity of the 
policyholders. the investment risk has been largely mitigated by 
holding fixed interest assets of a similar term to the expected longevity 
profile. the longevity risk is retained by the Group and directly impacts 
shareholders’ equity.

Both with-profit life and pensions assurance products provide a 
combination of guaranteed and discretionary benefits for policyholders. 
the principal risks associated with these contracts are interest rate 
and equity price risk. In the first instance these risks are borne by 
the unallocated divisible surplus, which is available for allocation to 
policyholders as discretionary benefits.

the non-profit fund bears any difference between future administration 
expenses and the specified fees charged to the with-profit fund.  
the reserves in the non-profit fund for with-profit life and pension 
contracts reflect a shortfall between the forecast fees receivable and 
forecast expenses.

Insurance risk for contracts disclosed in this note is also affected  
by the policyholders’ right to pay reduced or no future premiums,  
or to terminate the contract completely. as a result, the amount of 
insurance risk is also subject to policyholder behaviour. the Group has 
considered the impact of policyholders’ behaviour in the calculation  
of these liabilities.

Group life yearly renewable contracts
these contracts are mainly issued to employers to insure their 
commitments to their employees in terms of their pension fund and 
other employee benefit plans. the risk is affected by the nature of the 
industry in which the employer operates, in addition to the factors  
noted above.

the Group’s disposed business has a higher than average 
concentration of risk in the clergy, but otherwise there is no bias to 
any particular industry. It is believed that the mortality and morbidity of 
the clergy does not depart significantly from experience for the united 
Kingdom population as a whole.

Prior to the disposal, reinsurance arrangements were in place to 
mitigate the Group’s exposure to these risks. the net exposure for any 
one risk is limited.
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Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit 
payments and premium receipts

Long-term insurance contracts
uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and 
premium receipts for long-term insurance contracts arises from the 
unpredictability of long-term changes in overall levels of mortality and 
the variability in policyholder behaviour.

the Group uses appropriate base tables of standard industry mortality 
according to the type of contract being written. For contracts that 
insure survival, an adjustment is made for future mortality improvements 
based on trends identified in the mortality investigations performed by 
independent actuarial bodies.

Group life yearly renewable contracts
there is no need to estimate mortality rates or morbidity rates for 
future years because these contracts have short duration. however, for 
incurred disability income claims, it is necessary to estimate the length 
of the term over which payments will continue to be made. It has been 
assumed that payments continue for the remaining term of the policy 
with no allowance for either mortality or recovery.

Options and guarantees

all material financial options and guarantees are in the with-profit fund 
and the cost of meeting them is covered by the unallocated divisible 
surplus. these options and guarantees have the potential, depending on 
the behaviours of financial variables such as interest rates and equity 
returns, to increase the value of benefits paid to policyholders.

Further details of the material options and guarantees are given below, 
including the variables that determine the amount payable and the 
potential effect of adverse changes in market conditions. In line with the 
measurement of the with-profit policyholder liabilities, a deterministic 
methodology has been used to measure the options and guarantees 
and so they are not measured at fair value or using a market-consistent 
asset model.

With-profit maturity and surrender value guarantees
substantially all of the conventional with-profit policies have minimum 
guaranteed benefits on maturity consisting of the sums assured plus 
previously declared regular bonuses. In addition, a small proportion 
of endowment policyholders have minimum guaranteed benefits on 
surrender after a certain time, consisting of a fixed proportion of the 
sums assured plus previously declared regular bonuses. the main 
variable that determines the amount payable under the guarantees is 
the level of regular bonuses added to the policy.

the difference between the guaranteed benefits and the value of the 
assets deemed to be allocated to the policies (their asset share) at 
maturity or at the point of surrender, represents the net cost of the 
guarantees. there will be no maturities in 2011 (2009: £1.8 million net 
cost expected for 2010), and no surrenders (2009: £0.2 million net 
cost expected for 2010). the discounted value of these amounts is 
included within the with-profit policyholder liabilities for the  
relevant policies. 

the cost of the guarantees is most affected by a fall in equity returns 
and if returns were 10% lower than anticipated, the above costs would 
be £nil (2009: increase to £2.3 million) and £nil (2009: increase to 
£0.3 million) respectively.

No market value reduction (MVR) guarantees
For the with-profit bond and the deposit administration group pension 
contracts, there are circumstances when it is guaranteed that no mvR 
will apply in determining benefits, ie:

•	on partial withdrawals of the bond not exceeding 7.5% per annum of 
the original amount invested;

•	on withdrawals from the deposit administration contract for the 
purchase of immediate annuities for individual members; and

•	on withdrawal of all benefits over a 10 year period.

the cost of the guarantee is determined by the relationship between 
the total benefits on the contract and the total asset share when 
applied to the amount of the withdrawal. If withdrawals were made on 
all contracts up to the maximum level for the no mvR guarantee, then 
the total cost in 2011 will be £nil (2009: £0.2 million expected for 
2010). this is allowed for in determining the liabilities for the contracts.

the cost of the guarantee is most affected by a fall in equity returns, 
and if returns were 10% lower than anticipated, the cost would be £nil 
(2009: increase to £0.4 million).
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Group investment contract liabilities were disposed of during the current year, as part of the business disposal detailed in note 18.

4 Financial risk and capital management
the Group is exposed to financial risk through its financial assets, financial liabilities, reinsurance assets and insurance liabilities. In particular the 
key financial risk is that the proceeds from its financial assets are not sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its insurance and investment 
contracts. the most important components of financial risk are interest rate risk, credit risk, currency risk and equity price risk.

there has been no change from the prior period in the nature of financial risks that the Group is exposed to. Where noted below, the disposal of 
part of the Group’s life business during the current year has reduced exposure to certain risks. the Group’s management and measurement of 
financial risks is informed by either stochastic modelling or stress testing techniques.

(a) Categories of financial instruments

  Financial assets               Financial liabilities
 designated  held for  loans and  designated  held for  at amortised  Other assets  
Group at fair value  trading  receivables*  at fair value  trading  cost  and liabilities  total 
 £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

At 31 December 2010        
Financial investments  821,486  -   12,677  -  -  -  -   834,163 
Other assets  -  -   133,614  -  -  -   3,047   136,661 
Cash and cash equivalents -  -   164,805  -  -  -  -   164,805 
Other liabilities -  -  -  -  -  (40,416) (8,109) (48,525)
net other -  -  -  -  -  -  (630,197) (630,197)
total  821,486  -   311,096  -  -  (40,416) (635,259)  456,907 
        
        
At 31 December 2009        
Financial investments  1,028,066   2,596   23,540  -  -  -  -   1,054,202 
Other assets  -  -   119,138  -  -  -   3,264   122,402 
Cash and cash equivalents -  -   193,584  -  -  -  -   193,584 
Investment contract liabilities -  -  -  (51,822) -  -  -  (51,822)
Other liabilities -  -  -  -  (1,196) (44,216) (7,453) (52,865)
net other -  -  -  -  -  -  (872,681) (872,681)
total  1,028,066   2,596   336,262  (51,822) (1,196) (44,216) (876,870)  392,820

* Cash and cash equivalents have been presented with loans and receivables.

nOtEs tO thE FInanCIal statEmEnts
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(b) Fair value hierarchy

the fair value measurement basis used to value those financial assets and financial liabilities held at fair value is categorised into a fair value 
hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. this category includes listed 
equities in active markets, listed debt securities in active markets and exchange traded derivatives.

Level 2: fair values measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,  
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). this category includes listed debt or equity securities in a market that is not  
active and derivatives that are not exchange traded.

Level 3: fair values measured using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).  
this category includes unlisted equities, including investments in venture capital, and suspended securities. the effect of reasonably possible 
changes to the assumptions used in determining the fair value of these assets is not significant to the values disclosed.

there have been no transfers between level 1 and level 2 investments in the current year.

  Financial assets               Financial liabilities
 designated  held for  loans and  designated  held for  at amortised  Other assets  
Parent at fair value  trading  receivables*  at fair value  trading  cost  and liabilities  total 
 £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

At 31 December 2010        
Financial investments  580,042  -   14  -  -  -   50,285   630,341 
Other assets  -  -   99,730  -  -  -   2,830   102,560 
Cash and cash equivalents -  -   125,237  -  -  -  -   125,237 
Other liabilities -  -  -  -  -  (22,948) (6,590) (29,538)
net other -  -  -  -  -  -  (455,525) (455,525)
total  580,042  -   224,981  -  -  (22,948) (409,000)  373,075 
        
        
At 31 December 2009        
Financial investments  483,002  -   15  -  -  -   50,457   533,474 
Other assets  -  -   98,501  -  -  -   2,441   100,942 
Cash and cash equivalents -  -   134,683  -  -  -  -   134,683 
Other liabilities -  -  -  -  (552) (30,196) (5,986) (36,734)
net other -  -  -  -  -  -  (414,745) (414,745)
total  483,002  -   233,199  -  (552) (30,196) (367,833)  317,620 
        
* Cash and cash equivalents have been presented with loans and receivables. 
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Analysis of fair value measurement bases Fair value measurement at the 
 end of the reporting period based on:

Group   
      Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

      £000  £000  £000  £000

At 31 December 2010 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:        
Financial investments:        
 Equity securities      250,936   916   19,143   270,995 
 debt securities      546,795   3,411   285   550,491 
       797,731   4,327   19,428   821,486 
        
At 31 December 2009        
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:        
Financial investments:        
 Equity securities      363,990   5,343   19,966   389,299 
 debt securities      631,068   9,708   587   641,363 
       995,058   15,051   20,553   1,030,662 
        
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:       
Investment contract liabilities     -   51,822  -   51,822 
Other liabilities:        
 derivative liabilities      1,196  -  -   1,196 
       1,196   51,822  -   53,018 
        
 Fair value measurement at the 
 end of the reporting period based on:

Parent   
      Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

      £000  £000  £000  £000

At 31 December 2010 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:        
Financial investments:        
 Equity securities      224,533   916   19,099   244,548 
 debt securities      332,719   2,490   285   335,494 
       557,252   3,406   19,384   580,042 
        
At 31 December 2009        
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:        
Financial investments:        
 Equity securities      183,617   846   19,825   204,288 
 debt securities      275,940   2,480   294   278,714 
       459,557   3,326   20,119   483,002 
        
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:       
Other liabilities:        
 derivative liabilities      552  -  -   552 
       552  -  -   552

nOtEs tO thE FInanCIal statEmEnts
4 Financial risk and capital management (continued)
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 Financial assets at fair value  
 through profit or loss:

Group Equity  Debt   
 securities   securities  Total
 £000  £000  £000

At 31 December 2010 
Opening balance 19,966   587   20,553 
total (losses)/gains recognised in profit or loss (726)  103  (623)
Purchases -   50   50 
disposal proceeds -  (134) (134)
disposal of business (97) (321) (418)
Closing balance 19,143   285   19,428 
total (losses)/gains for the period included in profit or loss for assets  
held at the end of the reporting period (726)  34  (692)
   
At 31 December 2009    
Opening balance 19,403   566   19,969 
total gains/(losses) recognised in profit or loss 14  (43) (29)
Purchases  251   75   326 
disposal proceeds (251) (11) (262)
transfers into level 3  549  -   549 
Closing balance 19,966   587   20,553 
total gains/(losses) for the period included in profit or loss for assets  
held at the end of the reporting period 14  (43) (29)

 Financial assets at fair value  
 through profit or loss:

Parent Equity  Debt   
 securities   securities  Total
    £000  £000  £000

At 31 December 2010 
Opening balance  19,825   294  20,119
total (losses)/gains recognised in profit or loss (726)  34  (692)
Purchases -   25   25 
disposal proceeds -  (68) (68) 
Closing balance 19,099   285   19,384 
total (losses)/gains for the period included in profit or loss for assets  
held at the end of the reporting period (726)  34  (692)
 
At 31 December 2009    
Opening balance 19,060   283   19,343 
total gains/(losses) recognised in profit or loss 216  (22)  194 
Purchases 251   38   289 
disposal proceeds -  (5) (5)
transfers into level 3 298  -   298 
Closing balance 19,825   294   20,119 
total gains/(losses) for the period included in profit or loss for assets  
held at the end of the reporting period  216  (22)  194 

Fair value measurements based on level 3

Fair value measurements in level 3 for both the Group and Parent consist of financial assets, analysed as follows:

all the above gains or losses included in profit or loss for the period (for both the Group and Parent) are presented in net investment 
return within the income statement.
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(c) Interest rate risk

the table below summarises the maturity dates for those assets and liabilities that are exposed to interest rate risk.

      Maturing: 

 Within Between After  
 1 year  1 & 5 years  5 years  Total 
Group £000  £000  £000  £000 

At 31 December 2010  
Assets:
debt securities 168,188  255,006   127,297   550,491 
mortgage and other loans -   1,329   11,327   12,656 
loans to related parties  465  -   5,391   5,856 
Other assets including insurance receivables 30,882  -  -   30,882 
Cash and cash equivalents  164,805  -  -   164,805 
  364,340  256,335  144,015   764,690 
Liabilities:
Finance lease obligations  249  1,846  -   2,095 
non-profit long-term business provisions  3,771   14,976   63,153   81,900 
  4,020   16,822   63,153   83,995 

At 31 December 2009     
Assets:     
debt securities  78,023   343,768   219,572   641,363 
mortgage and other loans  29   721   13,603   14,353 
loans to related parties  360  -  -   360 
non-profit reinsurers’ share of long-term business provisions 592  223   1,718   2,533 
Other assets including insurance receivables 34,723  -  -   34,723 
Cash and cash equivalents 193,584  -  -   193,584 
 307,311  344,712   234,893   886,916 
Liabilities:     
Finance lease obligations  355  1,533  -   1,888 
non-profit long-term business provisions 1,531  1,622   139,999   143,152 
Investment contract liabilities  3,587  6,143   42,092   51,822 
  5,473  9,298   182,091   196,862 
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      Maturing: 

 Within Between After 
 1 year  1 & 5 years  5 years  Total 
Parent £000  £000  £000  £000 

At 31 December 2010
Assets:     
debt securities 118,281  162,387   54,826   335,494 
loans to related parties 465  1,850   16,491   18,806 
Other assets including insurance receivables 22,064  -  -   22,064 
Cash and cash equivalents 125,237  -  -   125,237 
  266,047   164,237   71,317   501,601 
Liabilities:     
Finance lease obligations  249  1,846  -   2,095 
 249   1,846  -   2,095 
    
At 31 December 2009     
Assets:
debt securities  37,817  184,397   56,500   278,714 
loans to related parties 2,242  -   20,370   22,612 
Other assets including insurance receivables 26,359  -  -   26,359 
Cash and cash equivalents 134,683  -  -   134,683 
  201,101  184,397   76,870   462,368 
Liabilities:     
Finance lease obligations  342  1,533  -   1,875 
 342  1,533  -   1,875 

those financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value and have fixed interest rates are subject to fair value interest rate risk.  
those financial assets and liabilities with variable interest rates are subject to cash flow interest rate risk.

General business insurance liabilities are not directly sensitive to the level of market interest rates, as they are undiscounted and contractually non-
interest bearing. Furthermore, these liabilities do not have maturity dates and hence are not included in the above tables.  

Financial investments represent a significant proportion of the Group’s assets. Investment strategy is set in order to control the impact of interest 
rate risk on anticipated Group cash flows and asset values. the fair value of the Group’s investment portfolio of debt and fixed income securities 
reduces as market interest rates rise, and vice versa. Interest rate risk concentration is reduced by the varied maturity profiles of the investments.

the Group has exposure to interest rate risk in respect of its long-term insurance funeral plan business. the benefits payable to policyholders are 
independent of the returns generated by interest bearing assets. therefore the interest rate risk on the invested assets supporting these liabilities 
is borne by the Group. this risk can be eliminated by purchasing fixed interest investments with durations that precisely match the profile of the 
liabilities. For funeral plan policies, benefits are linked to the Retail Prices Index (“RPI”). assets backing these liabilities are also linked to RPI,  
and include index-linked gilts and corporate bonds. For practical purposes it is not possible to exactly match the durations due to the uncertain 
profile of liabilities (e.g. mortality risk) and the availability of suitable assets. some interest rate risk will persist. the Group monitors its exposure  
by comparing projected cash flows for these assets and liabilities and making appropriate adjustments to its investment portfolio.



68 Ecclesiastical Insurance Office plc

nOtEs tO thE FInanCIal statEmEnts
4 Financial risk and capital management (continued)

 Long-term business interest rate risk in the prior year,  
 relating to the disposed business

 The remainder of part (c) of this note relates to prior year  
 disclosure of risks of that part of the long-term business  
 that has been disposed of during the current year.

With-profit contracts
all contracts are held in a distinct fund. the surplus of assets over 
liabilities in this fund is available solely to provide future benefits for 
insurance policyholders. the Group is not entitled to a share of this 
surplus. there is therefore no equity price, currency, credit, or interest 
rate risk to the Group for these contracts under current circumstances. 
It is possible under some circumstances that guaranteed benefits will 
exceed the fund’s assets and the Group could be called upon to provide 
financial support to the fund. the nature of these guarantees  
is described in more detail in note 3(b).

Unit-linked contracts
For unit-linked contracts, the Group matches all the assets on 
which the unit prices are based with assets in the portfolio. there is 
therefore no price, currency, credit, or interest rate risk to the Group 
for these contracts.

(d) Credit risk

the Group has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that  
a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due.  
Key areas where the Group is exposed to credit risk are:

• reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities (excluding provision for 
unearned premiums) and amounts due from reinsurers in respect  
of claims already paid;

• amounts due from insurance intermediaries and policyholders; and

• corporate bond counterparty default.

the carrying amount of financial and reinsurance assets represents the 
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk. Collateral is held over loans 
secured by mortgages. the Group structures the levels of credit risk it 
accepts by placing limits on its exposure to a single counterparty.  
limits on the level of credit risk are regularly reviewed.

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. this does not, however, 
discharge the Group’s liability as primary insurer. If a reinsurer fails to 
pay a claim for any reason, the Group remains liable for the payment 
to the policyholder. the creditworthiness of reinsurers is considered on 

a regular basis through the year by reviewing their financial strength. 
the Group Reinsurance security Committee assesses, monitors and 
approves the creditworthiness of all reinsurers reviewing relevant credit 
ratings provided by the recognised credit rating agencies,  
as well as other publicly available data and market information.  
the committee also monitors the balances outstanding from reinsurers 
and maintains an approved list of reinsurers. substantially all of the 
Group’s reinsurance assets are due from reinsurers rated a or above.

the Group’s credit risk policy details prescriptive methods for the 
collection of premiums and control of intermediary and policyholder 
debtor balances. the level and age of debtor balances are regularly 
assessed via monthly credit management reports. these reports are 
scrutinised to assess exposure in more than one region in respect of 
aged or outstanding balances. any such balances are likely to be major 
international brokers who are in turn monitored via credit reference 
agencies and considered to pose minimal risk of default.

the Group has no material concentration of credit risk in respect of 
amounts due from insurance intermediaries and policyholders due to 
the well-diversified spread of such debtors.

the fixed interest portfolio consists of a range of fixed interest 
instruments including government securities, local authority issues, 
corporate loans and bonds, overseas bonds, preference shares and other 
interest bearing securities. limits are imposed on the credit ratings of the 
corporate bond portfolio and exposures regularly monitored.

(e) Liquidity risk

the Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources 
mainly from claims arising from insurance contracts. liquidity risk is 
the risk that funds may not be available to pay obligations when due. 
the Group has robust processes in place to manage liquidity risk and 
has access to funding in case of exceptional need. sources of funding 
include available cash balances, other readily marketable assets and 
access to short term bank funding. this is not considered to be a 
significant risk to the Group.

a maturity analysis for those non-derivative financial liabilities that are 
exposed to interest rate risk is included in part (c) of this note.  
a maturity analysis for other non-derivative financial liabilities is included 
in note 37. an estimate of the timing of the net cash outflows resulting 
from insurance contracts is provided in note 30. derivative financial 
liabilities of the Group all mature within one year.
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(f) Currency risk

the Group operates internationally and its main exposures to foreign exchange risk are noted below. the Group’s foreign operations generally 
invest in assets denominated in the same currencies as their insurance liabilities, which mitigates the foreign currency exchange rate risk for these 
operations. as a result, foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies and net investments in 
foreign operations.

the Group exposure to foreign currency risk within the investment portfolios arises from purchased investments that are denominated in currencies 
other than sterling.

the Group foreign operations create two sources of foreign currency risk:

• the operating results of the Group foreign branches and subsidiaries in the Group financial statements are translated at the average exchange 
rates prevailing during the period; and

• the equity investment in foreign branches and subsidiaries is translated into sterling using the exchange rate at the financial statement year 
end date.

the largest currency exposures with reference to net assets/(liabilities) are shown below, representing effective diversification of resources:

 

   2010       2009  
  Group  Parent     Group  Parent 
  £000  £000     £000  £000 

aus $   52,454   6,918   aus $    41,925   3,839 
Can $   35,328   35,328   Can $    31,266   31,247 
Euro   31,334   31,236   Euro    56,255   31,627 
us $  (14,570) (14,570)  us $    7,733   8,612 
hong Kong $   10,212   10,212   hong Kong $   13,750   8,430

    
     2010    2009  
    Group   Parent  Group  Parent 
    £000   £000  £000  £000 

uK      219,958    198,137   113,578   163,259 
Europe      21,731    21,731   51,486   22,546 
hong Kong      9,980    9,980   14,189   8,869 
usa      2,929    2,929   6,063   2,260 
Other      16,397    11,771   26,608   7,354 
total      270,995    244,548   211,924   204,288 

(g) Equity price risk     

the Group is exposed to equity price risk because of financial investments held by the Group and stated at fair value through profit or loss.  
the Group mitigates this risk by holding a diversified portfolio across geographical regions and market sectors, and through the use of options and 
futures contracts from time to time which would limit losses in the event of a fall in equity markets.  

the concentration of equity price risk by geographical listing, before the mitigating effect of derivatives, to which the Group and Parent are exposed 
is as follows:
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(h) Market risk sensitivity analysis     

the sensitivity of profit and other equity reserves to movements on market risk variables (comprising interest rate, currency and equity price risk), 
each considered in isolation, is shown in the following table:

 
Group     Potential increase/  Potential increase/
  (decrease) (decrease) in
  in profit other equity reserves 

Variable  Change in 2010  2009  2010  2009
  Variable £000  £000  £000  £000 

Interest rate risk  -100 basis points  8,274 10,271  164   136 
  +100 basis points (8,026) (9,670) (158) (134)
Currency risk   -5%  1,428 3,686   4,794   4,083 
  +5% (1,357) (3,502) (4,554) (3,879)
Equity price risk  +/-5%  9,756  10,596  -  - 
      
Parent     Potential increase/  Potential increase/
  (decrease) (decrease) in 
  in profit other equity reserves 

Variable  Change in 2010  2009  2010  2009
  Variable £000  £000  £000  £000 

Interest rate risk  -100 basis points  5,932  6,144   22  31 
  +100 basis points (5,718) (5,825) (22) (31)
Currency risk   -5%  1,424  1,928   2,099  1,927
  +5% (1,353) (1,832) (1,994) (1,831)
Equity price risk  +/-5%  8,804  10,214  -  - 

the following assumptions have been made in preparing the above sensitivity analysis:    

• the value of fixed income investments will vary inversely with changes in interest rates, and all territories experience the same  
interest rate movement;

• currency gains and losses will arise from a change in the value of sterling against all other currencies moving in parallel;  

• equity prices will move by the same percentage across all territories;

• the above analysis is based only on exposures borne by the shareholders, and thus excludes those of with-profit and unit-linked business in the 
prior year; and

• change in profit is stated net of tax at the standard rate of 28% (2009: 28%).
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(i) Capital management

the Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

•  to comply with the regulators’ capital requirements of the markets  
in which the Group operates; and

• to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue to meet stakeholders’ 
expectations, in accordance with its corporate mission, vision  
and values.

the Group is subject to insurance solvency regulations in all the 
territories in which it issues insurance and investment contracts, and 
capital is managed and evaluated on the basis of regulatory capital.

In the uK, the Group and its uK regulated entities are required 
to comply with rules issued by the Financial services authority 
(Fsa), and submit Fsa returns detailing levels of regulatory capital 
held. Regulatory capital should be in excess of the higher of two 
amounts. the first is an amount which is calculated by applying fixed 

percentages to premiums and claims (general insurance business) 
or by applying fixed percentages to insurance liabilities and applying 
stress testing (long-term business). the second is an economic capital 
assessment by the regulated entity, which the Fsa reviews and may 
amend by issuing Individual Capital Guidance (ICG). the Group sets 
internal capital standards above the Fsa’s minimum requirement. For 
overseas business the relevant capital requirement is the minimum 
requirement under the local regulatory regime. Both the Group and the 
regulated entities within it have complied with all externally imposed 
capital requirements throughout the current and prior year.

Regulated subsidiaries are restricted in the amount of cash dividends 
they transfer to the parent entity, in order for them to meet their 
individual minimum capital requirements.

the Group’s available capital resource is disclosed in note 30(b)  
part (iv). 
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5 segment information
(a) Operating segments

the Group segments its business activities on the basis of differences in the products and services offered and, for general insurance, the 
underwriting territory. this reflects the management and internal Group reporting structure. Group activities that are not reportable operating 
segments on the basis of size are included within an ‘all other segments’ category. the activities of each operating segment are described below:

–   General business

 United Kingdom and Ireland
 the Group’s principal general insurance business operation is in the uK, with a branch situated in Ireland. In addition to the Ecclesiastical 

and ansvar uK businesses, the Group holds a global portfolio of risks through its london market operation, Ecclesiastical underwriting 
management limited, which ceased underwriting on 30 september 2010 and will run-off over the next few years.

 Australia and New Zealand
 the Group has wholly owned subsidiaries undertaking general insurance business under the ansvar brand in both australia and new Zealand.

 Canada
 the Group operates a general insurance Ecclesiastical branch in Canada.

 Other general insurance
 Other general insurance activities that are either in run-off or not reportable due to their immateriality are included here in aggregate,  

together with central underwriting expenses.

–  Long-term business

 long-term business comprises life assurance, annuity and pension business. the Group’s long-term business operations excluding funeral plan 
business became discontinued during the year and were disposed of on 30 november 2010. since that date, and within the Group’s future 
plans the long-term business segment consists solely of the funeral plan business.

– All other segments

 this includes the insurance broking, financial and risk advisory services, fund management and other investment activities of Group subsidiaries 
that are not reportable operating segments due to their immateriality.

Inter-segment and inter-territory transfers or transactions are entered into under normal commercial terms and conditions that would also be 
available to unrelated third parties.
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2010 Combined    Net Investment  
 operating  Underwriting  return  Total 
 ratio  £000  £000  £000

General business by territory 
united Kingdom and Ireland 101.9% (4,071)  54,514   50,443 
australia and new Zealand 104.6% (2,188)  6,308   4,120 
Canada  101.8% (347)  1,341   994 
Other general insurance   464   29   493 
Inter-territory eliminations  241  (2,578) (2,337)
General business segment result 102.0% (5,901)  59,614   53,713 
long-term business result    (4,449)
all other segments    4,320 
Total segments profit    53,584 

Reconciliation of total segments profit or loss to Group profit or loss    

non-underwriting and finance costs    (4,859)
amortisation of intangibles on acquisitions    (593)
Inter-segment eliminations    (487)
add back: loss before tax from long-term business discontinued operations    2,798 
Profit before tax    50,443

Segment result

General insurance business segmental results comprise the underwriting profit or loss and net investment return earned by each underwriting 
territory. the Group uses the industry standard net combined operating ratio (COR) as a measure of underwriting efficiency. the COR expresses 
the total of net claims costs, commission and expenses as a percentage of net earned premiums.

the long-term business and all other segment results consist of the profit or loss before tax measured in accordance with IFRs.

 2010 2009 
 Gross  Fee and  Gross  Fee and 
 written  commission  written  commission 
 premiums  income  premiums  income 
 £000  £000  £000  £000  
General business by territory 
united Kingdom and Ireland 341,672   36,431   314,721   36,482 
australia and new Zealand  96,331   9,477   80,539   7,638 
Canada 29,145   2,085   23,615   1,436 
Other general insurance 14,570   162   16,072   249 
Inter-territory eliminations (7,312) (3,448) (7,249) (3,252)
Total general business 474,406   44,707   427,698   42,553 
long-term business 20,402   370   20,123   670 
all other segments -   14,255  -   9,444 

Total segments revenue  494,808   59,332   447,821   52,667 
Inter-segment eliminations -  (8,104) -  (4,313)
less: long-term business discontinued operations (6,881) (157) (10,835) (346)

Group revenue from continuing operations 487,927   51,071   436,986   48,008

Group revenues are not materially concentrated on any single external customer. segmental revenues do not include net investment return, 
which is reported within revenue in the consolidated income statement.

Segment revenue
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Segment result (continued)

(b) Geographical information     

Gross written premiums from external customers and non-current assets, as attributed to individual countries which the Group operates in, are as follows:

 2010 2009 
Continuing and discontinued operations Gross written  Non-current  Gross written  non-current 
 premiums  assets  premiums  assets
 £000  £000  £000  £000 
uK 356,942   57,162   332,304   58,303 
australia  84,381   1,977   70,925   1,828 
Canada 29,145   679   23,615   774 
Other overseas 24,340   163   20,977   181 
 494,808   59,981   447,821   61,086

non-current assets exclude rights arising under insurance contracts, deferred tax assets, pension assets and financial instruments.  
Gross written premiums are allocated based on the country in which the insurance contracts are issued. non-current assets are allocated 
based on where the assets are located.     

2009 Combined   Net Investment  
 operating  Underwriting  return  Total 
 ratio  £000  £000  £000 

General business by territory 
united Kingdom and Ireland 87.6%  23,974   56,445   80,419 
australia and new Zealand 97.5%  965   5,031   5,996 
Canada 95.9%  653   1,687   2,340 
Other general insurance  1,359   11   1,370 
Inter-territory eliminations  -  (1,930) (1,930)
General business segment result 89.6%  26,951   61,244   88,195 
long-term business result    (4,251)
all other segments     963 
Total segments profit    84,907 

Reconciliation of total segments profit or loss to Group profit or loss    

non-underwriting and finance costs    (5,169)
amortisation of intangibles on acquisitions    (685)
Inter-segment eliminations    (71)
add back: loss before tax from long-term business discontinued operations    1,084 
Profit before tax    80,066 

    
Reconciliation of general business net investment return to Group net investment return  2010  2009 
   £000  £000 

General business net investment return    59,614   61,244 
long-term business net investment return   18,003   35,678 
all other segments net investment return   4,855   5,171 
net investment return attributable to third party unitholders   17,349   21,177 
Inter-segment eliminations   (1,518) (1,136)
less: long-term business discontinued operations   (12,233) (32,710)
   86,070   89,424 
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6 net insurance premium revenue

  General  Long-term  
  business  business  Total 
  £000  £000  £000 

Continuing operations 
For the year ended 31 December 2010: 
Gross written premiums  474,406   13,521   487,927 
Outward reinsurance premiums  (171,083) -  (171,083)
net written premiums  303,323   13,521   316,844 

Change in the gross provision for unearned premiums  (12,354) -  (12,354)
Change in the provision for unearned premiums, reinsurers’ share  (1,952) -  (1,952)
Change in the net provision for unearned premiums  (14,306) -  (14,306)

Earned premiums, net of reinsurance  289,017   13,521   302,538 

For the year ended 31 December 2009:     
Gross written premiums  427,698   9,288   436,986 
Outward reinsurance premiums  (159,098) -  (159,098)
net written premiums  268,600   9,288   277,888 

Change in the gross provision for unearned premiums  (17,322) -  (17,322)
Change in the provision for unearned premiums, reinsurers’ share  6,765  -   6,765 
Change in the net provision for unearned premiums  (10,557) -  (10,557)

Earned premiums, net of reinsurance  258,043   9,288   267,331 

Discontinued operations     
 Gross written premiums and outward reinsurance premiums of discontinued operations are disclosed in note 16.

7 net investment return

   2010  2009 
   £000  £000 

Income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 
- equity income    16,737   14,253 
- debt income    30,975   32,768 
Income from financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss:  
- interest income on mortgages and other loans    867   1,581 
- cash and cash equivalents income, net of exchange movements   1,842  (172)
- other income received   2,165   2,143 
Other income:
- rental income    1,669   2,203 
Investment income   54,255   52,776 
Fair value movements on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss   43,882   69,601 
Fair value movements on investment property    166  (243)
Net investment return   98,303   122,134 
less: discontinued operations   (12,233) (32,710)
Net investment return of continuing operations   86,070   89,424
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Included within cash and cash equivalents income are exchange gains of £597,000 (2009: £1,126,000 losses).

Included within fair value movements on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are £2,961,000 losses (2009: £16,162,000 losses) 
in respect of derivatives classified as held for trading.

  General  Long-term  
  business  business  Total 
  £000  £000  £000 

Continuing operations 
For the year ended 31 December 2010:     
Gross claims paid  232,562   4,267   236,829 
Gross change in the provision for claims  123,884   29   123,913 
Gross change in long-term business provisions   -   13,731   13,731 
Claims and change in insurance liabilities  356,446   18,027   374,473

Reinsurers’ share of claims paid  (80,491) -  (80,491)
Reinsurers’ share of change in the provision for claims  (82,907) -  (82,907)
Reinsurance recoveries  (163,398) -  (163,398)

Claims and change in insurance liabilities, net of reinsurance  193,048   18,027   211,075 

For the year ended 31 December 2009:     
Gross claims paid  205,144   3,833   208,977 
Gross change in the provision for claims  (17,451) (306) (17,757)
Gross change in long-term business provisions   -   9,144   9,144 
Claims and change in insurance liabilities  187,693   12,671   200,364 
     
Reinsurers’ share of claims paid  (68,347) -  (68,347)
Reinsurers’ share of change in the provision for claims  16,783  -   16,783 
Reinsurance recoveries  (51,564) -  (51,564)

Claims and change in insurance liabilities, net of reinsurance  136,129   12,671   148,800 

Discontinued operations 
Claims and change in insurance liabilities and reinsurance recoveries arising on discontinued operations are disclosed in note 16.

8 Claims and change in insurance liabilities and reinsurance recoveries

9 Fees, commissions and other acquisition costs

   2010  2009 
   £000  £000 

Fees paid    446   337 
Commission paid    67,860   58,330 
Change in deferred acquisition costs   (2,561) (3,209)
Other acquisition costs   30,769   29,188 
less: discontinued operations   (1,358) (1,234)
Fees, commissions and other acquisition costs of continuing operations    95,156   83,412
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10 Profit for the year

 

11 auditor’s remuneration

12 Employee information
the average monthly number of employees, including Executive directors, during the year by geographical location was:   

   2010  2009 
   £000  £000 

Profit for the year has been arrived at after (crediting)/charging:     
net foreign exchange (gains)/losses   (597)  1,126 
depreciation of property, plant and equipment   2,490   2,584 
amortisation of intangible assets   2,050   1,967 
(Increase)/decrease in fair value of investment property   (166)  243 
Employee benefits expense   60,168   61,165 
Operating lease rentals   3,141   2,742

   2010  2009 
   £000  £000 

 Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts  191   206 
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for other services: 

the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries, pursuant to legislation   281   253 
    472   459 

Other services pursuant to legislation   131   177 
tax services    14   14 
Corporate finance services   216  - 
all other services   132   41 

total auditor’s remuneration   965   691 
     
 Other services pursuant to legislation represents Fsa and other regulatory audit work.   

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor in respect of the audit of the Group’s associated pension schemes amounted to £17,000  
(2009: £17,000).

  2010   2009  
 General  Long-term   General  long-term  
 business  business  Other  business  business  Other 
 No.  No.  No.  no.  no.  no. 
Group      
united Kingdom  756   31   94   753   35   101 
australia and new Zealand  174  -  -   167  -  - 
Canada  58  -  -   57  -  - 
Ireland 24  -  -   19  -  - 
 1,012  31   94   996   35   101
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12 Employee information (continued)

the above figures include termination benefits of £1,005,000 (2009: £701,000).

 

13 Remuneration of key management personnel
the remuneration of the directors (including non-Executive directors), who are the key management personnel of the Group, is set out individually 
within the directors’ Remuneration Report, and in aggregate below:

One director who was employed by the Company, was a member of the Group’s defined benefit pension scheme during the year  
(2009: two directors). two directors (2009: two) were members of the Group’s defined contribution scheme during the year.

 
14 Finance costs

   2010  2009 
   £000  £000 

Wages and salaries   47,791   50,015 
social security costs   3,477   4,127 
Pension costs - defined contribution plans    2,239   1,564 
Pension costs - defined benefit plans    3,846   4,204 
Other post-employment benefits   2,815   1,255 
   60,168   61,165

   2010  2009 
   £000  £000 

salaries and other short-term employee benefits   1,530   1,348 
long-term cash incentive   55  99 
Post-employment benefits   84   97 
termination benefits    -   70 
   1,669   1,614 

Post-employment benefits includes £78,046 (2009: £63,125) in respect of contributions to a defined contribution scheme.

 
   2010  2009 
   £000  £000 

highest paid director:  
- emoluments   482   386 
- money purchase pension contributions   47   45 
Chairman’s fees   68   68 

   2010  2009 
   £000  £000 

Interest expense:
- finance leases    125   200 
- other interest charge   27  (15)
less: discontinued operations   (24)  39 
Finance costs of continuing operations   128   224
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15 tax expense

 

tax on the Group’s result before tax differs from the united Kingdom standard rate of corporation tax for the reasons set out in the 
following reconciliation:

a deferred tax charge on fair value movements on owner occupied property of £56,000 (2009: £164,000 credit) and tax relief on 
charitable grants of £5,390,000 (2009: £2,380,000) are taken directly to equity.

a change in the uK standard rate of corporation tax from 28% to 27% was substantively enacted on 20 July 2010 and will be effective 
from 1 april 2011. deferred tax has been provided for at 27% (2009: 28%). Further planned reductions of 1% per annum over 3 years 
(such that the standard rate reaches 24% from april 2014) were announced in the June 2010 Budget but have not yet been substantively 
enacted. had they been substantively enacted the deferred tax liability at year end would have been reduced by £4,679,000.

 
    2010  2009 
    £000  £000 

Current tax - current year   9,973   13,859 
 - prior years   481   41 
deferred tax - temporary differences   4,166   9,019 
 - prior years   -  (127)
 - reduction in tax rate   (1,420) - 
Total tax expense    13,200   22,792 
less: tax credit/(expense) of discontinued operations   517  (267)
Tax expense of continuing operations   13,717   22,525

    2010  2009 
    £000  £000 

Profit before tax (continuing operations)     50,443   80,066 
loss before tax (discontinued operations)    (2,798) (1,084)
Total pre-tax profit    47,645   78,982 
      
 tax calculated at the uK standard rate of tax of 28% (2009: 28%)    13,341   22,115 
      
Factors affecting charge for the year:      
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes     494   665 
non-taxable franked investment income    (3,232) (2,959)
life insurance and other tax paid at non-standard rates    3,249   3,324 
tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was recognised   206  (110)
Impact of reduction in deferred tax rate    (1,420) - 
Other items    81  (157)
adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior periods    481  (86)
Total tax expense    13,200   22,792 
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17 appropriations

 

16 discontinued operations
during the year, the Group entered into a transfer agreement in order to sell its life business excluding its funeral plan related business to 
homeowners Friendly society limited (trading as Engage mutual). the disposal was effected in order to reduce the Group’s exposure to the 
risks and volatility associated with the life business. the disposal was completed on 30 november 2010 by way of an insurance business transfer 
scheme under Part vII of the Financial services and markets act 2000.

the results and cash flows of the discontinued operations, which have been included in the consolidated income statement and consolidated 
statement of cash flows respectively, were as follows:

It is not practicable to allocate the cash flows of the total life business between discontinued and continuing operations for the prior year.

the non-profit fund discontinued operations were 100% reinsured with effect from 1 January 2010 until 30 november 2010 in order to transfer 
the risks and rewards in the reinsured business to the purchaser in preparation for the sale. the reinsurance agreement resulted in the inclusion of 
£101.4 million outward reinsurance premiums, and a £98.4 million increase in reinsurance recoveries. the net difference between these items is 
due to movements in gross insurance reserves.

the business disposed of forms part of the long-term business operating segment.

    11 months ended  year ended
    November 2010  december 2009
    £000   £000 

Gross written premiums    6,881     10,835 
Outward reinsurance premiums    (101,929)   (1,237)
Other revenue    12,390     33,056 
total revenue    (82,658)    42,654 
      
Claims and change in insurance liabilities    (8,063)   (24,803)
Reinsurance recoveries     95,599     918 
Other expenses    (6,736)   (19,853)
total expenses     80,800    (43,738)
      
Loss before tax    (1,858)   (1,084)
attributable tax    1,319    (267)
loss on disposal of discontinued operations, net of selling costs   (940)   -  
attributable tax    (802)   - 
Net loss attributable to discontinued operations    (2,281)   (1,351)

net cash used by operating activities    (7,474) 
net cash from investing activities     5,799  
net cash from financing activities    -  

   2010  2009 
   £000   £000 
amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period:     
Dividends     
non-Cumulative Irredeemable Preference share dividend   5,731   5,731 
   5,731   5,731 
Charitable grants     
Gross charitable grants to the ultimate parent company, allchurches trust limited    19,250   8,500 
tax relief   (5,390) (2,380)
net appropriation for the year    13,860   6,120
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18 disposal of business

 
 November december
 2010  2009 
 £000  £000 
deferred acquisition costs  861   1,459 
Investment property -   4,782 
Financial investments 121,761   266,831 
Reinsurers’ share of contract liabilities 149,517  2,623 
Other assets 1,943   2,848 
Cash and cash equivalents  2,456   4,131 
Insurance contract liabilities (187,236) (198,255)
Investment contract liabilities (55,827) (51,822)
unallocated divisible surplus (25,493) (21,489)
Provisions for other liabilities (556) (556)
deferred tax liabilities (3,450) (4,950)
Current tax liabilities 170  (190)
deferred income (579) (623)
Other liabilities (972) (1,836)
 2,595   2,953 

loss on disposal, net of selling costs (940) 
add back: selling costs 1,973  
Total consideration 3,628  
   
Purchase consideration received in cash and cash equivalents, net of selling costs paid 1,869  
less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of (2,456) 
Net cash outflow arising on disposal (587) 
   
   
 

(a) Disposal of life business (excluding funeral plan related business)

as referred to in note 16, on 30 november 2010 the Group disposed of its life business excluding its funeral plan related business to 
homeowners Friendly society limited (trading as Engage mutual).

the net assets at the date of disposal and at 31 december 2009 were as follows:

the loss on disposal is recognised within the net loss attributable to discontinued operations in the consolidated income statement.

the reinsurance agreement referred to in note 16 resulted in a £144.6 million increase in reinsurers’ share of contract liabilities. under the terms of 
the agreement, £148.6 million of financial investments were transferred to the reinsurer.

(b) Deconsolidation of Ecclesiastical Investment Funds

as part of the transaction referred to in part (a) of this note, financial investments transferred as reinsurance consideration and those disposed 
of includes £56.9 million of investment in Ecclesiastical Investment Funds (EIF), an Open Ended Investment Company. as a result, the Group’s 
subsequent ownership and voting rights in relation to EIF has reduced to below 50% and it is no longer appropriate to consolidate the funds.  
the assets and liabilities of EIF and the net asset value attributable to unitholders have been derecognised as at 30 november 2010. no gain 
or loss arose on the deconsolidation, and subsequently the Group’s share of EIF is measured at fair value and has been recognised within listed 
equity financial investments.
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Group       Other  
      Computer  intangible  
     Goodwill  software  assets  Total 
     £000  £000  £000  £000 

Cost:       
at 1 January 2010      19,387   19,153   3,918   42,458 
additions     -   1,467  -   1,467 
Exchange differences      -   440  -   440 
at 31 december 2010      19,387   21,060   3,918   44,365 
       
Amortisation:       
at 1 January 2010     -   14,907   1,130   16,037 
Charge for the year     -   1,457   593   2,050 
Exchange differences      -   355  -   355 
at 31 december 2010     -   16,719   1,723   18,442 
       
Net book value at 31 December 2010      19,387   4,341   2,195   25,923 
       
Cost:       
at 1 January 2009      18,982   21,220   3,826   44,028 
additions     -   1,505  -   1,505 
acquisition of subsidiaries      405  -   92   497 
Exchange differences      -   301  -   301 
disposals       -  (3,873) -  (3,873)
at 31 december 2009      19,387   19,153   3,918   42,458 
       
Amortisation:       
at 1 January 2009     -   17,164   445   17,609 
Charge for the year       -   1,282   685   1,967 
Exchange differences      -   243  -   243 
disposals     -  (3,782) -  (3,782)
at 31 december 2009     -   14,907   1,130   16,037 
       
Net book value at 31 December 2009      19,387   4,246   2,788   26,421

during the prior year the Group acquired 100% of the issued ordinary share capital of animal Insurance management services limited,  
an insurance brokerage business, giving rise to £497,000 of goodwill and other intangible assets.

£16,885,000 of the goodwill balance in the current and prior year relates to the acquisition of south Essex Insurance holdings limited during 
2008. the recoverable amount, determined on a value in use basis indicates no impairment has arisen. the calculation uses discounted cash 
flow projections based on management approved business plans covering a five year period, with forecast cash flows in the fifth year continuing 
thereafter at a constant growth rate in perpetuity. 

assumptions used are consistent with historical experience within the business acquired and external sources of information, and discounting is at 
the Group’s long-term targeted return on capital.

Other intangible assets consist of acquired customer and distribution relationships, which have an overall remaining useful life of 4 years on a 
weighted average basis.

19 Goodwill and other intangible assets
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Parent        Computer 
        software 
        £000 

Cost:       
at 1 January 2010         15,551 
additions         1,297 
Exchange differences          102 
at 31 december 2010         16,950 
       
Amortisation:       
at 1 January 2010         11,835 
Charge for the year         1,208 
Exchange differences          66 
at 31 december 2010         13,109 
       
Net book value at 31 December 2010         3,841 
       
Cost:       
at 1 January 2009         18,103 
additions         1,244 
Exchange differences          53 
disposals        (3,849)
at 31 december 2009         15,551 
       
Amortisation:       
at 1 January 2009         14,573 
Charge for the year         988 
Exchange differences          32 
disposals        (3,758)
at 31 december 2009         11,835 
       
Net book value at 31 December 2009         3,716

 2010 2009 
 Group Parent  Group  Parent  
 £000  £000  £000  £000

 at 1 January 38,298   26,858   34,048   24,286 
Increase in the period 40,500   30,725   36,008   26,446 
Release in the period (37,939) (26,988) (32,799) (23,976)
disposal of business (861) -  -  - 
Exchange differences  1,484   308   1,041   102 
at 31 december 41,482   30,903   38,298   26,858 

Current  41,474   30,895   37,300   26,809
non-current  8   8   998   49

20 deferred acquisition costs
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21 Pension asset and retirement benefit obligations 
Defined benefit pension plans

the Group’s main scheme is a non-contributory defined benefit scheme for uK employees. the assets of the scheme are held separately from 
those of the Group by the trustee of the Ecclesiastical Insurance Office plc staff Retirement Benefit Fund. an independent qualified actuary 
appointed by the trustee is responsible for undertaking triennial valuations which assess the financial position of the scheme. Pension costs 
for the scheme are determined by the trustee, having considered the advice of the actuary and having consulted with the Employer. the most 
recent triennial valuation was at 31 december 2007. ansvar Insurance Company limited operates a non-contributory defined benefit scheme, the 
contributions to which are determined with the advice of independent qualified actuaries on the basis of triennial valuations. these schemes are 
registered with the Pensions Regulator. Pension liabilities for the Ireland branch are dealt with by payment to an Irish life office. actuarial valuations 
have been reviewed and updated by the actuaries at 31 december 2010 for Ias 19 purposes. all schemes are now closed to new entrants.

the Group also operates a number of defined contribution pension schemes, for which contributions by the Group are disclosed in note 12.

 2010 2009
 Group  Parent Group  Parent 
 £000  £000  £000  £000 

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial  
position are determined as follows: 

Present value of funded obligations  (213,740) (205,196) (190,985) (183,336)
Fair value of plan assets  237,440   227,604 205,628   197,063 
 23,700   22,408   14,643   13,727  

unrecognised actuarial losses 6,485   5,653   12,852   11,792 
net asset in the statement of financial position 30,185   28,061  27,495   25,519 

Movements in the net asset recognised in the statement  
of financial position are as follows:     

at 1 January 27,495   25,519 24,974   23,085 
Exchange differences  (27) (27) (55) (55)
total expense charged in the income statement (3,846) (3,626) (4,204) (3,923)
Contributions paid  6,563   6,195   6,780  6,412
at 31 december 30,185   28,061   27,495   25,519
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the actual return on pension plan assets was a gain of £30,844,000 (2009: £35,005,000 gain).

the principal actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted averages) were as follows:

the amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:

the expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets underlying the current investment 
policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the year end date. Expected returns on equity and 
property investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the respective markets.

 2010 2009
 Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
 £000  £000  £000  £000 

Current service cost 6,405   6,047   4,916   4,607 
Interest cost   10,856   10,417   9,067  8,674 
Expected return on plan assets  (13,733) (13,146) (10,282) (9,822)
net actuarial (gains)/losses recognised during the year (6) (16)  7 (3)
Past service cost   324   324   496   467 
total included in employee benefits expense  3,846   3,626   4,204   3,923 

 2010  2009 

discount rate  5.40% 5.70%
Inflation 3.50% 3.50%
Expected return on plan assets  6.70% 6.00%
Future salary increases  5.00% 5.00%
Future pension increases 3.50% 3.50%

mortality rate  

the average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65, at the year end date, is as follows: 2010  2009 

male 24.0   23.9 
Female 26.4   26.3 
   
the average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65, 20 years after the year end date,  
is as follows: 2010  2009 

male 26.0   25.9 
Female 28.3   28.3 

Plan assets are as follows:  2010    2009 
 Group   Parent Group   Parent 
 £000   £000  £000   £000

Equities 142,293    136,293   100,921    96,382 
Bonds 77,680    74,336  75,819    72,222 
Cash 5,145    4,653   19,981    19,553 
Other 12,322    12,322 8,907    8,906 
  237,440    227,604   205,628    197,063
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the contribution expected to be paid by the Group during the year ending 31 december 2011 is £6.5 million.

  2010   2009 
  Group   Parent  Group   Parent 
  £000   £000  £000   £000 

Scheme assets
as at 1 January   205,628    197,063  170,374   163,398 
Pension benefits paid and payable  (5,501)  (5,265) (6,348)  (6,049)
Contributions paid  6,563    6,195 6,780    6,412 
Expected return on scheme assets  13,733    13,146  10,282    9,822 
actuarial gains  17,111    16,559 24,723    23,663 
Exchange differences   (94)  (94) (183)  (183)
as at 31 december  237,440    227,604  205,628    197,063 

Defined benefit obligation    
as at 1 January   190,985    183,336   143,282    137,295 
Current service cost  6,405    6,047  4,916    4,607 
Past service cost  324    324 496    467 
Pension benefits paid and payable  (5,501)  (5,265) (6,348)  (6,049)
Interest cost  10,856    10,417   9,067    8,674 
actuarial losses  10,795    10,461   39,804    38,574 
Exchange differences   (124)  (124) (232)  (232)
as at 31 december  213,740    205,196  190,985    183,336 
       

History of Group experience gains and losses 2010  2009   2008  2007    2006 
 £000  £000   £000  £000   £000 

Present value of defined benefit obligations (213,740) (190,985)  (143,282) (164,458)  (151,433)
Fair value of scheme assets 237,440   205,628  170,374   189,880    172,365 
surplus  23,700   14,643    27,092   25,422    20,932 
       
Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities 3,046  (516)   3,417   7,379   (1,472)
Experience adjustments on scheme assets 17,111   24,723   (35,820)  3,471    11,171 

the movements in the fair value of scheme assets and the defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:
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Post-employment medical benefits

the Parent operates a post employment medical benefit scheme. the method of accounting, assumptions and the frequency of valuation 
are similar to those used for the defined benefit pension scheme.

the amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are determined as follows:

       2010  2009 
       £000  £000 

Present value of unfunded obligations and net obligations in the statement of financial position   8,652   6,115 
       
Movements in the net obligations recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:    
at 1 January        6,115   5,021 
total expense in the income statement        2,815   1,255 
Benefits paid        (278) (161)
at 31 december        8,652   6,115 
       
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:      
Interest cost         349   277 
Gain on settlement         -  (1,115)
net actuarial losses recognised during the year        1,758   2,093 
Past service cost         708  - 
total expense included in employee benefits expense       2,815   1,255 
       
the main actuarial assumption is a long-term increase in medical costs of 12.0% (2009: 12.0%)  

The effect of a 1% movement in the assumed medical cost trend is as follows:    
       Increase  Decrease 
       £000  £000 

Effect on the aggregate of the current service cost and interest cost     163  (122)
Effect on the medical benefit obligation        2,199  (1,680)
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Group     Furniture,   
  Land and  Motor  fittings and  Computer  
  buildings  vehicles  equipment  equipment  Total 
  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Cost or valuation:      
at 1 January 2010  3,576   2,711   6,386   7,209   19,882 
additions   -   929   529   878   2,336 
Exchange differences    83  -   238   332   653 
disposals   -  (864) (748) (374) (1,986)
Revaluation   (25) -  -  -  (25)
at 31 december 2010  3,634   2,776   6,405   8,045   20,860 
       
Depreciation:
at 1 January 2010  -   910   4,111   4,928   9,949 
Charge for the year  -   478   758   1,254   2,490 
Exchange differences   -  -   126   229   355 
disposals   -  (539) (463) (349) (1,351)
at 31 december 2010  -   849   4,532   6,062   11,443 

Net book value at 31 December 2010  3,634   1,927   1,873   1,983   9,417 
      
Cost or valuation:      
at 1 January 2009   4,332   2,725   6,313   6,635   20,005 
additions   -   819   580   972   2,371 
Exchange differences    62  -   203   239   504 
disposals   -  (833) (710) (637) (2,180)
Revaluation   (818) -  -  -  (818)
at 31 december 2009  3,576   2,711   6,386   7,209   19,882 
     
Depreciation:       
at 1 January 2009   -   958   3,895   4,058   8,911 
Charge for the year  -   460   814   1,310   2,584 
Exchange differences   -  -   109   171   280 
disposals   -  (508) (707) (611) (1,826)
at 31 december 2009  -   910   4,111   4,928   9,949 

Net book value at 31 December 2009   3,576   1,801   2,275   2,281   9,933

Certain properties, held as investment properties by subsidiary undertakings but occupied by the Group, were revalued at 31 december 2010. 
all others were revalued at 31 december 2009. valuations were carried out by Cluttons, an external firm of Chartered surveyors, and were made 
on the basis of open market value. Revaluation movements net of applicable deferred taxes are taken to the revaluation reserve in shareholders’ 
equity. Revaluation movements relating to individual properties for which the current market value is below original cost are recognised within net 
investment return in the income statement.

the value of land and buildings on a historical cost basis is £3,048,000 (2009: £3,023,000).

depreciation expense has been charged in other operating and administrative expenses.

Included within net book value of motor vehicles is £1,723,000 (2009: £1,607,000) in respect of assets held under finance leases.

22 Property, plant and equipment
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Parent    Furniture,   
 Land and  Motor  fittings and  Computer  
 buildings  vehicles  equipment  equipment  Total 
 £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Cost or valuation:      
at 1 January 2010 1,467   2,359   4,195   4,869   12,890 
additions -   799   5   554   1,358 
Exchange differences  -  -   49   21   70 
disposals  -  (726) -  (29) (755)
at 31 december 2010  1,467   2,432   4,249   5,415   13,563 
     
Depreciation:      
at 1 January 2010 -   764   2,850   3,250   6,864 
Provided in the year -   398   500   982   1,880 
Exchange differences  -  -   32   12   44 
disposals  -  (458) -  (29) (487)
at 31 december 2010  -   704   3,382   4,215   8,301 

Net book value at 31 December 2010 1,467   1,728   867   1,200   5,262 
     
Cost or valuation:      
at 1 January 2009 1,870   2,324   4,133   4,522   12,849 
additions -   732   341   639   1,712
Exchange differences  -  -   22   10   32 
disposals -  (697) (301) (302) (1,300)
Revaluation (403) -  -  -  (403)
at 31 december 2009  1,467   2,359   4,195   4,869   12,890 
     
Depreciation:      
at 1 January 2009  -   803   2,603   2,484   5,890 
Provided in the year -   389   536   1,038   1,963 
Exchange differences  -  -   12   6   18 
disposals -  (428) (301) (278) (1,007)
at 31 december 2009 -   764   2,850   3,250   6,864 

Net book value at 31 December 2009  1,467   1,595   1,345   1,619   6,026

the Company’s land and buildings were revalued at 31 december 2009 by Cluttons, an external firm of Chartered surveyors. valuations 
were made on the basis of open market value. Revaluation movements net of applicable deferred taxes are taken to the revaluation reserve 
in shareholders’ equity. Revaluation movements relating to individual properties for which the current market value is below original cost are 
recognised within net investment return in the income statement.

the value of land and buildings on a historical cost basis is £1,601,000 (2009: £1,601,000).

depreciation expense has been charged in other operating and administrative expenses.

Included within net book value of motor vehicles is £1,723,000 (2009: £1,591,000) in respect of assets held under finance leases.
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 2010 2009
 Group  Parent  Group  Parent  
 £000  £000  £000  £000 

net book value at 1 January 24,732   20,950   24,561   21,305 
additions 1,956   4,525   414   414 
disposals (2,213) -  -  - 
Fair value gains/(losses) 166   166  (243) (769)
net book value at 31 december 24,641   25,641   24,732   20,950

 2010 2009
 Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
 £000  £000  £000  £000 

Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss     
Equity securities:
- listed  251,852   225,449   369,333   184,463 
- unlisted  19,143   19,099   19,966   19,825 

Debt securities:
- government bonds  337,975   235,270   397,198   200,380 
- listed   212,231   99,939   243,578   78,040 
- unlisted  285   285   587   294 
 821,486   580,042   1,030,662   483,002 
Loans and receivables     
loans secured by mortgages 12,657  -   23,459  - 
Other loans  20   14   81   15 
 12,677   14   23,540   15 
Parent investments in subsidiary undertakings    
shares in subsidiary undertakings  -   50,285  -   50,457 
 -   50,285  -   50,457 

total financial investments 834,163   630,341   1,054,202   533,474 

the Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 december 2010 by Cluttons, an external firm of Chartered surveyors. valuations were 
made on the basis of open market value.     

Investment properties are held for long-term capital appreciation rather than short term sale. Rental income arising from the investment properties 
owned by the Group amounted to £1,669,000 (2009: £2,203,000) and is included in net investment return. Other operating and administrative 
expenses include £512,000 (2009: £330,000) relating to investment property. Rental income in respect of Parent investment properties 
amounted to £1,695,000 (2009: £1,982,000) and expenses were £496,000 (2009: £287,000).  

all investments in subsidiary undertakings are unlisted.

Included in equity securities of the Group in the prior year are options with a fair value of £2,596,000 that are classified as held for trading. all other 
financial investments are non-current, with the exception of those debt securities maturing within one year, disclosed in note 4(c). Equity and debt 
securities, excluding options, are designated by the Group to be measured at fair value through profit or loss. the directors consider that the carrying value 
of loans and receivables approximates to their fair value. an analysis of financial investments by Ias 39 measurement category is given in note 4(a).

as disclosed in note 18(b), the Group deconsolidated its investment in Ecclesiastical Investment Funds (EIF), an Open Ended Investment Company, on  
30 november 2010, and subsequently the Group’s share of EIF is measured at fair value and has been recognised within listed equity financial investments. 
     

24 Financial investments
Financial investments summarised by measurement category are as follows:

23 Investment property



91Ecclesiastical Insurance Office plc

F
In

a
n

C
Ia

l s
tatE

m
E

n
ts

 

 

Equity/Index contracts  2010    2009   
 Contract/     Contract/   
 notional  Fair value  Fair value  notional  Fair value  Fair value 
 amount  asset  liability  amount  asset  liability 
 £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000

Group 
Futures -  -  -   51,078  -  (1,196)
Options -  -  -   26,000   2,596  - 
totals at 31 december -  -  -   77,078   2,596  (1,196)
       
Parent       
Futures -  -  -   23,575  -  (552)
totals at 31 december  -  -  -   23,575  -  (552)

 2010 2009
 Group  Parent  Group  Parent
 £000  £000  £000  £000 

Receivables arising from insurance and reinsurance contracts:
- due from contract holders  26,985   23,666   22,352   18,977 
- due from agents, brokers and intermediaries   66,756   31,642   59,617   30,443 
- due from reinsurers 10,434   9,312   9,340   9,337 

Other receivables:
- accrued interest and rent 7,243   4,764   8,028   4,417 
- other prepayments and accrued income 3,272   5,386   6,454   5,927 
- amounts owed by related parties  8,627   27,349   4,559   31,349 
- other debtors 13,344   441   12,052   492 
 136,661   102,560   122,402   100,942

the notional amounts above reflect the aggregate of individual derivative positions on a gross basis and so give an indication of the overall scale 
of the derivative transaction. they do not reflect current market values of the open positions.

derivative fair value assets are recognised within financial investments (note 24) and derivative fair value liabilities are recognised within other 
liabilities (note 37).

the contractual undiscounted cash flows in relation to prior year non-hedge derivative liabilities all mature within one year.

amounts pledged as collateral in respect of derivative contracts are disclosed in note 27.

Other assets are current, except for loans to related parties, for which a maturity analysis is presented in note 4(c). the above carrying amounts are 
a reasonable approximation of fair value.

25 derivative financial instruments
the Group utilises non-hedge derivatives to mitigate equity price risk arising from investments held at fair value.

26 Other assets
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26 Other assets (continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts 2010 2009 
 Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
 £000  £000  £000  £000 

Balance at 1 January 4,367   4,034   3,900   3,657 
movement in the year (312) (412)  467   377 
Balance at 31 december 4,055   3,622   4,367   4,034

the Group has recognised a credit of £266,000 (2009: charge of £325,000) in other operating and administrative expenses in the income 
statement for the impairment of its trade and other receivables during the year. the Parent has recognised a credit of £407,000 (2009: charge  
of £188,000).

there has been no significant change in the credit quality of the Group’s trade receivables, for which no collateral is held. the directors consider 
that the amounts are recoverable at their carrying values, which are stated net of an allowance for doubtful debts, based on historic experience of 
credit losses.

the allowance for doubtful debts includes a provision of £656,000 (2009: £617,000) for the Group and £366,000 (2009: £387,000) for the 
Parent, in respect of debtors that are individually determined to be impaired based on an assessment of their ageing profile and credit rating at  
the reporting date.

Included within trade receivables of the Group is £4,508,000 (2009: £8,267,000) overdue but not impaired, of which £3,766,000 (2009: 
£6,834,000) is not more than three months overdue at the reporting date. Included within trade receivables of the Parent is £3,929,000 (2009: 
£7,717,000) overdue but not impaired, of which £3,196,000 (2009: £6,325,000) is not more than three months overdue at the reporting date.

Included within short-term bank deposits are cash deposits of £nil (2009: £3,610,000) for the Group, and £nil (2009: £1,666,000) for the Parent, 
pledged as collateral by way of cash margins on open derivative contracts and cash to cover derivative liabilities. On closure of these contracts any 
derivative liability position is settled, and collateral pledged on the margin ceases.

27 Cash and cash equivalents

 2010 2009
 Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
 £000  £000  £000  £000

Cash at bank and in hand   62,442   38,682   94,629   49,185 
short-term bank deposits  102,363   86,555   98,955   85,498 
 164,805   125,237   193,584   134,683
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transaction costs in excess of the premium on shares issued in the current year of £349,000 have been recognised in other operating and 
administrative expenses in the income statement.

On 16 december 2010 the issued share capital of the Company was increased by the Placing of 40,000,000 additional 8.625% non-Cumulative 
Irredeemable Preference shares of £1 each.

On winding up, the assets of the Company remaining after payment of its liabilities are to be applied to holders of the Irredeemable Preference 
shares in repaying the nominal capital sum paid up on the shares and an amount equal to all arrears of accrued and unpaid dividends up to the 
date of the commencement of the winding up. the residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all liabilities belongs to the 
Ordinary shareholders.

holders of the Irredeemable Preference shares are not entitled to receive notice of, or to attend, or vote at any general meeting of the Company 
unless at the time of the notice convening such meeting, the dividend on such shares which is most recently payable on such shares shall not have 
been paid in full, or where a resolution is proposed varying any of the rights of such shares, or for the winding up of the Company.

29 share premium account

28 Called up share capital

 Issued, allotted 
 and fully paid 
   
 2010  2009 
 £000  £000

Ordinary shares of 10p each 14,027   14,027 
8.625% non-Cumulative Irredeemable Preference shares of £1 each 106,450   66,450 
 120,477   80,477 

Movements in the number of shares in issue during the year were as follows: 2010  2009 
 000s  000s

Ordinary shares of 10p each   
at 1 January and 31 december  140,270   140,270 
   
8.625% non-Cumulative Irredeemable Preference shares of £1 each   
at 1 January  66,450   66,450 
shares issued 40,000  - 
at 31 december 106,450   66,450 

 2010  2009  
 £000  £000 

at 1 January 4,632   4,632 
Premium on shares issued 800  - 
Expenses of issue of shares (800) - 
at 31 december 4,632   4,632



94 Ecclesiastical Insurance Office plc

nOtEs tO thE FInanCIal statEmEnts

 

 2010 2009
 Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
 £000  £000  £000  £000 

Gross     
Claims outstanding  668,091   469,304   522,570   407,684 
unearned premiums   236,555   164,365   214,496   152,599 
long-term business provision 60,663  -   242,252  - 
total gross insurance liabilities 965,309   633,669   979,318   560,283 
  
Recoverable from reinsurers     
Claims outstanding  217,950   116,508   124,769   92,827 
unearned premiums  68,244   42,683   66,531   44,627 
long-term business provision -  -   2,591  - 
total reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities  286,194   159,191   193,891   137,454 
     
Net     
Claims outstanding 450,141   352,796   397,801   314,857 
unearned premiums  168,311   121,682   147,965   107,972 
long-term business provision 60,663  -   239,661  - 
total net insurance liabilities 679,115   474,478   785,427   422,829 
  
Gross insurance liabilities     
Current   474,131   314,514   382,692   274,624 
non-current  491,178   319,155   596,626   285,659 
Reinsurance assets    
Current  183,746   102,090   126,947   89,059 
non-current  102,448   57,101   66,944   48,395 

(a) General business insurance contracts

(i) Reserving methodology

Reserving for non-life insurance claims is a complex process and the Group adopts recognised actuarial methods, and, where appropriate, other 
calculations and statistical analysis. actuarial methods used include chain ladder, the Bornhuetter-Ferguson and average cost methods.

Chain ladder methods extrapolate paid amounts, incurred amounts (paid claims plus case estimates), the number of claims or average cost of 
claims, to ultimate claims based on the development of previous years. this method assumes that previous patterns are a reasonable guide to 
future developments. Where this assumption is felt to be unreasonable, adjustments are made or other methods such as Bornhuetter-Ferguson  
or average cost are used. the Bornhuetter-Ferguson method places more credibility on expected loss ratios for the most recent loss years.  
For smaller portfolios the materiality of the business and data available may also shape the methods used in reviewing reserve adequacy.

the selection of results for each accident year and for each portfolio depends on an assessment of the most appropriate method.  
sometimes a combination of techniques is used.

(ii) Calculation of uncertainty margins

to reflect the uncertain nature of the outcome of the ultimate settlement cost of claims an uncertainty margin is added to the best estimate.  
the addition for uncertainty is assessed primarily by the thomas mack actuarial method, based on at least the 75th percentile confidence level 
for each portfolio. For smaller portfolios where the thomas mack method cannot be applied, provisions have been calculated at a level intended 
to be equally prudent. Where the standard methods cannot allow for changing circumstances then additional uncertainty margins are added and 
are typically expressed as a percentage of outstanding claims. this approach generally results in a favourable release of provisions in the current 
financial year, arising from the settlement of claims relating to previous financial years, as shown in part (c) of the note.

30 Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets
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(iii) Calculation of provisions for latent claims

the Group adopts commonly used industry methods including those based on claims frequency and severity and benchmarking.

(iv) Assumptions

the Group follows a process of reviewing its reserves for outstanding claims on a quarterly basis. this involves an appraisal of each portfolio with 
respect to ultimate claims liability for the recent exposure period as well as for earlier periods, together with a review of the factors that have the 
most significant impact on the assumptions used to determine the reserving methodology. the work conducted on each portfolio is subject to an 
internal peer review and management sign-off process.

the most significant assumptions in determining general insurance reserves are the anticipated number and ultimate settlement cost of 
claims, and the extent to which reinsurers will share in the cost. Factors which influence decisions on assumptions include legal and judicial 
changes, significant weather events, other catastrophes, subsidence events, exceptional claims or substantial changes in claims experience and 
developments in older or latent claims. significant factors influencing assumptions about reinsurance are terms of the reinsurance treaties,  
the anticipated time taken to settle a claim and the incidence of large individual and aggregated claims.

(v) Change in assumptions

there are no significant changes in assumptions.

(vi) Sensitivity of results

the ultimate amount of claims settlement is uncertain and the Group’s aim is to reserve at a prudent level.

If final settlement of insurance claims reserved for at the year end turns out to be 10% higher or lower than that included in these financial 
statements, the following pre-tax Group loss or profit will be realised:

 

  2010   2009  
 Gross   Net Gross  net
 £000  £000  £000  £000 

liability - uK  20,500  18,200  19,300  17,100 
 - Overseas  9,600  9,100  9,300  7,600 
Property - uK  8,300  5,100  6,400  3,900 
 - Overseas  19,300  4,900  9,500  4,400 
motor - uK  2,900   2,300  3,000  2,200 
 - Overseas  300  100  300  100 
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(vii) Claims development tables

the nature of liability classes of business is that claims may take a number of years to settle and before the final liability is known.  
the tables below show the development of the estimate of ultimate gross and net claims cost for these classes across all territories.  

nOtEs tO thE FInanCIal statEmEnts
30 Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets (continued)

Estimate of gross ultimate claims:

 2001  2002  2003  2004  2005  2006  2007  2008  2009  2010  Total 
Group £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

at end of year  37,105   37,794   42,800   42,503   46,155   45,688   50,840   56,420   74,742   84,476 
One year later 38,410   35,255   38,919   40,075   32,998   45,900   47,307   53,552   59,807  
two years later 37,494   33,978   36,741   35,645   35,001   40,092   43,270   47,643   
three years later 33,385   29,817   33,859   33,431   30,365   36,168   35,510    
Four years later 31,165   26,322   32,361   31,870   26,835   30,791     
Five years later 29,159   25,183   32,517   25,912   25,860      
six years later 28,679   27,319   31,855   25,713       
seven years later 29,120   27,654   32,067        
Eight years later 29,401   28,998         
nine years later 29,697          

Current estimate  
of ultimate claims   29,697   28,998   32,067   25,713   25,860   30,791   35,510   47,643   59,807   84,476   400,562 
Cumulative payments 
to date  (26,636) (23,963) (28,858) (20,861) (17,895) (17,046) (14,298) (11,071) (5,635) (1,405) (167,668)
Outstanding liability  3,061   5,035   3,209   4,852   7,965   13,745   21,212   36,572   54,172   83,071   232,894

liability in respect of earlier years            68,635 
total gross liability (for liability classes) included in insurance liabilities in the statement of financial position    301,529  

 2001  2002  2003  2004  2005  2006  2007  2008  2009  2010  Total 
Parent £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

at end of year  33,563   32,912   33,933   34,810   37,091   35,850   38,846   42,497   55,957   64,258 
One year later 34,152   29,414   30,687   32,841   25,018   34,405   36,599   39,746   40,247  
two years later 33,184   28,401   29,574   27,652   27,035   31,058   32,112   35,207   
three years later 29,545   25,381   27,878   25,650   23,472   28,630   27,299    
Four years later 27,763   22,587   25,514   25,301   20,319   23,491     
Five years later 26,350   21,801   22,728   20,814   19,562      
six years later 25,852   23,679   22,248   20,065       
seven years later 26,020   23,666   21,966        
Eight years later 25,534   24,482         
nine years later 25,331          
 
Current estimate  
of ultimate claims     25,331   24,482   21,966   20,065   19,562   23,491   27,299   35,207   40,247   64,258   301,908   
Cumulative payments  
to date  (23,089) (20,177) (19,365) (16,514) (14,192) (13,895) (11,005) (8,480) (4,479) (1,024) (132,220)
Outstanding liability    2,242   4,305   2,601   3,551   5,370   9,596   16,294   26,727   35,768   63,234   169,688  
           
liability in respect of earlier years             52,907   
total gross liability (for liability classes) included in insurance liabilities in the statement of financial position     222,595  
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Estimate of net ultimate claims:

 2001  2002  2003  2004  2005  2006  2007  2008  2009  2010  Total 
Group £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

at end of year 32,882   34,480   34,483   35,349   39,528   41,007   46,235   51,795   64,476   73,218 
One year later 32,098   29,269   30,253   34,867   32,780   40,976   43,107   48,432   53,700  
two years later 27,680   26,140   29,791   29,447   31,287   35,783   38,979   44,498   
three years later 26,476   24,934   28,897   28,486   28,641   33,145   34,180    
Four years later 24,423   21,787   26,142   27,840   25,665   30,283     
Five years later 23,011   20,393   25,018   24,560   25,391      
six years later 22,562  21,103   23,375   24,482       
seven years later 23,405   21,378   23,300        
Eight years later 24,006   21,793         
nine years later 24,463          
 
Current estimate  
of ultimate claims   24,463   21,793   23,300   24,482   25,391   30,283   34,180   44,498   53,700   73,218   355,308 
Cumulative payments  
to date  (21,797) (18,158) (20,120) (19,654) (17,607) (16,888) (14,053) (11,015) (5,597) (1,302) (146,191)
Outstanding liability   2,666   3,635   3,180   4,828   7,784   13,395   20,127   33,483   48,103   71,916   209,117  

liability in respect of earlier years            63,869 
total net liability (for liability classes) included in insurance liabilities in the statement of financial position      272,986 

 2001  2002  2003  2004  2005  2006  2007  2008  2009  2010  Total 
Parent £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

at end of year 28,943   28,770   27,762   28,642   30,653   31,402   34,571   38,956   47,814   53,547 
One year later 27,267   23,766   24,478   27,939   25,136   30,348   32,999   35,727   36,718  
two years later 23,587   21,553   24,394   23,170   23,820   27,656   28,688   32,337   
three years later 23,152  20,914   24,521   22,861   22,217   26,133   26,289    
Four years later 21,418   18,645   22,231   22,647   19,974   23,143     
Five years later 20,574   17,731   20,594   20,598   19,530      
six years later 20,082   18,205   20,071   20,030       
seven years later 20,791   18,209   19,698        
Eight years later 20,522   18,282         
nine years later 20,453          

Current estimate  
of ultimate claims    20,453   18,282   19,698   20,030   19,530   23,143   26,289   32,337   36,718   53,547   270,027 
Cumulative payments  
to date  (18,606) (15,226) (17,119) (16,503) (14,173) (13,895) (11,005) (8,479) (4,479) (1,024) (120,509)
Outstanding liability   1,847   3,056   2,579   3,527   5,357   9,248   15,284   23,858   32,239   52,523   149,518 

liability in respect of earlier years            48,613 
total net liability (for liability classes) included in insurance liabilities in the statement of financial position    198,131
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  2010   2009  
 With-  Non- With-  non- 
 profit  profit  profit   profit 

uK and overseas government bonds: non-linked n/a n/a 2.18% 3.09%
uK government: index-linked n/a -0.30% n/a 0.35%
Corporate debt instruments: non-linked n/a n/a 3.59% 3.72%
Corporate debt instruments: index linked n/a 0.17% n/a 0.39%
Equities and collective investment vehicles n/a n/a 5.25% n/a
loans secured by mortgages n/a n/a n/a 6.05%
Cash and deposits n/a n/a 0.23% 0.19%
land and buildings n/a n/a 4.33% 4.87%

(b) Long-term insurance and group life yearly renewable contracts 

(i) Assumptions 

the most significant assumptions in determining long-term business reserves are as follows: 

mortality 
an appropriate base table of standard mortality is chosen depending on the type of contract. 

Investment returns 
Projected investment returns are based on actual yields for each asset class less an allowance for credit risk. the risk adjusted yields after 
allowance for tax and investment expenses for the current valuation are: 

a weighted average rate of investment return is derived by combining different proportions of the above financial assets in model portfolios,  
which are assumed to back each major class of liabilities. For index-linked assets the real yield is shown.

Funeral plan business renewal expense level and inflation

numbers of policies in force and both projected and actual expenses have been considered when setting the base renewal expense level.  
the unit renewal expense assumption for this business is £19.00 per annum (2009: £11.50 per annum), including all long-term business 
overheads following the part-disposal disclosed in note 16.

Expense inflation is set with reference to the index-linked uK government bond rates of return, and published figures for earnings inflation,  
and is assumed to be 3.28% per annum (2009: 4.60%).

tax 
It has been assumed that current tax legislation and rates continue unaltered.

 Long-term business reserves assumptions in the prior year, relating to the disposed business 
 The remainder of part b(i) of this note relates to prior year disclosure of assumptions for that part of the long-term business 
 that has been disposed of during the current year.

mortality 
an appropriate base table of standard mortality is chosen depending on the type of contract. For contracts insuring survivorship, an allowance 
is made for future mortality improvements based on trends identified in the data and in the continuous mortality investigations performed by 
independent actuarial bodies.

morbidity 
no allowance is made for recovery from disability when setting reserves for claims in payment.

Renewal expense level 
the unit renewal expense assumption for third-party administered term assurance business in the prior year was £11.50 per annum. the base 
unit renewal expense assumption for other business in the prior year increased to £73.00 per annum. the unit renewal expense assumption for 
overseas term assurance business in the prior year was €28.00 per annum. the level of unit renewal expenses charged to the with-profit fund is 
set. the non-profit fund bears any surplus or deficit.
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(ii) Changes in assumptions

Projected investment returns have been revised in line with the changes in the actual yields of the underlying assets. as a result liabilities have 
increased by £2.6 million (2009: £2.8 million increase).

the effect on insurance liabilities of the changes to unit renewal expense assumptions (described in (i) above) for non-profit business, including 
funeral plan business, was a £1.1 million increase (2009: £0.5 million increase). For with-profit business in the prior year the effect was a £0.7 
million increase.

mortality assumptions have been adjusted in line with regulatory rules and have increased liabilities by £0.8 million (2009: £nil).

a reduction in projected investment expenses to 0.1% funds under management (2009: 0.25%) has reduced liabilities by £0.5 million (2009: £nil).

(iii) Sensitivity analysis

the sensitivity of the profit or loss before tax to changes in the key assumptions used to calculate non-profit fund insurance liabilities is shown in 
the following table. no account has been taken of any correlation between the assumptions.

Change in  
variable

Pontential increase/
(decrease) in the result

2010 2009

£000 £000

Variable

deterioration in annuitant mortality -10% (300) 3,300

Improvement in annuitant mortality +10% 300 (3,800)

Increase in fixed interest/cash yields +1%pa (1,100) -

decrease in fixed interest/cash yields -1%pa 1,200 (100)

decrease in equity and property values -5% – (200)

Worsening of base renewal expense level +10% (400) (2,000)

Improvement in base renewal expense level -10% 400 1,800

Increase in expense inflation +1%pa (400) (1,800)

decrease in expense inflation -1%pa 300 1,500

Changes to with-profit liabilities had no direct effect on shareholders’ equity.
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30 Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets (continued)

 

 With-profit  non-profit  share-  total   
 life  life  holders’  life  Other  Group 
 fund  fund  fund  business  activities  total 
 £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

2010 
shareholders’ equity -  (6,746)  33,636   26,890   430,017   456,907 
adjustments to assets/liabilities  -   12,500  (12,500) -  (67,131) (67,131)
adjustments to actuarial liabilities  -  (2,822) -  (2,822) -  (2,822)
total available capital resources  -    2,932   21,136   24,068   362,886   386,954 

Policyholder liabilities:      
- other life insurance business  -   60,663  -   60,663   
net actuarial liabilities on statement  
of financial position  -   60,663  -   60,663   
      
2009      
shareholders’ equity -  (1,139)  30,697   29,558   363,263   392,821 
unallocated divisible surplus   21,489  -  -   21,489  (8,383)  13,106 
adjustments to assets/liabilities  (1,054)  193  -  (861) (68,214) (69,075)
adjustments to actuarial liabilities  -  (4,782) -  (4,782) -  (4,782)
Group contingent loans  -   8,000  -   8,000  (8,000) - 
total available capital resources   20,435   2,272   30,697   53,404   278,666   332,070 
      
Policyholder liabilities:      
- with-profit business  99,042  -  -   99,042   
- unit-linked business -   48,909  -   48,909   
- other investment business  -   2,912  -   2,912   
- other life insurance business  -   140,620  -   140,620   
net actuarial liabilities on statement  
of financial position   99,042   192,441  -   291,483   

(iv) Available capital resources

shareholders’ equity/(deficit) in the non-profit fund represents the net profit or loss generated by this fund not transferred, to date, to the 
shareholders’ fund. the life shareholders’ fund is the balance of shareholder equity in the life business. the movement in the unallocated divisible 
surplus is analysed in note 32. the adjustments to assets/liabilities relate to both assets and liabilities which are not admissible for Fsa solvency 
purposes. the adjustment for the with-profit fund in the prior year is the elimination of deferred acquisition costs. the adjustments to the non-profit 
fund net assets/(liabilities) are capitalised computer software, deferred acquisition costs and deferred income from investment contracts.

Other activities include the general insurance business of the Parent and its subsidiaries, and consequently all Group capital not required to meet 
the solvency requirements of the general business is available to meet the solvency requirements of the life business.

the available capital resources in the non-profit life fund, subject to the regulatory capital requirements of the fund itself, is available to meet 
requirements elsewhere in the Group. the prior year unallocated divisible surplus is not available to meet requirements elsewhere in the Group.  
the capital requirements of the life business are based on the Fsa capital requirements.

the Group uses both its Individual Capital assessment and its Individual Capital Guidance as a tool for determining capital requirements and their 
sensitivity to various risks. the Group manages these risks by means of its underwriting strategy, reinsurance strategy, investment strategy,  
and management control framework.
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assumptions, and the effect of changes in these assumptions on profit or loss, are covered in the long-term insurance and group life yearly 
renewable contracts section of this note.

 

 With-profit  non-profit  share-  total 
 life  life  holders’  life 
 fund  fund  fund  business 
 £000  £000  £000  £000

2010     
Published capital resources as at 31 december 2009 20,435   2,272   30,697   53,404 
disposal of business  (20,435) (4,625) -  (25,060)
Effect of new business   -  (3,508) -  (3,508)
variance between actual and expected experience   -   212  -   212 
Effect of changes to valuation process   -   162  -   162 
Effect of changes to valuation interest rates   -   2,560  -   2,560 
Effect of changes to unit renewal expense assumptions  -  (1,349) -  (1,349)
Effect of change to inflation assumption   -  (12) -  (12)
Effect of change to investment expense assumption  -   489  -   489 
Effect of changes to mortality assumptions   -  (789) -  (789)
transfers between funds   -   12,500  (12,500) - 
Repayment of contingent loan  -  (4,372) -  (4,372)
Other movements  -  (608)  2,939   2,331  
Capital resources as at 31 december 2010  -    2,932   21,136   24,068  

(v) Movements in life capital
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30 Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets (continued)

 

 Gross  Reinsurance  Net 
Group £000  £000  £000 

Claims outstanding
at 1 January 2010 522,570  (124,769)  397,801 
Cash (paid)/received for claims settled in the year (255,908)  86,852  (169,056)
Change in liabilities/reinsurance assets:
- arising from current year claims 448,666  (190,556)  258,110 
- arising from prior year claims (65,112)  20,754  (44,358)
disposal of business (6,664)  44  (6,620)
Exchange differences   24,539  (10,275)  14,264 
at 31 december 2010 668,091  (217,950)  450,141 

Provision for unearned premiums    
at 1 January 2010 214,496  (66,531)  147,965 
Increase in the period 230,308  (65,804)  164,504 
Release in the period (217,954)  67,756  (150,198)
Exchange differences  9,705  (3,665)  6,040 
at 31 december 2010 236,555  (68,244)  168,311 

Long-term business provision    
at 1 January 2010 242,252  (2,591)  239,661 
Reinsurance of existing business -  (94,999) (94,999)
Effect of new business during the year 18,096 (2,648)  15,448
Effect of claims during the year (28,122)  8,801 (19,321)
Changes in assumptions 2,778 2,209  4,987 
Change in methodology 25  (159) (134)
disposal of business (180,572)  91,786  (88,786)
Other movements 6,206 (2,399)  3,807  
at 31 december 2010 60,663  -   60,663

Claims outstanding    
at 1 January 2009 531,931  (139,482)  392,449 
Cash (paid)/received for claims settled in the year (233,829)  68,936  (164,893)
Change in liabilities/reinsurance assets:
- arising from current year claims 282,991  (76,238)  206,753 
- arising from prior year claims (66,431)  24,117  (42,314)
Exchange differences   7,908  (2,102)  5,806 
at 31 december 2009 522,570  (124,769)  397,801 

Provision for unearned premiums   
at 1 January 2009 190,570  (57,209)  133,361 
Increase in the period 208,639  (64,292)  144,347 
Release in the period (191,317)  57,527  (133,790)
Exchange differences  6,604  (2,557)  4,047 
at 31 december 2009 214,496  (66,531)  147,965 

Long-term business provision    
at 1 January 2009 233,645  (2,230)  231,415 
Effect of new business during the year 14,518  (1,236)  13,282 
Effect of claims during the year (27,149)  589  (26,560)
Changes in assumptions 6,992  -   6,992 
Change in methodology 534  -   534 
Other movements 13,712   286   13,998 
at 31 december 2009 242,252  (2,591)  239,661 

(c) Movements in insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets
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 Gross  Reinsurance  Net 
Parent £000  £000  £000 

Claims outstanding
at 1 January 2010 407,684  (92,827)  314,857 
Cash (paid)/received for claims settled in the year (163,814)  42,784  (121,030)
Change in liabilities/reinsurance assets:   
- arising from current year claims 271,650  (82,235)  189,415 
- arising from prior year claims (49,872)  17,082  (32,790)
Exchange differences  3,656  (1,312)  2,344 
at 31 december 2010  469,304  (116,508)  352,796 

Provision for unearned premiums
at 1 January 2010 152,599  (44,627)  107,972 
Increase in the period 163,601  (42,473)  121,128 
Release in the period (152,973)  44,628  (108,345)
Exchange differences  1,138  (211)  927 
at 31 december 2010 164,365  (42,683)  121,682 

Claims outstanding    
at 1 January 2009  430,930  (111,342)  319,588 
Cash (paid)/received for claims settled in the year (150,576)  41,599  (108,977)
Change in liabilities/reinsurance assets:   
- arising from current year claims 181,870  (42,660)  139,210 
- arising from prior year claims (50,318)  18,036  (32,282)
Exchange differences  (4,222)  1,540  (2,682)
at 31 december 2009 407,684  (92,827)  314,857 

Provision for unearned premiums
at 1 January 2009 140,414  (40,307)  100,107 
Increase in the period 151,707  (44,392)  107,315 
Release in the period (139,868)  40,143  (99,725)
Exchange differences  346  (71)  275 
at 31 december 2009 152,599  (44,627)  107,972 
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31 Investment contract liabilities
Group investment contract liabilities in the prior year are financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Investment contracts consist of unit-linked contracts and temporary annuities. the benefits offered under the unit-linked contracts are based on 
the return from selected equities and debt securities. Investment contracts were disposed of during the year.

there has been no change in the carrying value of these liabilities resulting from their credit risk (2009: £nil).

the amount of the change in the fair value of these liabilities in the prior year not attributable to the change in the underlying assets was an 
increase of £1,200,000.

the maturity value of these financial liabilities is determined by the fair value of the linked assets, at maturity date, or by the fair value of future 
benefits which will mature. at the maturity date there will be no difference between the carrying amount and the maturity amount.

32 unallocated divisible surplus
the prior year unallocated divisible surplus in the Group’s with-profit fund is calculated as the value of net assets less the insurance liabilities, and is 
wholly available for allocation to with-profit policyholders. the Group does not participate in this surplus. the fair value cannot be measured reliably 
due to the discretionary nature of these benefits.

the movement in the unallocated divisible surplus during the period can be analysed as follows:

 2010 2009
 £000 £000

Current -   3,587 
non-current -   48,235 
total -   51,822 

 2010 2009
 £000 £000

At 1 January 21,489   15,874 
net earned premiums 3,193   4,659 
Fee and commission income -   103 
Investment income 5,052   5,760 
Fair value gains 2,917 8,514 
Claims (16,409) (17,756)
Change in insurance liability:
- reversionary bonuses allocated -  (2,045)
- other  8,946   8,326 
Reinsurance recoveries  1   140 
Fees, commissions and other acquisition costs (202) (215)
Other operating and administrative expenses (863) (1,019)
Finance costs (15)  51 
transfer from shareholders’ fund  -   173 
tax credit/(expense)  1,384  (1,076)
disposal of business (25,493) - 
At 31 December -   21,489 
  

In 2010, profits allocated by the with-profit fund in the form of discretionary benefits amounted to £1,900,000 (2009: £4,066,000).  
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33 Finance lease obligations
 

 2010 2009
 Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
 £000  £000  £000  £000 

minimum lease obligations payable:     
Within 1 year 701   701   772   759 
Between 1 & 5 years 1,394   1,394   1,116   1,116 
 2,095   2,095   1,888   1,875 

less future finance charges (197) (197) (192) (192)
Present value of finance lease obligations 1,898   1,898   1,696   1,683 

the present value of minimum lease obligations payable:     
Within 1 year 587   587   660   647 
Between 1 & 5 years 1,311   1,311   1,036   1,036 
 1,898   1,898   1,696   1,683 

Finance lease obligations are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to the lessor in the event of default. the carrying amount 
of finance lease obligations equates to fair value.
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Regulatory levies

the Group is required under the Financial services Compensation scheme to contribute towards any levies raised on uK general and life insurance 
business. the amount of the levy has historically been based on a proportion of uK written premium. the Group’s provision was increased in 2008, 
reflecting management’s view of the impact of changes in the funding arrangements (such that insurers may also be required to contribute to levies 
arising from compensation paid to retail deposit holders) amid uncertainty regarding the extent of the banking crisis. the current year reduced 
provision reflects an updated assessment of the total potential levies.

Restructuring and other provisions

the provision for restructuring and other costs relates mainly to onerous lease costs arising from the restructure of the Group’s uK operations. 

 

  Restructuring  
 Regulatory  and other  
 levies  provisions  Total 
 £000  £000  £000 

Group 
at 1 January 2010 13,081   1,149   14,230 
additional provisions  367   161   528 
used during year  (677) (307) (984)
not utilised (2,013) (25) (2,038)
disposal of business (556) -  (556)
Exchange differences  -   47   47 
at 31 december 2010 10,202   1,025   11,227 

Current  10,202   224   10,426 
non-current   -   801   801 

Parent    
at 1 January 2010 11,193   844   12,037 
additional provisions  367  -   367 
used during year  (677) (169) (846)
not utilised (1,813) -  (1,813)
at 31 december 2010 9,070   675   9,745 

Current  9,070   200   9,270 
non-current   -   475   475 

34 Provisions for other liabilities

nOtEs tO thE FInanCIal statEmEnts
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   Net    
  Unrealised  retirement    
  gains on  benefit  Equalisation  Other  
  investments  assets  reserve  differences  Total 
  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Group 
at 1 January 2009   25,035   5,480   5,043  (5,789)  29,769 
Charged/(credited) to income   8,020   411   1,026  (565)  8,892 
Credited to equity  -  -  -  (569) (569)
Exchange differences   9  (7) -  (340) (338)
at 31 december 2009   33,064   5,884   6,069  (7,263)  37,754 
      
Charged/(credited) to income   3,992  (45) (807)  1,026   4,166 
(Credited)/charged to income -

resulting from reduction in tax rate  (1,029) (210) (218)  37  (1,420)
Charged to equity  -  -  -   1,322   1,322 
Credited to equity -

resulting from reduction in tax rate  -  -  -  (6) (6)
Disposal of business  (3,450) -  -  -  (3,450)
Exchange differences   7  (3) -  (569) (565)
At 31 December 2010   32,584   5,626   5,044  (5,453)  37,801

   Net    
  Unrealised  retirement    
  gains on  benefit  Equalisation  Other  
  investments  assets  reserve  differences  Total 
  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Parent 
at 1 January 2009   21,195   4,951   4,825  (2,462)  28,509 
Charged to income   6,828   387   974   226   8,415 
Credited to equity  -  -  -  (453) (453)
Exchange differences   2  (7) -  (33) (38)
at 31 december 2009   28,025   5,331   5,799  (2,722)  36,433 
      
Charged/(credited) to income   5,186  (87) (868) (473)  3,758 
(Credited)/charged to income -

resulting from reduction in tax rate  (1,001) (187) (208)  34  (1,362)
Charged to equity  -  -  -   1,260   1,260 
Credited to equity -

resulting from reduction in tax rate  -  -  -  (6) (6)
Exchange differences  (3) (3) -  (62) (68)
At 31 December 2010   32,207   5,054   4,723  (1,969)  40,015 

35 deferred tax
an analysis and reconciliation of the movement of the key components of the net deferred tax liability during the current and prior reporting period 
is as follows:
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35 deferred tax (continued)

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. the following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

 

 

 2010 2009
 Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
 £000  £000  £000  £000 

deferred tax liabilities 42,321   40,912   41,127   37,103 
deferred tax assets (4,520) (897) (3,373) (670)
  37,801   40,015   37,754   36,433 

 2010 2009
 Group Parent  Group  Parent 
 £000  £000  £000  £000 

Reinsurance commissions receivable 20,150   13,842   19,619   14,021 
Investment contract fee income -  -   623  - 
Other deferred income  412  -   395  - 
total 20,562   13,842   20,637   14,021

Current  20,557   13,837   20,015   13,991 
non-current   5   5   622   30 

the Group has unused tax losses of £9,773,000 (2009: £29,209,000) arising from life business deferred acquisition costs, pension business and 
capital transactions, which are available for offset against future profits. no deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability of 
future profit streams.

the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries and branches for which deferred tax 
liabilities have not been recognised is £83,962,000 (2009: £74,056,000). no liability has been recognised in respect of these differences because 
the Group is in a position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that such differences will not reverse in 
the foreseeable future.

Investment contract fee income in the prior year comprises front-end fees received from investment contract holders as a prepayment for asset 
management and related services. these amounts are non-refundable and are released to income as the services are rendered.

36 deferred income
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 2010 2009
 Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
 £000  £000  £000  £000 

Creditors arising out of direct insurance operations 2,343   454   2,660   937 
Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations  17,665   11,788   13,554   10,873 
derivative liabilities  -  -   1,196   552 
Other creditors 15,322   7,029   14,047   6,399 
amounts owed to related parties 956   1,230   4,532   5,577 
accruals 12,239   9,037   16,876   12,396 
 48,525   29,538   52,865   36,734

Current  48,525   29,538   49,865   34,534 
non-current  -  -   3,000   2,200 

 2010 2009
 Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
 £000  £000  £000  £000 

Property, plant and equipment 184   132   306   306 

 2010 2009
 Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
 £000  £000  £000  £000 

Within 1 year 1,530   1,628   1,753   1,466 
Between 1 & 5 years 4,479   4,867   4,763   3,894 
after 5 years  7,416   7,416   8,434   7,005 
 13,425   13,911   14,950   12,365 

derivative liabilities are in respect of equity futures contracts and are detailed in note 25.

the above carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

37 Other liabilities

38 Commitments
Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the year end date but not yet incurred is as follows:

Operating lease commitments

the Group leases premises and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. 

the future aggregate minimum lease rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
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38 Commitments (continued)

 

 

 2010 2009
 Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
 £000  £000  £000  £000 

Within 1 year   2,707   1,860   2,628   1,822 
Between 1 & 5 years 8,600   6,205   8,048   6,798 
after 5 years 2,964   2,964   3,871   3,871 
 14,271   11,029   14,547   12,491 
     
 
Operating lease rentals charged to the income statement during the year  3,141   2,125   2,742   1,953 

total future minimum sublease payments expected to be received  
under non-cancellable subleases 211   211   353   295 

Subsidiary undertakings  Holding of shares by:
 Share capital Parent Subsidiary

Incorporated and operating in Great Britain, engaged in investment,  
insurance and financial services or other insurance related business:

ansvar Insurance Company limited
(see note 40 for non-adjusting subsequent event) Ordinary shares 100% - 

Ecclesiastical Financial advisory services limited Ordinary shares 100% - 

Ecclesiastical Investment management limited  
(formerly Ecclesiastical Insurance management services limited) Ordinary shares 100% - 

Ecclesiastical life limited Ordinary shares 100% - 

south Essex Insurance Brokers limited Ordinary shares -  100%

Incorporated and operating in Australia, engaged in insurance business:

ansvar Insurance limited Ordinary shares 100% - 

Incorporated and operating in New Zealand, engaged in insurance business:

ansvar Insurance limited Ordinary shares -  100%

the future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

39 Parent and subsidiary undertakings
Ultimate parent company and controlling party

the Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ecclesiastical Insurance Group plc. Its ultimate parent and controlling company is allchurches trust 
limited. Both companies are incorporated and operate in Great Britain and copies of their financial statements are available from the registered 
office as shown on page 113. the parent companies of the smallest and largest groups for which group financial statements are drawn up are 
Ecclesiastical Insurance Office plc and allchurches trust limited respectively. all the subsidiaries listed are included within the consolidated 
financial statements. voting rights are in line with the holdings of Ordinary shares.

the Company’s interest in Group undertakings at 31 december 2010 is as follows:

In addition to the above subsidiaries, the Ecclesiastical Investment Funds were consolidated into the Group results until 30 november 2010,  
and subsequently deconsolidated as disclosed in note 18(b). 

additionally, at the year end there were four other wholly owned subsidiary undertakings of which the assets and contributions to Group income 
are not significant.
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Parent 

Insurance business transfer

On 1 January 2011, the entire business of ansvar Insurance Company limited, a 100% owned subsidiary of the Company which carries on 
general insurance business, was transferred to the Company under an insurance business transfer scheme pursuant to Part vII of the Financial 
services and markets act 2000. the transfer is a business combination involving entities under common control and took place at net asset value, 
therefore no goodwill arose on the transaction. details of the impact of the acquisition on the Parent are as follows:

Group

Post year end insurance catastrophe events

the Group has exposure to insurance risks located in Christchurch through its new Zealand ansvar Insurance subsidiary, and expects to incur large 
gross losses as a result of the February 2011 earthquake. In addition, the Group’s london market business insures some risks in Japan, which 
experienced a large earthquake in march 2011. at this early stage the magnitude of these tragic events has not yet been fully determined, and 
therefore an estimate of the financial effect has not been provided. aside from possible reinsurance reinstatement costs, it is currently expected 
that the Group’s reinsurance programme will limit any financial exposure in excess of current retention limits.

the Company’s investment in the above subsidiary is held at historic cost, amounting to £2,057,000. Following the business transfer the 
directors intend that after distribution of its available profits the subsidiary will be dissolved at the next available opportunity. this will give rise 
to £23,763,000 of income and realised gain for the Company. there is no impact on the consolidated financial statements.

the primary reason for the transfer was to achieve economic and regulatory efficiencies by consolidating similar insurance businesses within 
one company.

40 non-adjusting events after the reporting period

 

Purchase consideration £000 

- increase in amounts owed to subsidiary 25,820 
Total purchase consideration, equating to net assets acquired  25,820 

 net 
The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows: asset value 
 £000 

Intangible assets 115 
deferred acquisition costs 3,113 
Pension asset 2,124 
Property, plant and equipment 847 
Financial investments 41,958 
Reinsurers’ share of contract liabilities 11,938 
Other assets 1,920 
Cash and cash equivalents 7,019 
Insurance contract liabilities (38,488)
Provisions for other liabilities (927)
deferred tax liabilities (818)
Current tax liabilities (509)
deferred income (1,003)
Other liabilities (1,469)
Net assets acquired 25,820 

Purchase consideration settled in cash - 
Cash and cash equivalents acquired (7,019)
Cash inflow on acquisition (7,019)
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41 Related party transactions
transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not included in 
the Group analysis, but are included within the Parent analysis below.

the parent related party transactions below relate to Ecclesiastical Insurance Group plc, the Group and Parent’s immediate parent company.  
Group and Parent other related parties include Beaufort house trust limited, a company under common control, the Group’s pension schemes, 
fellow subsidiary undertakings and the ultimate parent undertaking.

during the year the Company subscribed for 2,650,000 ordinary shares of £1 each at par in its subsidiary undertaking Ecclesiastical Investment 
management limited (formerly Ecclesiastical Insurance management services limited), and in addition paid up £500,002 previously issued share 
capital to that subsidiary.

during the prior year the Company purchased the entire ordinary share capital of both Ecclesiastical Financial advisory services limited and 
Ecclesiastical management services limited (then known as Ecclesiastical Investment management limited) from Ecclesiastical life limited,  
a subsidiary undertaking. the transfers took place at net asset value, which equated to a total consideration of £1,443,000. In addition,  
during that year the Company subscribed to 385,000 ordinary shares of £1 each issued by Ecclesiastical Financial advisory services limited.

during the year, the Company received premiums, commission and reinsurance recoveries via a related party insurance agency amounting to 
£54,607,000 (2009: £60,209,000) and paid reinsurance protection, commission and claims amounting to £57,238,000 (2009: £53,488,000).

Parent investments in related party mutual funds of £129,984,000 (2009: £107,555,000) are included in listed equity securities in note 24 to the 
financial statements. Group investments in related party mutual funds of £148,949,000 are included in listed equity securities at the current year 
end in note 24 to the financial statements. at the prior year end these funds were consolidated, including the Group’s share of £183,815,000,  
and third party funds of £104,864,000.

transactions and services within the Group are made on commercial terms. amounts outstanding between Group companies are unsecured,  
are not subject to guarantees, and will be settled in cash. no provisions have been made in respect of these balances. 

Key management compensation is disclosed in note 13.

 

   Other related 
 Parent  Subsidiaries  parties 
 £000  £000  £000 

2010 
Group    
trading, investment and other income, including recharges  71  -   5,013 
trading, investment and other expenditure, including recharges 6,314  -   4,011 
amounts owed by related parties 5,391  -   3,236 
amounts owed to related parties 924  -   32 

Parent 
trading, investment and other income, including recharges 71   28,508   2,014 
trading, investment and other expenditure, including recharges 6,314   22,921   3,626 
amounts owed by related parties 5,391   18,790   3,168 
amounts owed to related parties 924   285   21 

2009    
Group    
trading, investment and other income, including recharges 3  -   2,052 
trading, investment and other expenditure, including recharges 213  -   2,763 
amounts owed by related parties 1,762  -   2,797 
amounts owed to related parties -   -   4,532 

Parent   
trading, investment and other income, including recharges 3   26,186   1,467 
trading, investment and other expenditure, including recharges 213   13,307   2,246 
amounts owed by related parties 1,762   26,818   2,769 
amounts owed to related parties -   1,078   4,499 
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dIRECtORs and ExECutIvE manaGEmEnt

Directors * W. m. samuel Bsc, FCa Chairman
 * sir Philip mawer dlitt, lld deputy Chairman
 * d. Christie Ba, Bsc (Econ) dip. Ed.
 * m. d. Couve BComm, llm, ma law, solicitor
  m. C. J. hews Bsc, FIa Chief Financial Officer
 * J. F. hylands FFa
 * a. P. latham aCII
 * the venerable dr. n. Peyton ma, Bd, stm, Phd archdeacon of newark
  m. h. tripp Bsc, aRCs, FIa Group Chief Executive
 * d. P. Wilson Ba hons, FCII
  s. a. Wood Bsc, FCII managing director, uK & Ireland
  
Group Executive Team  m. h. tripp Bsc, aRCs, FIa Group Chief Executive
  K. Bogue ma, FIa
  m. C. J. hews Bsc, FIa Chief Financial Officer
  G. C. Johnson Bsc, mBa
  a. C. Keate CFP, aCII
  a. moon mBa, F Fin, maICd
  s. J. Whyte mC Inst m, aCII
  s. a. Wood Bsc, FCII managing director, uK & Ireland
  
Company Secretary  mrs R. J. hall FCIs
  
Registered and Head Office  Beaufort house,
  Brunswick Road,
  Gloucester Gl1 1JZ
  tel: 0845 777 3322
  
Company Registration Number  24869
  
  
Investment Management Office  19-21 Billiter street,
  london EC3m 2Ry
  tel: 0845 604 4840
  
Auditor  deloitte llP,
  london
  
Solicitors  speechly Bircham llP,
  london
  
Registrar  Computershare services PlC,
  the Pavilions,
  Bridgwater Road,
  Bristol Bs13 8aE
  
 * non-Executive and Independent directors
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unItEd KInGdOm REGIOnal CEntREs

Central Regional director: t. O’Reilly aCII
 Office: 7th Floor,
 9 Colmore Row,
 Birmingham B3 2BJ
 tel: 0845 605 0209
  
London Regional director: P. Glasper aCII, F. Inst. l Ex, Chartered Insurer
 Office:19-21 Billiter street,
 london EC3m 2Ry
 tel: 0845 608 0069
  
Southern Regional director: J. harker mBa
 Office: Fitzalan house,
 Park Road,
 Gloucester Gl1 1lZ
 tel: 0845 604 4240
  
Northern Regional director: J. molloy dip CII
 Office:1st Floor, 3 hardman square,
 spinningfields,
 manchester m3 3EB
 tel: 0845 603 7554
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unItEd KInGdOm BusInEss dIvIsIOn and 
IntERnatIOnal BRanChEs

Ansvar Insurance managing director: C. taylor mBa, aCII, mCmI
Business Division Office: ansvar house,
 st leonard’s Road,
 Eastbourne Bn21 3uR
 tel: 01323 737541
  
Canada branch General manager and Chief agent: s. J. Whyte mC Inst m, aCII
 Chief Office: 20 Eglinton avenue West, suite 2200,
 P.O. Box 2004,
 toronto, Ontario m4R 1K8
 
– Eastern Region manager: m. thornhill Ba, FCIP, CRm
 1969 upper Water street, suite 2106,
 Purdy’s Wharf, tower 2,
 halifax, nova scotia B3J 3R7
  
– Western Region  suite 630 Box 20,
 Bow valley square 1,
 202-6th avenue s.W.,
 Calgary, alberta t2P 2R9
  
– Pacific Region manager: E. m. mak Ba, Bsc, FCIP
 suite 1795, two Bentall Centre,
 555 Burrard street, Box 239,
 vancouver, British Columbia v7x 1m9
  
– Central Region manager: C. Robertson aCII
 20 Eglinton avenue West, suite 2200,
 P.O. Box 2004,
 toronto, Ontario m4R 1K8
  
– National Programmes manager: J. Williamson CIP, CRm
 20 Eglinton avenue West, suite 2200,
 P.O. Box 2004,
 toronto, Ontario m4R 1K8
  
Ireland branch manager: R. m. Foley
 Office: Fitzwilliam Business Centre,
 77 sir John Rogerson’s quay
 dublin 2  
 

  

O
th

E
R

 In
FO

R
m

atIO
n



116 Ecclesiastical Insurance Office plc

InsuRanCE suBsIdIaRIEs and aGEnCIEs

Ansvar Insurance Limited Chief Executive Officer: a. moon mBa, F Fin, maICd
 head Office: ansvar house
 level 12,
 432 st Kilda Road,
 melbourne vIC 3004
  
– Victoria Regional manager: P. hards anZIIF (snr assoc)
 PO Box 1655,
 level 12,
 432 st Kilda Road,
 melbourne vIC 3004
  
– New South Wales Regional manager: I. Ireland anZIIF (snr assoc)
 PO Box 1410,
 level 1,
 18 smith street,
 Parramatta 2124, nsW 2150
  
– Queensland Regional manager: I. Ireland anZIIF (snr assoc)
 GPO Box 747,
 43 Peel street,
 south Brisbane qld 4001
  
– South Australia Regional manager: P. mcGuire anZIIF (snr assoc)
 PO Box 630,
 unit 6, 202 Glen Osmond Road,
 Fullarton 5063
  
– Western Australia Regional manager: P. mcGuire anZIIF (snr assoc)
 PO Box 840,
 unit 9-10
 162 Colin street,
 West Perth Wa 6005
  
Ansvar Insurance Limited manager for new Zealand: d. leather  mBa
 head Office: P.O. Box 7042,
 Wellesley street,
 auckland 1141
  
Ecclesiastical Life Limited Chairman: m. h. tripp Bsc, aRCs, FIa
 head Office: Beaufort house, 
 Brunswick Road, 
 Gloucester,
 Gl1 1JZ
  
Ecclesiastical Underwriting director and underwriter: K. P. Cannon FCII
Management Limited Office: 19-21 Billiter street,
 london EC3m 2Ry
 tel: 020 7283 0666
  
South Essex Insurance director: B. W. Fehler
Brokers Limited Office: south Essex house, north Road
 south Ockendon,
 Essex Rm15 5BE
 tel: 01708 850000
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nOtICE OF mEEtInG

nOtICE is hereby given that the annual general meeting of Ecclesiastical Insurance Office plc will be held at Beaufort house, Brunswick Road, 
Gloucester, Gl1 1JZ on thursday, 23 June 2011 at 12:30 pm for the following purposes:      

Ordinary business 
1. to receive the report of the directors and accounts for the year ended 31 december 2010 and the report of the auditors thereon. 

2.  to re-elect mr W. m. samuel as a director.* 

3.  to re-elect sir Philip mawer as a director.* 

4.  to re-elect mr d. Christie as a director.* 

5.  to re-elect mr m. d. Couve as a director.*

6.  to re-elect mr m. C. J. hews as a director.* 

7.  to re-elect mr J. F. hylands as a director.* 

8.  to re-elect mr a. P. latham as a director.* 

9.  to re-elect dr. n. Peyton as a director.*  

10. to re-elect mr m. h. tripp as a director.*

11. to re-elect mr s. a. Wood as a director.*

12. to elect ms d. P. Wilson as a director.*

13. to consider the declaration of a dividend.

14. to re-appoint deloitte llP as auditors and authorise the directors to fix their remuneration.

By order of the board

Mrs R. J. Hall
Secretary
18 march 2011 

* Brief biographies of the directors seeking election or re-election are shown on pages 22 to 23.

Only a member holding ordinary shares, or their duly appointed representative(s), is entitled to attend, vote and speak at the annual  
general meeting.

a member holding ordinary shares is entitled to appoint a proxy or proxies (who need not be a member of the Company) to exercise all or any of 
their rights to attend speak and vote on their behalf at the meeting. such a member may appoint more than one proxy in relation to the annual 
general meeting provided that each proxy is appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held by that member. 

any corporation which is a member holding ordinary shares can appoint one or more corporate representatives who may exercise, on its behalf, all 
of the same powers as that corporation could exercise if it were an individual member, provided that they do not do so in relation to the same share 
or shares and that they act within the powers of their appointment. 

this notice is sent purely for information to the holders of 8.625% non-Cumulative Irredeemable Preference shares who are not entitled to attend 
and vote at the meeting.
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EIO is authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority and is a member of the Financial Ombudsman Service and Association of British Insurers.
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